IRSL.STEXCH:2016-17;
7" September 2016

BSE Limited

Corporate Relationship Department

26" Floor, . J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai- 400 001. Thru.: BSE Listing Centre
Stock Code BSE: 500207

1SIN: INE166A01020
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited - CIN L17124MH1986PLC166615

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of
Indo Rama Renewables Limited {Transferor Company No.1), Indo Rama Renewables
Porbandar Limited (Transferor Company No.2) and Inde Rama Renewables
Ramgarh Limited (Transferor Company No.3) with Indo Rama Synthetics (India)
Limited {(Transferge Company).

We refer to our letter dated 31% August 2016 and 1% September 2016, informing you about the
decision of the Board of Directors of the Company approving the Scheme of Amalgamation of
indo Rama Renewables Limited, Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited and indo Rama
Renewables Ramgarh Limited (Transferor Companies) with indo Rama Synthetics (India)
Limited (Transferee Company).

In continuation of the aforesaid, we are applying under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Enclosed is the checklist duly
filled-in together with the enclosures thereto relating to the Regutation 37 of application.

Further, wish to inform you that the Application Processing Fee of Rs.2,30,000/- (Rupees Two
Lacs Thirty Thousand only) including service tax, credited through RTGS to the Account No.
00600340005156 maintained with your Bank, HDFC Bank Ltd., Mumbai, on 6" September
2018, as per the screenshot of the transaction enclosed,

We will be pleased to provide by clarification as you may require in this regard. Ve request you
to kindly grant your approval to the Scheme of Amalgamaticon at your earliest convenience,

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,
for Indo Rama Synilgetics (India) Limited

R 27) /

Jayapik Sood
Head-Corporate & Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: FCS 4482)

Encl.: As above.

CC. National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, 5" Floor, Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra (E)
Mumbai - 400 051  Thru.: NEAPS
Stock Code NSE: INDORAMA

INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA)Y LTD.

Corporate Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, MH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India, Tel : 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070
Registered Office & Manufacturing Complex : A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur - 441122, Maharashtra, india. Tel : 07104-663000 / 01, Fax : 07104-663200
E-mail : corp@indorama-ind.com « Website ; www.indoramaindia.com
CIN: L17124MH1986P1.C166615



List of documents reguired to be submitted for approval under Requlation 37 of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and_Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, for the Scheme of

Amalgamation with BSE Limited / National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Sr.
No,

Documenis io be submitted along with application under
Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements), Regulations, 2015

Annexures

Page Nos.

Certified true copy of the resolution passed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

Annexure-A

01 - 09

Ceriified copy of the draft Scheme of Amalgamation /
Arrangement, etc. proposed to be filed before the High
Court.

Annexure-8

10 - 35

Valuation report from Independent Chartered Accoﬁntant as
applicable as per Para I(A)(4) of Annexure | of SEBI Circular
no. CIR/CFD/ICMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015.

Annexure-C

36 - 36

Report from the Audit Committee recommending the draft
scheme taking into consideration, inter alia, the valuation
report at Sr. No. 3, above.

Annexure-D

37 - 39

Fairness opinion by Merchant Banker.

Annexure-E

40 - 44

Shareholding Pattern of all the Companies pre and post
Amalgamation/ Arrangement as per the format provided
under Regulation 31 of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015

Annexure-F

45 - 48

Audited  financials of the transfereefresulting and
transferor/demerged companies for the [ast 3 financial years
(financials not being more than 8 months old) as per
Annexure | Please note that for existing Listed
Company, provide the last Annual Report and the
audited / unaudited financials of the latest quarter (were
it is due) accompanied mandatorily by the Limited
Review Report of the auditor.

Annexure-G

49 - 57

Quarterly compliance Report on Corporate Governance as
per Regulation 27 (2)(a) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Reguiations, 2015, as per
Annexure |

Annexure-H

58 - 62

Complaint report as per Annexure il of SEBI Circular no.
CIR/ICFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 (To be
submitted within 7 days of expiry of 21 days from the date of
uploading of Draft Scheme and related documents on
Exchange's website). Format given in Annexure Il

The Company will submit the
Complaint Report within 7 days
of the expiry of 21 days from
the date of submission of the
Scheme of Amalgamation to
the Stock Exchanges

10.

Compliance repoit with the requirements specified in Part-A
of Annexure | of SEBI circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015
dated November 30, 2015, as per Annexure IV

Annexure-

63 - 65
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11.

If as per the Company, approval from the shareholders
through postal ballot and e-voting, as required under Para
((AXSKa) of Annexure | of SEBI Circular no.
CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015, is not
applicable then as required under Para (){(A)}9)(c) of said
SEBI circular, submit the following:

a) An undertaking certified by the auditor clearly stating
the reasons for non applicability of Sub Para 9(a)

b) Certified copy of Board of Director's resolution
approving the aforesaid Auditor Certificaie.

Annexure-J

66 - 69

12

Name of the Designated Stock Exchange (DSE) for the
purpose of coordinating with SEBI. Certified true copy of the
resolution passed by the Board of Directors, in case BSE is
DSE.

Annexure-K

70 -72

13.

Brief details of the transferee/resulting and
transferor/demerged Companies as per format enclosed at
Annexure V,

Annexure-L.

73-75

14.

Net-worth  Certificate (excluding Revaluation Reserve)
together with related workings pre and post Scheme for the
transferee and/or resulting Company.

Annexure-M

76 - 83

15.

Capital evolution details of the ftransferee/resulting and
transferor/demerged Companies as per format enclosed at
Annexure VI.

Annexure-N

84 - 87

16.

Confirmation by the Managing Director/ Company Secretary
as per format enclosed as Annexure VI,

Annexure-Q

88 -88

17.

Statutory Auditor's Certificate confirming the compliance of
the accounting treatment, etc., as specified in Para (I)(A)
{5)(a} of Annexure | of SEBI Circular no.
CIR/CFDICMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015, as per the
format given in Annexure Il of aforesaid SEBI circular,
Format given in Annexure VIl

Annexure-P

89 -89

18.

Annual Reports of all the listed
transferee/resulting/demerged/etc. Companies involved and
audited financial of all the unlisted
transferor/demergediresulting/etc. Companies for the last
financial year.

Annexure-Q

19.

Processing fee (non-refundable} payable will be as below,
though RTGS - Details given in Annexure 1X or though
Cheque/DD favoring ‘BSE Limited’

Rs.1,00,000/- plus Service Tax as applicable, where one
entities/companies are Merged or one new company formed
due to De-merger

Rs. 2,00,000/- plus Service Tax as applicable, where more

than one entity/company is Merged or more than one new
company formed due to De-merger.

Annexure-R
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20.

Name & Designation of the Contact Person

Telephone Nos. (landline & mobile)
Email ID.

Mr. Jayantk Scod

Head-Corporate & Company Secretary
Tel.: 0124-4997000 | M: 98106 35337

javant.sood@inderama-ind.com

l
E
;
;
|
|
1

Kindly note that all pages of the documents/details provided should be serially numbered, stamped "
and certified by the authorized sighatory of the Company.

Kindly aiso submit one additional set of the documents at Sr. Nos. 2 to 11 separately (hard
copy as well as soft copy emailed to "bse.schemes@bseindia.com” mentioning Company
name as subject, for uploading on the Exchange website).

The Exchange reserves the right to modify and ask for additional documents / clarifications
depending on a case to case basis. Approval for the proposed scheme will be subject to
compliance with the Statutory/ Regulatory requirements, norms of the Board of Directors of

the Exchange and other Exchange requirements.
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GERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE 6™ MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF INDO RAMA SYNTHETICES (INDIA) LIMITED, CIN L17124MH1986PLC166615,
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 315" AUGUST 2016, COMMENCED AT 3:30 PM AND CONCLUDED AT 5:05
PM, AT 20™ FLOOR, DLF SQUARE, DLF PHASE-l], NH-8, GURGAON-122 002, HARYANA,

"RESQLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 391 to 394 and all other applicabie
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 and corresponding provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 upon their nolification and enabiing provisions in the Memorandum and Articies of
Association of Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited (‘the Company’} and subject to the requisite
approval of the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Bombay (‘the Court’), Securities and
Exchange Board of india (‘the SEBI") Central Government and Stock Exchanges where the
shares of the Company are listed and that of shareholders and creditors of the Company,
consent of the Board of Directors (‘the Board’) be and are hereby accorded to the Scheme of
Amalgamation (‘the Scheme’) of Indo Rama Renewables Limited referred as “Transferor
Company No. 1", Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited referred as “Transferor Company
No. 2" and Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited referred as “Transferor Company No. 37,
wholly owned and step- down subsidiaries of the Company registered under the Companies Act,
1956 with the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors as per the terms and
conditions mentioned in the Scheme placed before the Board with effect from 1% April 2016
("Appointed date”) and initialled by the Chairman for the purposes of identification;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT since the entire share capital of the Company of Transferor
Company No.1, 2 & 3 is directly or indirectly owned by the Company, no shares shall be issued
by the Company upon amalgamation of Transferor Company No.1, 2 & 3 with the Company and
the shares held by the Company shall stand cancelled and extinguished pursuant to said
Amalgamation;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT:

(a) The report from the Audit Committee of the Company, duly signed by the Chairman of Audit
Committee, recommending the Scheme, as placed before the Board be and hereby
accepted and approved;

(b) BSE Limited be and is hereby appointed as the Designated Stock Exchange, for the
purpose of Scheme and for co-ordinating with ‘SEBI" in terms of SEBI Circular No.
CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 issued under applicable Regulations of
SEBI (Listing Cbligations and Regulations Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(c) Certificate from Statutory Auditors (Chartered Accountants) of the Company to the effect
that the Accounting Treatment contained in the Scheme is in compliance with all the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the undertaking issued by the Company in terms of SEBI Circular
No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 stating the reasons for non-applicability
of the provisions of Para 9(a) of the aforesaid SEBI Circular to the Scheme of Amalgamation
between the Transferor Company No.1, 2 & 3 and the Company and their respective
shareholders and creditors as certified by Statutory Auditors (Chartered Accountants) of the
Company, be and his hereby noted and approved,;

\

l
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Om Prakash Lohia (DIN 00206807), Chairman and Managing
Director andfor Mr. Vishal Lohia (DIN 00206458}, Whole-time Director andfor Mr. Sanjeev
Aggarwal (ICAl Membership No. 089389), President & CFO and/or Mr. Jayantk Sood (ICS]
Membership No. FCS 4482), Head-Corporate & Company Secretary and/or Mr. B. 8. Rana,
AGM (Secretarial} of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to oversee and
monitor the process connected with the Scheme and to make such additions, alterations,
rectifications and changes therein as may be expedient or necessary for satisfying the
requirements or conditions imposed by the Shareholders, the Creditors, the Central Government
or the Court and to take all such steps as may be necessary for the purpose of giving effect to
the aforesaid Scheme of Amalgamation which shall include:

(1)

(3)

(4)

(7)

Filing of Scheme and other information/details with the concerned Stock Exchanges or any
other body or regtilatory authority or agency in order to obtain approval or sanction of
Scheme of Amalgamation or for giving effect thereto;

Filing application(s) before the Hor'ble Court or any other Competent Authority for seeking
directions as to convening/dispensing with the reguirements of the meetings of the
shareholders and/or the creditors of the Company as the Court or any other Competent
Authority may direct and to file all necessary documents, applications, affidavits,
Vakalathama, petitions and other documents as may be necessary from time to time for
the said purposes and to undertake the follow up action required thereafter,;

To file any incidental application/petition as is necessary for the implementation of the
Scheme;

To file petition for sanction/confirmation of the Scheme by the said Court or any other
Competent Authority and to do all that may be necessary and incidental in this behalf,

To settle any question or difficulty that may arise with regards to the implementation of the
Scheme and to give effect to the above resolution;

To do all acts, deeds and things necessary, convenient and incidental and ancillary in
relation thereto and for that purpose to engage any advocate, Solicitor, counsel or other
consultants;

And for the purposes set out hereinabove and in this behalf fo sign and verify all
declarations, affidavits, statements, notices, applications, other deeds and documents and
to give such undertakings as may be necessary from time to time in connection with and
incidental to the Scheme of Amalgamation;

Obtaining approval from such other parties as may be considered necessary, for the
Scheme;

To delegate authority fo another person(s) by a valid power of aftorney or other
appropriate authorizations;

To do all acts and things as may be considered necessary and expedient in relation to the

implementation of the Scheme; and
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(11) To carry out and execute such additional and ancillary documents and formalities as may
he deemed necessary.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company, Common Seal of the Company, if required, be affixed on any document(s)
executed in connection with the ahove resolution.”

Certified {o be true
for Indo Rama Synthetics (India} Limited

bl Jayantk Sood
Head-Corporate & Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: FCS 4482)
Address: WW.93, SF, Personal Floors,
Malibu Town, Sohna Road,
Gurgaon, Haryana
Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31 August 2016
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE 10" MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF INDO RAMA RENEWABLES LINITED, CIN U40106HR2012PLC045840, HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, 31°7 AUGUST 2016, COMMENCED AT 11:00 AM AND CONCLUDED AT 11:25 AM, AT
20™ FLOOR, DLF SQUARE, BLF PHASE-H, NH-8, GURGAON-122 002, HARYANA.

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and
corresponding provisions of companies Act, 2013 upon their notification and enabling provisions
in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the conseni of
members and creditors of the Company and approval of the Hon’ble High Court of judicature at
Bombay (hereinafter referred to as “the High Court”) or the National Company Law Tribunal or
any other relevant authority empowered to approve the Scheme of Amalgamation and such
other requisite and other approvals, consents, permissions andf/or sanctions of any appropriate
authority, body or institution (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the concerned authority”) and
subject to such conditions or guidelines, if any, as may be prescribed, imposed, stipulated in this
regard by the Hon'ble High Court or the concerned authority or any of them, from time to time,
while granting such approvals, consents, permissions and/or sanctions, the Company be
amalgamated with Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited a Company incorporated in India
having its Registered Office at A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur-441122,
Maharashtra;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation submitted to this meeting and
initialed by the Chairman for purposes of identification, be and is hereby, approved, and
Mr. Rajendra Kumar Gupta (DIN 07529751), Mr, Vikas Sehgal (DIN 07529393), Directors and
Mr. Jayanik Sood, Mr. B. S. Rana, Authorised Signatories of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorized to make such alteration and changes therein as may be expedient or
necessary for satisfying the requirement or condition imposed by the Hon'ble High Court
provided that prior approval of the Board shall be obtained for making any material changes in
the said draft Scheme of Amalgamation as approved in this meeting,;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rajendra Kumar Gupta (DIN 07528751), Mr. Vikas Sehgal
(DIN 07529393), Directors and Mr. Jayantk Sood, Mr. B. §. Rana, Authorised Signatories of the
Company be and are hereby severally authorized:

a) to make, prepare, sign and file applications, petitions, affidavits and such other
documents as may be necessary with the Hon'ble High Court; to obtain waiver/directions
for holding meetings of the members and the creditors of the Company and to sign and
issue public advertisements and notices in connection with the said Scheme,

h) to make any amendment(s), alteratiorys) and modification(s) in the said Scheme as may
be suggested by the members, creditors and/or by the Hon’ble High Court or the
concerned authority;

¢} to engage, hire, appoint and remove one or more counsel/advocate/pleader to represent
and act on behalf of the Company in the proceedings before the Hon'ble High Court
and/or the concerned authority in any matter related to the said Scheme;

d) to affix the Common seal of the Company, in accordance with Arlicles of Association of
the Company, on such documents and papers as may he necessary ;_n_th_is regard,

@( " Page10f2
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e} to do such things and to take such steps as may be necessary for getting the said
Scheme approved by the members, creditors and sanctioned by the Hon’hle High Court
and/or the concerned authority;

) to de all such things and te take all such steps as may be necessary for the purpose of
ensuring compliance with the directions that may be given by Hon'ble High Court andfor
the concerned authority; and

g} to furnish certified true copies of this resclution as and when necessary;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, in the opinion of the Board, the said Scheme of Amalgamation of
the Company with indo Rama Synthetics {India) Limited, being advantageous and beneficial to
the shareholders, creditors of the Company, be and is hereby approved;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any person authorised
for the purpose by the Board be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as are considered requisite or necessary to effectively implement the said Scheme
and to make and/or accept such modifications and/or conditions, if any, which may be required
and/or imposed by the Hon'bie High Court and/or the concerned authority while sanctioning the
said Scheme;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all acts, deeds, matters and things done by the authorized

signatories/ representatives for the aforementioned purpose shall have the same effect as if
done by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

Certified o be true

for Indo Rama Renewables Limited

~>ihigpd

Vikas Sehgal
Director (DIN 07529393)
Address: Plot No. 089A, House No. 202,
Kunj Bihart CGHS Society
Divine Grace Apartments,
Sector-47, Gurgaon-122001
Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31°' August 2016
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE 7™ MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF INDQ RAMA RENEWABLES RAMGARH LIMITED, CIN U40300HR2012P1.C046070,
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 31°" AUGUST 2016, COMMENCED AT 10:00 AM AND CONCLUDED AT
10:25 AM, AT 20™ FLOOR, DLF SQUARE, DLF PHASE-il, NH-8, GURGAON-122 002, HARYANA.

"RESOLVED THAT subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1856, and
corresponding provisions of companies Act, 2013 upon their notification and enabling provisions
in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the consent of
members and creditors of the Company and approval of the Hon'ble High Court of judicature at
Bombay (hereinafter referred to as “the High Court”) or the National Company Law Tribunal or
any other relevant authority empowered fo approve the Scheme of Amalgamation and such
other requisite and other approvals, consents, permissions and/or sanctions of any appropriate
authority, body or institution (hereinafter collectively referred to as "the concerned authority”) and
subject to such conditions or guidelines, if any, as may be prescribed, imposed, stipulated in this
regard by the Hon'ble High Court or the concerned authority or any of them, from time to time,
while granting such approvals, consents, permissions and/or sanctions, the Company be
amalgamated with Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited a Company incorporated in India
having its Registered Office at A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur-441122.
Maharashtra;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation submitted to this meeting and
initialed by the Chairman for purposes of identification, be and is hereby, approved, and
Mr. Rajendra Kumar Gupta (DIN 07529751), Mr. Vikas Sehgal (DIN 07529393), Directors and
Mr. Jayantk Sood, Mr. B. S. Rana, Authorised Signatories of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorized to make such alteration and changes therein as may be expedient or
necessary for satisfying the requirement or condition imposed by the Hon'ble High Court
provided that prior approval of the Board shall be obtained for making any material changes in
the said draft Scheme of Amalgamation as approved in this meeting;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rajendra Kumar Gupta (DIN 07529751), Mr. Vikas Sehgal
(DIN 07529393), Directors and Mr. Jayantk Sood, Mr. B. S. Rana, Authorised Signatories of the
Company be and are hereby severally authorized:

a) to make, prepare, sign and file applications, petitions, affidavits and such other
documents as may be necessary with the Hon’ble High Court; to obtain waiver/directions
for holding meetings of the members and the creditors of the Company and to sign and
issue public advertisements and notices in connection with the said Scheme;

b) to make any amendment(s), alteration(s) and modification(s) in the said Scheme as may
be suggested by the members, creditors and/or by the Hon'ble High Court or the
concerned authority;

c) to engage, hire, appoint and remove one or more counsel/advocate/pleader to represent
and act on behalf of the Company in the proceedings before the Hon'ble High Court
and/or the concerned authority in any matter related to the said Scheme,;

d) to affix the Common seal of the Company, in accordance with Articles of Association of
the Company, on such documents and papers asQ/ybe necessary in thls regard
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e} fo do such things and fo take such steps as may be necessary for getting the said
Scheme approved by the members, creditors and sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court
and/or the concerned authority;

f) 1o do all such things and to take ali such steps as may be necessary for the purpose of
ensuring compliance with the directions that may be given by Hon'ble High Court and/or
the concerned authority; and

g) to furnish certified true copies of this resolution as and when necessary;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, in the opinion of the Board, the said Scheme of Amalgamation of
the Company with indo Rama Synihetics (India) Limited, being advaniageous and beneficiai to
the shareholders, creditors of the Company, be and is hereby approved;

RESCLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any person authorised
for the purpose by the Board be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as are considered requisite or necessary to effectively implement the said Scheme
and to make and/or accept such modifications and/or conditions, if any, which may be required
and/or imposed by the Hon'ble High Court and/or the concerned authority while sanctioning the
said Scheme;

RESCLVED FURTHER THAT all acts, deeds, matters and things done by the authorized

signatories/ representatives for the aforementioned purpose shall have the same effect as if
done by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

Certified to be true

for Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited

Vikas Sehga
Director (DIN 07529393)
Address: Plot No. 09A, House No. 202,
Kunj Bihari CGHS Society
Divine Grace Apartments,
Sector-47, Gurgaon-122001
Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31° August 2016
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE 77" MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF INDO RAMA RENEWABLES PORBANDAR LTD., CIN U40102HR2012PLGC046056,
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 31°7 AUGUST 2016, COMMENCED AT 10:30 AM AND CONCLUDED AT
10:55 AM, AT 20" FLOOR, DLF SQUARE, DLF PHASE-1l, NH-8, GURGAON-122 002, HARYANA.

‘RESOLVED THAT subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and
corresponding provisions of companies Act, 2013 upon their notification and enabling provisions
in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the consent of
members and creditors of the Company and approval of the Hon’ble High Court of judicature at
Bombay (hereinafter referred to as “the High Court”) or the National Company Law Tribunal or
any other relevant authority empowered to approve the Scheme of Amalgamation and such
other requisite and other approvals, consents, permissions and/or sanctions of any appropriate
authority, body or institution {hereinafter collectively referred to as “the concetned authority”) and
subject fo such conditions or guidelines, if any, as may be prescribed, imposed, stipulated in this
regard by the Hon'ble High Court or the concerned authority or any of them, from time fo time,
while granting such approvals, consents, permissions and/or sanctions, the Company be
amalgamated with Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited a Company incorporated in India
having its Registered Office at A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur-441122,
Maharashira;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation submitted to this meeting and
initialed by the Chairman for purposes of identification, be and is hereby, approved, and
Mr. Rajendra Kumar Gupta (DIN 07529751), Mr. Vikas Sehgal (DIN 07526383}, Directors and
Mr. Jayantk Sood, Mr. B. S. Rana, Authorised Signatories of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorized to make such alteration and changes therein as may be expedient or
necessary for satisfying the requirement or condition imposed by the Hon'ble High Court
provided that prior approval of the Board shall be obtained for making any material changes in
the said draft Scheme of Amalgamation as approved in this meeting,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rajendra Kumar Gupta (DIN 07529751), Mr. Vikas Sehgal
(DIN 07529393), Directors and Mr. Jayantk Sood, Mr. B. S. Rana, Authorised Signatories of the
Company be and are hereby severally authorized:

a) o make, prepare, sign and file applications, petitions, affidavits and such other
documents as may be necessary with the Hon’ble High Court; to obtain waiver/directions
for holding meetings of the members and the creditors of the Company and to sign and
issue public advertisements and notices in connection with the said Scheme;

b) to make any amendment(s), alteration(s) and modification(s} in the said Scheme as may
be suggested by the members, creditors and/or by the Hon'ble High Court or the
concerned authority,

¢) to engage, hire, appoint and remove one or more counsel/advocate/pleader to represent
and act on behalf of the Company in the proceedings before the Hon'ble High Court
and/or the concerned authority in any matter related to the said Scheme;,

d) to affix the Common seai of the Company, in accordance with Articles of Association of
the Company, on such documents and papers as may be necessary in this regard;
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e) to do such things and to take such steps as may be necessary for getting the said
Scheme approved by the members, creditors and sanctioned by the Hon’ble High Court
and/or the concerned authority;

f) to do all such things and to take all such steps as may be necessary for the purpose of
ensuring compliance with the directions that may be given by Hon'bie High Court and/or
the concerned authority; and

g) to furnish certified true copies of this resolution as and when necessary;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, in the opinion of the Board, the said Scheme of Amalgamation of
the Company with Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited, being advantageous and beneficial to
the shareholders, creditors of the Company, be and is hereby approved,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any person authorised
for the purpose by the Board be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as are considered reguisite or necessary to effectively implement the said Scheme
and to make and/or accept such modifications and/or conditions, if any, which may be required
and/or imposed by the Hon'ble High Court and/or the concerned authority while sanctioning the
said Scheme;,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT ali acts, deeds, matters and things done by the authorized

signatories/ representatives for the aforementioned purpose shall have the same effect as if
done by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

Certified to be true

for Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited

~ichigd

Vikas Sehgal
Director (DIN 07529393)
Address: Plot No. 09A, House No. 202,
Kunj Bihari CGHS Society
Divine Grace Apartments,
Sector-47, Gurgaon-122001
. Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31* August 2016
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SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
o¥
INDO RAMA RENEWABLES LIVITED
(The Transferor / Applicant Company No, 1)

AND

INDO RAMA RENEWABLESRAMGARH LIMITED

(The Transleror / Applicant Company No. 2)
AND

INDO RAMA RENEWABLES PORBANDAR LIMITED
(The Transferor / Applicant Company No. 3)
WITH
INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) LIMITED
(The Transferce / Applicant Company)
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE CREDITORS AND SHARETTOLDERS
UNDER
Sections 391 & 394 of the Companies Act, 1956

PREAMBLE
(A} BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF COMPANIES
1. INDO RAMA RENEWABLES LIMITED (hereinafter
referved to as “the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 17} is a
Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companics

, 1956 on May 03, 2012 vide CIN

U4QrOoHR2012P1LC045840  and  i1s  presently having  its

Act

registered office st 31-A, MIDC Industrial Avea, Butibori-

441122, The Transteror / Applicant Company No. 1 ig engaged

0
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in the business of exploration, generation, development,
transmission, distribution, supply, accumulation, utilisation,
consumption, employment and conservation of power and any
other source, type and form of conventional, non-conventional,
renewable and alternate energy specifically from fuel cells,
coal, gas, lignife, oil, bio-mass, waste, thermal, solar, hydel,
geo-hydel, wind and tdal waves and all other renewable

resources.

INDO RAMA RENEWABLES RAMGARH LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as “the Transferor / Applicant Company
No. 2”) is a company incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies  Act, 1956 on May 25, 2012 wvide CIN
U40300HR2012PLC0O46070  and is  presently having its
registered office at 31-A, MIDC Industriai Area, Butibori-
441122, The Transferor / Applicant Company No. 2 is engaged
in the business of exploration, generation, development,
transmission, distribution, supply, accumulation, utilisation,
consumption, employment and conservation of power and any
other source, type and form of conventicnal, non-conventional,
renewable and alternate energy specifically from fuel cells,
coal, gas, lignite, oil, bio-mass, waste, thermal, solar, hydel,
peo-hydel, wind and tidal waves and all other renewable

Iesources.

INDO RAMA RENEWABLES PORBANDAR LIMITED
(hereinafter referred to as “the Transferor/ Applicant Company
No. 3™} is a Company incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies  Act, 1956 on May 23, 2012 vide
CINU40102HR2012P1L.C0O46056and  1s presently having its
registered office at 31-A, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori-
441122, The Transferor / Applicant Company No. 3 is engaged
in the business of exploration, generation, development,

transmission, distribution, supply, accumulation, utilisation,

I
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consumption, employment and conservation of power and any
other source, type and form of conventional, non-conventional,
renewable and alternate energy specifically from fuel ceils,
coal, gas, lignite, oil, bio-mass, waste, thermal, solar, hydel,
geo-hydel, wind and tidal waves and all other renewable

resources.

INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (NDIA)  LIMITED
{(hereinafier referred to as “the Transferce/ Applicant Company
No. 47) is a Company incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies  Act, 1956 on April 28, 1986 wvide CIN
L17124MH1986PLC166615 and presently having its registered
office af 31-A, MIDC Indusirial Area, Bulibori-441122. The
Transteree / Applicant Company is engaged in the business
ofginning, pressing, spinning, weaving, doubling, texturising,
processing or manufacturing and dealing in cotton, jute, flax,
hemp, silk, artificial silk, wool, rayon, nylon, polyester, acrylic,
acetate, viscose staple fibres and any other kinds of fibrous
material, whether natural or synthetic or chemical or manmade
and produects thereof (including wastes realised there from),
linen manufacturers, wool combers, worsted spinners, worsted
stuff’ manufacturers, manufacturers of yarn, linen, cloth and
other goods and fabrics, whether textile, felted, netted, looped,
woven, non-woven or otherwise fabricated or made and
manufacturers of garments and dresses, bleachers and dyers and
makers of vitriol, bleaching and dyeing materials and other
chemicals; and the business of buyers and sellers, exporters and
importers of and dealers in cotton, kapas, jute, flax, hemp, silk,
artificial silk, wool, staple, rayon, polyester, acrylic, acetate,
nylon and any other kinds of fibrous, synthetic and chemical
substances and products, yarn, cloth or other products
manufactured for or from any of the above substances and also

to carry on the business of curing, preparing, colouring, dyeing,

Lok
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bleaching, printing or otherwise processing any yarn, cloth,

fibre or other materials, goods or products related thereto.

(B)  OBJECTS AND RATIONALE FOR THE PROPOSED
SCHEME:
The Transferor/ Applicant Company No. 2 and the Transferor/
Applicant Company No. 3 are wholly-own subsidiaries of the
Transferor/ Applicant Company Ne. 1 and the Transferor/ Applicant
Company No. 1 is wholly-own subsidiary of the Transferee/ Applicant

Company.

The objects / activities of the Transferor / Applicant Companies and
Transferce / Applicant Company are similar / identical in nature
therefore in order to synergize the operations and to achieve the

following benefits, this Scheme of Amalgamation is presented:

a. Greater efficiency in resource management, cost savings resulting
from rationalization, standardization and simplification of business
processes.

b, Improved organizational capability arising from pooling of
financial, managerial and technical resources.

c. Re-aligning the business operations as part of overall business
reorganization plan.

d. Avoiding un-necessary duplication of costs of administration,

distribution, selling and marketing costs.

o

Maximize the overall sharcholders vaiue by strengthening its core

competencies.

(C) PARTS OF THE SCHEME:
This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

[. PART I - This part deals with the Definitions and Share Capital;

2. PART II -~ This part provides for merger of INDO RAMA
RENEWABLES LIMITED (The Transferor / Applicant Company

E
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(D)

1.1

a)

b)

No.1}, INDO RAMA RENEWABLES RAMGARHLIMITED (lhe
Transferor / Applicant Company No. 2) AND INDO RAMA
RENEWABLESPORBANDAR  LIMITED  (The Transferor /
Applicant Company No. 3) with INDO RAMA SYN’H‘I[—E’I‘ICS
(INDIALIMITED (The Transferee / Applicant Company);

PART XII ~ This part deals with General Terms and Conditions

applicable to this Scheme.

The amalgamation of the Transferor/ Applicant Company No. 1,the
Transferor / Applicant Company No. 2 and the Transferor / Applicant
Company No. 3with the Transferee / Applicant Company, pursuant to
and in accordance with the Scheme, shall be operational with effect
from the Appointed Date and shall be in accordance with Section 2

(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

PART I
DEFINITIONS
DEFINITIONS
In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof,

the following expressions shall have the meaning as under:

“The Aet” means the Companies Act, 1956, or any statulory
. M 1. il i
amendment and/or re-enactment thereof and includes the Companies

Act, 2013 to the extent applicable.

“Fhe Appointed Date” means April 1, 2016or such other date as may
be directed by the Hon’ble Nagpur Bench of High Court of Bombay/

Hon’ble High Court of Bombay or any other competent authority.
“Board of Directors” in relation to the Transferor Companies and

Transferee Company, as the case may be, shall unless it is repugnant
Y,

to the context or otherwise, include the committee of directors or any

1
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f)

person authorized by the Board of Directors or such committee of

directors.

“The Effective Date” in relation to the scheme, means the last of the
dates on which certified copy of the order of the Hon’ble Nagpur
Bench of High Court of Bombay/ Hon’ble High Cowrt of Bombay
under section 394 of the Actis filed with the Registrar of Companies,

Mumbai,

“This Scheme” or “the Scheme” means the present Scheme of
Amalgamation framed under the provisions of Section 391 to Section
394 of the Act and other applicable provisions, if any, as approved by
the respective Board of Directors of the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company where under the Transferor Companies are
proposed to be amalgamated with the Transferee Company in the
present form or with any modification(s) approved or imposed or
directed by Members/Creditors of the respective Companies and/or by
the the Hon’ble Nagpur Bench of High Court of Bombay/ Hon’ble

High Court of Bombay and/ or by any competent authority.

“The Transferor / Applicant Company No. 17 means INDO
RAMA RENEWABLES LIMITED, is as defined in Preamble
Clause (A) 1 above,

“The Transferor / Applicant Company No. 2” meansINDO RAMA
RENEWABLES RAMGARH LIMITED, is as defined in Preamble

Clause (A) 2 above.

“The Transferor / Applicant Company No. 3” meansINDO RAMA
RENEWABLES PORBANDAR LIMITED, is as defined in

Preamble Clause {A) 3 above.

“ﬂ

S
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i)

Y

m)

“Fransferor Companies” means Transleror / Applicant Company

No. 1 Transferor / Applicant Company No. 2 and Transferor /

Applicant Company No. 3, when collectively referred to.

“The Transferce / Applicant Company” or “The Transferee
Company”  means INDO RAMA  SYNTHETICS  (INDIA)
LIMIETED, is as defined in Preamble Clause (A) 4 above.

“High Court” or “the Court” means the Hon’ble Nagpur Bench of
High Court of Bombay/ Hon'ble High Court of Bombay and shall
include the National Company Law Tribunal or such other forum or
authority, as may be vested with any powers of High Court of

Bombay.

“Law” or “Applicable Law?” includes all applicable statutes,
enactments, acts of legislature or Parliament, laws, ordinances, rules,
bye-laws, regulations, notifications, guidelines, policies, directions,
directives and orders of any government, statutory authority, tribunal,

board, court of India or any other country or jurisdiction as applicabie.

"ROC” or "Registrar of Companies” means Registrar of

Companies, Mumbai.

“Undertaking” in relation to the Transteror Companies, shali mean
the entire business ol the Transteror Company No. 1, Transferor
Company No. 2and Transferor Company No. 3 on a going concern

hasis.
“I'T Act” means the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended.

All terms and words which are used in this Scheme and not defined in
this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or
meaning thereof, have the same meaning prescribed to them under the

Act and other Applicable Laws (as defined above), rules, regulations,

\o
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d.

bye-laws, ag the case may be or any statutory modification or re-

enactment thereof from time to time.

SHARE CAPITAL

INDG RAMA RENEWABLESLIMITED:- TRANSFEROR /

APPLICANT COMPANY NO. 1

As on March 31, 2016

Particulars

Amount in Rs.

Authorised Capital

50,000,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each 500,000,000
lsxuad Subscyribed and paid-up Capital
39,843,683 shares of Rs.10/- each 398,430,830

There has been no change in Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-

up Share Capital of the Transferor / Applicant Company No.l

subsequent to March 31, 2016.

INDO RAMA RENEWABLES RAMGARH
TRANSFEROR / APPLICANT COMPANY NO. 2

LIMIXTED:-

As on March 31, 2016

Particulars

Amount in Rs.

Authorised Capital

50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/ each 500,000
Issued, Subscribed and paid-up Capital
50,000 equity shares of Rs, 10/- each 500,000

There has been no change in Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-

up Share Capital of the Transferor / Applicant Company No.i

subsequent to March 31, 2016.

I
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d.

2.

INDO  RAMA  RENEWABLES  PORBANDARLIMITED:-
TRANSFEROR / APPLICANT COMPANY NO.3

Particulars Amount in Rs.

As on March 31, 2016

Authorised Capital

50,000equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each 500,000

Tssned, Subseribed and naid-up Capital

50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ cach. 500,000

There has been no change in Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-
up Share Capital of the Transferor / Applicant Company No.l

subsequent to March 31, 2016.

iNDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA)LIMITED:-
TRANSYFEREE / APPLICANT COMPANY

As on March 31, 2016

Particulars Amount in Rs.

Authorised Capital

185,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- 1,850,000,000

each

Issued, subscribed and paid-un

151,822,242 equity shares of Rs. 10/ 1,518,222,420

@ach,

There has been no change in Authorised, Issued, Subseribed and Paid-
up Share Capital of the Transferee / Applicant Company subsequent

to March 31, 2016.

PART 11
TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING
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b.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the
Appointed Date Le. April 1, 2016, all properties, assets, liabilities and
Undertaking(s) of the Transferor Companies shall stand transferred to
and vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the
Trangferce Company under the provisions of Section 391 to 394 and
all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and also 1n
accordance with section 2(1B) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961, without

any further deed or act.

With effect from the commencement of business on the Appointed
Date and subject to the provisions of the Scheme in relation to the
modalities of transfer and vesting, ali the undertaking and entire
business and all properties whether moveable or immovable or
tangible or intangible where ever situated and also all other assets,
capital, worl-in-progress, current assets, movable assets, all
nvestments in India or out of India, if any, powers, authoriiies,
allotments, approvals and consents, licenses, registrations, contracts,
engagements, arrangement, rights, intellectual property rights, titles,
interests, benefits and advantages of whatsoever nature belonging to
or in the ownership, power, possession, control of or vested in or
granted in favour of or enjoyed by the Transferor Companies,
including but without being limited to all licenses, liberties,
easements, advantages, benefits, privileges, leases, tenancy rights,
ownership, intellectual property rights including trademarks, brands,
copy rights, patents, quota rights, subsidies, capital subsidies,
concessions, exemptions, sales tax exemptions, approvals, clearances,
environmental  clearances, authorizations, certification, quality
certification, utilities, electricity connections, electronics and
computer link ups, services of all types, reserves, provisions, funds,
benefit of all agreements and all other interests arising to the
Transferor Companies (hereinafler collectively referred to as “the said

assels™) shall, without any further act or deed or without payment of

\“
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any duty or other charges, be transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 394 of the
Act, for all the estate, right, title and interest of the Transleror
Companies therein so as to become the property of the Transferce

Company.

Notwithstanding what is provided herein above, 1t is expressly
provided that in respect to such of the said assets ag are movable in
nature or are otherwise capable of being transferred by physical
delivery or by endorsement and delivery, the same shall be so
transferred by the Transferor Companies to the Transferee Company
after the Scheme is duly sanctioned and given effect to without
requiring, any further order of the Court or any deed or instrument of
conveyance for the same or without the payment of any duty or other
charges and shall become the property of the Transferee Company

accordingly.

On and from the Appointed Date, all liabilities, provisions, duties and
obligations including Income Tax and other statutory liabilities, if
any, of every kind, nature and description of the Transferor
Companies whether provided for or not in the books of accounts of
the Transferor Companies shall devolve and shall stand transferred or
be deemed to be transferred without any further act or deed, to the
Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date and shall be
the liabilities, provisions, duties and obligations of the Transferee

Company.

The assets/undertaking of the Transferor Companies, acquired by the
Transferor Companies after the Appointed Date bui prior to the
Effective Date, shall also without any further act, instrument or deed
stand transferred to or be deemed to have been transferred to the

Transferee Company upon the Scheme coming into effect.
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For avoidance of doubt, upon the Scheme coming into effect, all the
rights, title, interest and claims of the Transferor Companies i any
feasehold properties, including all the leases, of the Transferor
Companies shall, pursuant o Section 394(2) of the Act, without any
further act or deed, be transferred to and vested in or be deemed to
have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and 1t
shall be presumed that the same were executed by the Transferee

Company.

For avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing, 1t is clarified that upon the Scheme coming into cffect, all
consents, permissions, licenses, certificates, clearances, authorities,
powers of attorney given by, issued to or exccuted in favour of the
Transferor Companies shall stand transferred to the Transferce
Company as if the same were originally given by, issued to or
executed in favour of the Transferee Company and the Transferee
Company shall be bound b}; the terms thereof, the obligations and
duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same shall be
available to the Transferee Company. The Transferee Company shall
make applications to any Government Authority as may be necessary

113 this behalfll

To the extent there are inter-corporate loans, debentures/ debts and
claims, (including, amounts receivable, if any, by the Transferor
Companies from the Transferee Company or vice versa), the
obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end on the Scheme
coming into effect and a corresponding suitable effect shall be given

in the books of accounts and records of the Transferee Company and

~if required, the reduction/canceliation of such loans, debts and claims

(including, receivables) shall be reflected in the books of accounts and
records of the Transferee Company. For removal of doubts, it is
hereby clarified that from the Appointed Date, there would be no

accrual of interest or other charges in respect of such inter-corporate

2
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foans or debts (including receivables) balances between the Transteree
Company on the one hand and the Transferor Companies on the other

hand.

With effect from the Appointed Date, and subject to the provisions of
this Scheme, all debts, Habilities, guarantees, indemnities, contingent
liabilities, duties and obligations of every kind, nature, descrintion,
whether or not provided for in the books of accounts and whether
disclosed or undisclosed in the financial statements of the Transferor
Companies shali also stand transferred or deemed to have been
transferred  without any further act, instrument or deed to the
Transferee Company, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 391 1o
394 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, so as (o
become as and from the Appointed Date, the debis, liabilities,
guarantees, indemnities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations
of the Transferee Company without any consent of any third party or
other person who 1s a party to the contract or arrangements by virtue
of which such liabilities have arisen, in order to give effeci to ihe

provisions of this Clause.

The transfer and vesting of the Undertaking shail be subject to the
existing securities, charges, hypothecation and mortgages, if any,
subsisting over or in respect of the property and assets or any part

thereof of the Transferor Companies.

Provided that all the existing securities, mortgages, charges,
encumbrances or liens, if any, as on the Appointed Date and created
by the Transferor Companies afler the Appointed Date, over the assets
or any part thereof transferred to the Transferee Company by virtue of
this Scheme and in so far as such securities, mortgages, charges,
encumbrances or liens secure or relate to Liabilities of the Transferor
Companies, the same shall, after the amalgamation effective date,

continue to relate and attach to such assets or any part thereof io

g4d
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which they are refated or attached prior to the amalgamation effective
date and as are {ransferred to the Transferee Company, and such
securities, mortgages, charges, encumbrances or liens shall not relate
or attach 1o any of the other assets of the Transferee Company.

Provided further that afl the securities, mortgages, charges,
encumbrances or liens, if any, over the assets and properties ol the
Transferce Company or any part thereof which relate to the liabilities
and obligations of the Transferee Company prior to the amalgamation
effective date shall continue to relate only to such assets and
properties and shall not extend or attach to any of the assets and
properties of the Transferor Companies transferred to and vested in

the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme.

All the loans, advances and other facilities sanctioned to the
Transferor Companies by their bankers and financial institutions prior
to the Appointed Date, which are partly drawn or utilized shall be
deemed to be the loans and advances sanctioned to the Transferce
Company and the said loans and advances shall be drawn and utilized
either partly or fuily by the Transferor Companies from the Appointed
Date till the Bffective Date and all the loans, advances and other
facilities so drawn by the Transferor Companies {within the overall
limits sanctioned by their bankers and financial institutions) shall on
the Effective Date be treated as loans, advances and other facilities
made available to the Transferce Company and all the obligations of
the Transferor Companies under any loan agreement shall be
construed and shall become the obligation of the Transferee Compeany
without any further act or deed on the part of the Transferee

Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company is
expressly permitted to revise their respective financial statements and
returns along with prescribed forms, filings and annexure under the

relevant labour laws, Income tax, sales tax including value added tax,

&
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1.

Q.

service tax and other tax laws, and to claim refunds and/or credits for

dues and/or taxes paid.

The Transferee Company shall be entitled to file/revise its mcome tax
returns and other statutory returns of its own or the Transferor
Company, if required, and shall have the right to claim refunds,
advance tax credits, ete, if any, as may be required consequent to

implementation of this Scheme.

All tax assessment proceedings/appeals of whatsoever nature by or
against the Transferor Companies pending and/or arising at the
Appointed Date and relating to the Transferor Companies shall be
continued and/or enforced until the Effective Date as desired by the
Transferee Company. As and from the Bffective Date, the tax
proceedings shall be continued and enforced by or against the
Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent as
would or might have been continued and enforced by or against the

Transferor Companies, as the case maybe.

The aforementioned proceedings shall not abate or be discontinued
nor be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the
amalgamation of the Transferor Companies with the Transferee

Company or anything contained in the Scheme.

Any tax labilities under the Income Tax Act, 1961 or other applicable
Jlaws or regulations dealing with taxes (whether in the form of duties,
cesses, fees, levies or by whatever name called) aliocable or related to
the business of the Transferor Companies to the extent not provided
for or covered by tax provision in the accounts made as on the date
immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred to the
Transteree Company. Any surplus in the provision for such taxes

(including advance tax and tax deducted at source) as on the date

N
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q.

imimediately preceding the Appointed Date shall also be transferved to

the account of the Transferee Company.

Any refund under the Income Tax Act, 1961 or other applicable Jaws
or regulations dealing with taxes allocable or related to the business of
the Transferor Companies and due to the Transferor Companies
conseguent to the assessment made on the Transferor Companies and
for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date immediately
preceding the Appointed Date shall also belong to and be received by

the Transferece Company.

All taxes (including income tax, minimum alternate tax, service tax,
sales tax) paid or payable by the Transferor Companics on or before
the Appointed Date shall be on account of the Transferor Companies,
and in so far as it relates to the payment of taxes after the Appointed
Date, such taxes shali be deemed to be the corresponding tax paid by
the Transferee Company and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with

accordingly.

All taxes, benefits of any nature, duties, cesses or any other like
payments or deductions available to Transferor Companies under
Income Tax, Sales tax, Service tax ectc. or any tax deduction /
collection at source, tax credits, benefits of CENVAT credits, benefits
of input credits reiating o the period after the Appointed Date up to
the Effective date shall be deemed to have been on account of or paid
by the Translferee Company and the relevant authorities shall be
bound to transfer to the account of and give credit for the same to
Transferee Company upon the passing of the order on this Scheme by
the High Court or cowt upon relevant proof and documents being

provided to the said authorities.

28
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CONTRACTS, DEEDS, BONDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS
Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, ail contracts, deeds,
bonds, agreements and other instruments of whatsoever nature, to
which the Transferor Companies is the party, subsisting or having
effect immediately before or after the Effective date, shall remain in
full force and effect against or in favour of the Transferee Company
and may be enforced as fully and effectually, as il instead of the
Transferor Companies, the Transferee Company had been a party

thereto.

The transfor of the said assets and labilities of the Transforor
Companies to the Transferee Company and the continuance of all the
contracts or legal proceedings by or against the Transferce Company
shall not affect any contract or proceedings relating to the said assets
or the labilities already concluded by the Transferor Companies 051 0v

alter the Appointed Date.

The Transferce Company may, at any time after coming into effect of
this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required,
under any law or otherwise, execute deeds of confirmation in favour
of the secured creditors of the Transferor Companies or in favour of
any other party to any contract or arrangemeﬁt to which the Transferor
Companies is the party or aiy writings as may be necessary to be
executed in order to give formal effect 1 the above 1:;1‘()visions. The
Transferee Company shall under the 131'($visi0rls of this Scheme be

deemed to be authorised to execute any such writings on behalf of the

_Transferor Companies and to implement and carry out all such

formalities or compliance referred to above on the part/behalf of the

Transferor Companies to be carried out or performed.

Any inter se contracts between the Transferor Companies and the
Transferce Company shall stand adjusted and vest in the Transteree

Company upon the sanction of the Scheme and upor the Scheme

Puge 17 0026




a4,

0.

7.

a.

becoming effective. Transaction(s), if any, between the Transferor
Companies and Transferee Company after the appointed date and
until the effective date will be squared off in the books of accounts of

the Transferce Company upon the Scheme becoming effective.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All legal proceedings of whatever nature by or against the Transferor
Companies pending on the Effective Date, shall not be abated, be
discontinued or be, in any way, prejudicially affected by reason of the
transfer of the undertaking of the Transferor Companies or of
anything contained in this Scheme but the proceedings may be
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee
Company in the same manner and 1o the same extent,as it would or
might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the

Transferor Companies as if the Scheme had not been made.

OPERATIVE/EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme, though operative from the Appointed Date, shali be
effective from the last of the dates on which certified copy of order
under Section 391 and Section 394 of the Act of the Court are filed

with the office of the Registrar of Companics, Mumbai.

DISSOLUTION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANIES

Omn this Scheme, becoming effective as provided in Clause 5 above
; £ ! .

. the Transferor Companies shall stand dissolved without winding up.

STAFF, WORKMEN AND IﬁMPLOYEES OF TRANSFEROR
COMPANILES

All the employees of the Transferor Companies in service, if any, on
the date immediately preceding the date on which the Scheme takes
effect, i.e., the Effective Date, shall become the employees of the

Transferee Company on such date without any break or interruption in
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service and upon terms and conditions not less favorable than those

subsisting in the concerned Transferor Companies on the said date.

Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund, Superannuation Fund and any other
special fund or trusts created or existing for the benefit of the
employees of the Transferor Companies, 1f any, upon the Scheme
becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall stand substituted
for the Transferor Companies for all purposes and intents, whatsoever,
relating to the administration or operation of such schemes or funds or
in relation to the obligation to make contributions to the said funds in
accordance with the provisions of such funds. 1t is the intent that all
the rights, duties, powers and obligations of the Transferor Companies
in relation to such funds shall become those of the Transferee
Company. It is clarified that the services of the employees of the
Transferor Companies will be treated as having been continued for the

purpose of the aforesaid funds or provisions.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS BY TRANSFEROR COMPANIESE
TRANSFEREE COMPANY

From the Appointed Date until the Effective Date, the Transferor

Companies-

Shall stand possessed of all its assets and properties in {rust for the
i

Transferee Company.

Shail be deemed to have carried on business and activities for and on
behalf of and for the benefit and on account of the Transferee
Company. Any income or profit accruing to the Transferor Companies
and all costs, charges and expenses or loss arising or incwring by the
Transferor Companies on and from the Appointed Date shall, for all
purposes and intents, be treated as the income, profits, costs, charges,

expenses ot logs, as the case may be, of the Transleree Company.
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9.1

9.2

9.3

R

Till such times, the pames of the Bank accounts of the ransferor
Companies would be replaced with that of the Transferee Company,
the Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate the banks
accounts of the Transferor Companies in the name of the Transferor

Companies in go far as may be necessary.

Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-clause ‘8.17 and ‘8.27
above, the Transferor Companies as well as the Transleree Company
shall be free to conduct their respective businesses and to take all

steps in this regard.

CONSIDERATION

There will be no issue and allotment of shares by the Transferee
Company in consideration of amalgamation of the Transferor
Companies with the Transferce Company due to the following

reasons-

the entire share capital of the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 1

is held by the Transferee/ Applicant Company;

the entire share capital of the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 2

is held by the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 1; and

the entire share capital of the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 3

is hetd by the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 1;

The Transferee Company undertakes not to transfer any of the shares
held by it of the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 1, the
Transferor / Applicant Company No. 2 and the Transferor / Applicant

Company No. 3 till the amalgamation is completed.

The Transferor / Applicant Company No. 1 the Transferor / Applicant

Company No. 2 and the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 3
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.

undertake not to increase its share capital by issuing shares to any

entity other than Transferee Company till amalgamation is completed.

UPON THIS SCHEME BECOMING EFERCTIVE

Entire issued share capital of the Transferor Companies shall

automatically stand cancelled.

The share certificates representing the shares held by the Transferce/
Applicant Company in the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 1 and
share certificates representing the shares held by the Transferor /
Applicant Company Neo. | in the Transferor / Applicant Company No.
2 and the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 3 shall be deemed to
be cancelled without any further application, act, instrument or deed

for cancellation thereof by Transferee Company.

The paid ~up share capital of the Transferor / Applicant Company No.
2 and the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 3 held by the
Transferor / Applicant Company No. land the paid —up share capital
the Transferor / Applicant Company No. 1 held by the Transferee
Company and cross holding shareholding among the Transferor

Companies would stand cancelled.

The Authorized Share Capital of the Transferor Companies will get
merged to form new Authorized Share Capital of the Transferee
Company. Accordingly, the Authorised Share Capital of the
Transferee Company shall stand increased to that extent without
payment of any fees or charges to the Registrar of Companies and/or
to any other government autherity and the Memorandum of
Association of the Transferee Company shall without any further act,
mstrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and amended
pursuant to Sections 16, 31, 94 and 394 and other applicable
provisions of the Act. Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of

the Transferee Company shall read as under:
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“The Authorised  Share Capital of the Company is Rs.
2,351,000,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Thirty Five Crore and Ten
Lakh only) consisting of 235,100,000 (Twenty Three Crore and

Filty One Lakh) equity shares of Rs. 10 each.”

The Transferee Company shall increase/modify its Authorised Share
Capital for tmplementing the terms of the Scheme, to the extent

necessary,

On this Scheme becoming ecffective, the shareholders of the

Transferee Company and the Transferor Companies shall be deemed

to have also accorded their approval under all relevant provisions of

the Act for giving effect to the provisions contained in this Scheme.

ACCOUNTING FOR AMALGAMATION

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the
appomted date, the Transferee Company shall account for
amalgamation of  the Transferor Companies in its books of accounts
as per the applicable accounting principles prescribed under Indian

Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India and notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs

read together with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015, It would inter-alia includes the following-

All the assets and liabilities recorded in the books of the Transferor
Companies shall be transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company pursuant to the Scheme and shall be recorded by the
Transferee Company at the respective book values as appearing in the

books of the Transferor Companies, as on the Appointed Date.

[nter-company balances, if any, will stand cancelled.
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The difference, being excess/deficit arising pursuant to the Scheme
shall be accounting based on the Indian accounting principal

prescribed under the Ind AS-103.

All the reserves of the Transferor Companies under different heads
shall become the corresponding reserves of the Transferee Company.
The debit balance of the Profit & Loss Account of the
Transleror/Transferce Companies will be adjusted/ offset against the
credit balance of the Profit & Loss Account/General Reserve of the

Transferor/Transferee Comparny.

Accounting policies of the Transferor Companies will be harmonized

with that of the Transferece Company following the amalgamation.

I there is any difference in accounting policies of the Transferor
Companies and that of the Transferee Company, the impact of the
same till the appointed date will be quantified and same should be
appropriately adjusted and reported in accordance with the applicable
accounting, rules and principles, so as to ensure that the financial
statement of the Transferee Company reflects the financial position on

the basis of consistent accounting policies.

VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS, ETC,

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the resolutions of the
Transferor Companies as are considered necessary by the Board of
Directors of the Transferee Company which are validly subsisting be

considered as resolutions of the Transferee Company.

If any such resolutions have any monetary limits approved under the
provisions of the Act or of any other applicable statutory provisions,
then the said limits, as are considered necessary by the Board of
Directors of the Transferee Company, shall be added to the limits, if

any, under the like resolutions passed by the Transferee Company.
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PART-111

CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME

This Seheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to:

The scheme being approved by the requisite majority in number and
value of such classes of persons including the respective members
and/or ereditors of Transferee Company and Transferor Companies as

may directed by the High Court,

The sanction of the High Court under Section 391 to 394 of the said
Act in favour of Transferee Company and Transferor Companies
under the said provisions and to the necessary Order under Section

394 of the said Act being obtained.

Certified or authenticated copy of the Order of the High Court
sanctioning the Scheme being filed with the Registrar of Companies,
Mumbai by Transteree Company and Transferor Companies as may

be applicable.

APPLICATION TO HIGH COURT

The Transferor Companies and Transferece Company hereto shali,
make application under Section 391 to Section 394 of the Act to the
Hen’ble High Court for sanctioning this Scheme and for digsolution of
the Transferor Companies without winding up and other connecied

matters.

MODIFICATIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Transferor Companies and the Transferee Company through their
respective Board of Directors may make or assent, from time to time,
on behalf of all persons concerned, to any modifications or
amendments to this Scheme or to any conditions or limitations which

the Hon’ble High Court and/or any authorilies under the law may

Fonar 2 nf 26




16.

17.

deem fit to approve of or impose and to resolve all doubts or
difficulties that may arise for carrying out this Scheme and to do and
execute all acts, deeds, matters and things necessary for carrying the

Scheme into effect,

In order to give effect to this Scheme or to any modifications or
amendments thereof, the Board of Directors of the Transferce
Company may give and are authorised to give all such directions as
may be necessary including directions for settling any question, doubt

or difficulty whatsoever that may arise.

In the event that any conditions are imposed by any coﬂupetent
authority or the Court which the Transferor Companies or the
Transferee Company find un-acceptable for any reason whatsoever,
then the Transferor Companies and/or the Transferee Company shall

be entitled to withdraw the Scheme.

EFFECT OF NON - RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

In the event of this Scheme [ailing to take effect, this Scheme shall
become null and void and in that case no rights and liabilities
whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter-se by the Transferor
Companies and the Transferce Company or their sharcholders or
employees or any other person. The Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company shall bear and pay their respective costs, charges

and expenses in connection with this Scheme.

COST CHARGES AND EXPENSES CONNECTED WITH THE
SCHEME

All costs, charges and expenses of the Transferor Companies and the
Transferee Company incurred in relation to or in connection with this
Scheme or incidental to the completion of the Amalgamation of the

Transferor Companies with the Transferee Company in pursuance of

H
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this Seheme, shall be borne and may be paid by the Transferee
Company from its {ree reserves. This includes, but not limited to,
legal and professional fees paid to Company Secretaries, Chartered
Accountants, Advocates and other professionals, lees paid on issuc of
shares, registration fees, stamp paper charges ete. However, in the
event of the Scheme becoming invalid for any reason whatsoever, all
costs, charges and expenses relating to the amalgamation exercise or
mcidental therete shall be borne proportionately by the Transferor

Companies and the Transferee Company.,

DIRECYTORS OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANIES
That the Directors of Transferor Companies shall cease to hold office

as Directors thereof with effect from the Effective date.

SEVERABILITY

1f any part of the Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason
whatsoever, the same shall not, subject to the decision of the
Transferor Companies and the Trapsfevee Company, affect the

validity or implementation of the other parts/provisions of the scheme.

XXX
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Sanjay Batra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

802, Bhim Nagar Chowk, New Railway Road, Gurgaon-122001, Cell: 9811230040

Independent Chartered Accountant Certificate

We, Chartered Accounts of Indo Rama Synthetics India Limited ("IRSL” or the “"Company™) have
examined the proposed Draft Scheme of Amalgamation under Section 391 to 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 between the Company, having its registered office at A -31, MIDC Industrial
Area, Butibori, Nagpur, Maharashtra 441122 and Indo Rarmma Renewables Ltd having its registered
office at A -31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur, Maharashtra 441122 (IRRL), a whotly
owned subsidiary of the Company and Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Ltd having its registerad
office at A -31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur, Maharashtra 441122 (IRRRL), a whoily
owned step down subsidiary of the Company and Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Ltd having its
registered office at A -31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur, Maharashtra 441122 {IRRPL), a
wholly owned step down subsidiary of the Company and their respective shareholders and
creditors ("the Scheme”) which has been approved by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors
of Inde Rama Synthetics India Limited at its meeting held on 31% August 2016,

Based on our examination of Draft Scheme and according to information and explanation given to
us, we note that the Drafl Scheme entails the amalgamation of IRRPL, IRRRL, IRRL with parent
IRSL.

We further note that as a result of the proposed amalgamation, the shares of IRRPL and IRRRL
held by IRRL and shares of IRRL held by IRSL will stand cancelled, with no issuance of shares or
payment of other consideration by IRSL. Since, the shareholders and shareholding pattern of IRSL
remain same, it is treated as ‘no change’ in shareholding pattern and accordingly no valuation
process is applicable to the transactions contemplated by the aforesaid scheme.

A certificate copy of the Draft Scheme duly authenticated on behalf of the Company and certified
copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors of the company approving the Draft Scheme are
attached as Annexure I and II, respectively, to this Certificate and are stamped by us only for the
purpese of identification.

This Certificate is issued at the request of the Company in accordance with circular no
CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30,2015 read with regulation 11 and 37 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for its onward submission to
the Bombay Stock Exchange and Nationat Stock Exchange of India Limited and should not be used
for any other purpose or to be distributed to any other parties without our written consent.

For Sanjay Batra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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REPORT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE OF INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) LIMITED
RECOMMENDING THE DRAFT SCHEME OF AMALAGAMATION BETWEEN iNDO
RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) LIMITED (TRANSFEREE COMPANY), INDO RAMA
RENEWABLES LIMITED (TRANSFEROR COMPANY NO. 1), INDO RAMA
RENEWABLES RAMGARH LIMITED (TRANSFEROR COMPANY NQ. 2), INDO RAMA
RENEWABLES PORBANDAR LIMITED (TRANSFEROR COMPANY NO. 3) IN THEIR
MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 31°" AUGUST 2016.

fiembers Present:

i) Mr. Ashok Kumar Ladha - Independent Director
(DIN 00089360) {Chairperson of Audit Committee)

i) Mr. Vishal L.ohia - Whole-time Director (Member)
(DIN 00206458)

iy  Mr. Suman Jyoti Khaitan - Independent Director (Member)
(DIN 00023370)

iv)  Ms. Ranjana Agarwal - Independent Director (Member)

(DIN 03340032)

In Attendance:

i) Mr. Om Prakash Lohia -~ Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN 00206807}
it) Mr. Anant Kishore - CEO
(DIN 05262142)
iii)  Mr. Sanjeev Aggarwal - President & CFO
(M. No. 089369)
iv)  Mr. Mukul Dixit - President & Site Head
(PAN: ACQPD2134C)
V) Mr. Jayantk Sood - Head-Corporate & CS
(M. No.. FCS 4482)
Invitee:
i Mr. Yogesh Gupta - Internal Auditor
(M. No. 093214)
i) Mr. Tarun Gupta - BSR and Associates

(M. No. 095875)

1 Preamble and Background:

A draft Scheme of Amalgamation between Indo Rama Synthetics (India} Limited
(Transferee Company)}, Indo Rama Renewables Limited (Transferor Company No. 1),
Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited (Transferor Company No. 2}, Indo Rama
Renewables Porbandar Limited (Transferor Company No. 3) and their respective
shareholders and creditors under Sections 391 to 394 of the Act (‘the Draft Scheme’)
was placed before the Audit Committee for consxderat/oﬂiand for proyiding its
recommendation on the Draft Scheme. pepns

INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) 1LTD, \ Sy 2 -
Corporate Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, [n‘d« %1‘ 91’24 4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070
Registered Cffice & Manufacturing Complex : A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur - 441122, Maharashtra, India, Tel 07104-663000 / 01, Fax : 07104-663200
E-mall ; corp@indorama-ind.com « Website ; www.indoramaindia.com
CIN: L17124MH71986PLC166615
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This report is made in order to comply with the requirements of Paragraph 1.A.3(c) of
Annexure 1 of Circular No. CIR/ICFD/CMD/16/2015 daied November 30, 2015 (‘SEBI
Circular’) issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBV) after faking inio
consideration, inter afia, the following-

i Draft Scheme of Amalgamation;

ii.  Fairness Opinion Report dated 31% August 2016 issued by M/s Corparate Capital
Ventures Pvt. Limited, SEB! Registration No. INM 000012278, a GER! registered
Category-I Merchant Banker;

iii.  Audited financial statement of Transferor Companies and Transferee Company
as on 31%' March 20156

After detailed consideration of the aforesaid documents and discussion on the same, the
Audit Committee, noted, amongst others, the aforesaid and gave its recommendation as
given below in Paragraph 3 of this report.

Salient features of the Draft Scheme:

The following points, amongst others, were noted by the Audit Committee:

a) Proposed Appointed date of April 01, 2016;
b) Draft Scheme provides for the merger of Transferor Company No. 1, Transferor

Company No. 2, Transferor Company No. 3 with Transferee Company with
following benefits-

i. Greater efficiency in resource management, cost savings resulting from
rationalization, standardization and simplification of business processes.

i. Improved organizational capability arising from pooling of financial,
managerial and technical resources.

ili. Re-aligning the business operations as part of overall business
reorganization plan.

iv.  Avoiding un-necessary duplication of costs of administration, distribution,
selling and marketing costs.

v. Maximize the overall shareholders value by strengthening its core
competencies.

¢) The Audit Committee took note of the fact that the Valuation Report is not
applicable since the draft scheme provides for the following-

. the entire share capital of the Transferor 1 is held by the Transferee
Company;

i. the entire share capital of the Transferor Company No. 2 is held by the
Transferor Company No. 1; and

li. the entire share capital of th/T’f’nSfe;T@r No. 3 is held by the Transferor
\k N R \‘ O;’ B

Company No. 1;
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3  Recommendation of the Audit Commitiee

The Audit Committee, after perusal, deliberation and review of the draft Scheme, along
with Fairness Opinion and other documents listed above including benefits as mentioned
above finds that the transactions as listed in the draft Scheme, along with the appointed
date given thereof to be in the interesi of all the companies involved, their shareholders
and other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Audit Committee approves proposed the draft
Scheme and recommends the same fo the Board of Directors of the Company, Securities
and Exchange Board of India, the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited for their favorable consideration.
For and on behalf of Audit Committee of
indo Rama Syr\thetics (india) Limited

P \
(:;5:\ H/"//f
Flace: Gurgaon (Chairm@nfof Audit Committee)
Date: 31% August 2016 P
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# PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL-
NOT FOR PUBLIC CIRCIMATION #

To,

Board of Directors

INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS {INDIA) LIMITED
31-A, MIDC Industrial Area,
Butihori-441122

Dear Sirs,

Subject: Fairness Opinion on Valuation of Shares for the purpose of proposed
Amalgamation of Indo Rama Renewables Limited, Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh
Limited and indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited (“Amalgamating Company or
Transferor Companies”) with Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited (“Amalgamated

Company or Transferee Company”)}.

We, M/s Corporate CapitalVentures Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘CCV'),
SEBI registered Merchant Bankers, having license no. INM000012276 have been
approached by you to provide a fairness opinion on the valuation done by M/s Sanjay
Batra & Co, Chartered Accountants, having their office at 802, Bhim Nagar Chowk, New
Railway Road, Gurgaon-122001, who were the appointed valuers for the proposed
Amalgamation of Indo Rama Renewables Limited, Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh
Limited and Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited {(“Amalgamating Company or
Transferor Companies”) with Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited (“Amalgamated

Company or Transferee Company”).

Since the Report on Valuation of Shares pursuant to the Scheme Of Amalgamation
under Sections 391 — 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 between Indo Rama Renewables
Limited, indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited and Indo Rama Renewables
Porbandar Limited (“Amalgamating Company or Transferor Companies”) withv In_gi_o

Rama Synthetics (India} Limited (“Amalgamated Company or Transfem[gg Coﬁfa’pany”‘)

and its Shareholders and Creditors (hereinafter referred as the ”Sche{ﬂrp,

.
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for all the Companies, we deem it imperative to issue a consolidated fairness opinion

in relation to the said report.

Scope and Purpose of Fairness Opinion

The Management of the Company in terms of the Engagement Leiter, has requesied
Corporate CapitalVentures Private Limited, to submit an independent opinion to the
Board of Directors and Audit Committee of the Company on the fairness of the
valuation of share exchange ratio (the “Fairness Opinion”} recommended by the
Valuer. The scope of this Fairness Opinion includes commenting on the fairness of the
valuation of share exchange ratio recommended by the Valuer and not on the fairness

or economic rationale of the proposed scheme.

The purpose of this Fairness Opinion is to be submitted to the Stock Exchange by, the
Company, in compliance with Regulation 11, Regulation 37 and Regulation 94 of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November
30, 2015. This opinion is restricted to meet the above mentioned purpose only and
may not be used for any other purpose whatsoever or to meet the requirement of any

other laws, rules, regulations and statutes.

Sources of the Information

We have received the following information from the management of Amalgamating
Company and Amalgamated Company:

1. Proposed Scheme of amalgamation under Sections 391 — 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 between Indo Rama Renewables Limited, Indo Rama Renewables
Ramgarh Limited and Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited
(“Amalgamating Company or Transferor Companies”}) with Indo Rama

Synthetics {India) Limited (“Amalgamated Company. or Transferee Company”)

and its Shareholders and Creditors.
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2. Report on Valuation of Shares by M/s Sanjay Batra & Co, Chartered
Accountants, dated August 31, 2016.

Fairness Opinion

We in the capacity of SEB| registered Merchant Bankers do hereby certify that:

the opinion of M/s Sanjay Batra & Co, Chartered Accountants, that there would be NO
SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO, as Indo Rama Renewable Limited, Indo Rama Renewable

Ramgarh Limited and Indo Rama Renewable Porbandar Limited are wholly owned/step
down subsidiaries of Indo Rama Synthetics {India) Limited and no equity shares will be
issued and allotted by Transferee Company in lieu of the shares so cancelled;

ON THE BASIS OF THE AFORESAID JUSTIFICATION IS FAIR AND REASONABLE.

Disclaimer:
. Our scope of work did not include the following:-

¢ An audit of the financial statements of any of the Companies discussed in this
opinion.

e Carrying out a market survey / financial feasibility for the Business of any of the
Companies discussed in this opinion.

e Financial and Legal due diligence of any of the Companies discussed in this
opinion.

e It may be noted that in carrying out our work we have relied on the integrity of
the information provided to us for the purpose, and other than reviewing the
consistency of such information, we have not sought to carry out an independent
verification, thereof,

* We assume no responsibility and make no representations with respect to the

the Company /valuer.
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We have not carried out any independent verification of the accuracy and
completeness of all information as stated above, We have not reviewed any
other documents other than those stated above.

The opinion must not be made available or copied in whole or in part to any
other person without our express written permission save and except for the
limited purpose of this cpinion.

We understand that the management of the Company/ valuer during our
discussions with them would have drawn our attention to all such information
and matters, which may have impact on our opinion. In this opinion we have
included all such information and matters as was received by us from
management of the Company/valuer.

The management of the Company or their related parties is prohibited from
using this opinion other than for its sole limited purpose and not to make a copy
of this opinion available to any party other than those required by statute for
carrying out the limited purpose of this opinion, This opinion is not meant for
meeting any other regulatory or disclosure requirements, save and except as
specified as above, under any Indian or Foreign Law, Statute, Act, Guidelines or
similar instructions. We would not be responsible for any litigation or other
actual or threatened claims.

in rendering the opinion, CCV has not provided legal, regulatory, tax, accounting,
actuarial or investment advise and accordingly we do not assume any
responsibility in respect thereof. Further we have assumed that the Scheme will
be implemented on the terms and conditions as set out in the draft scheme
without any material change to or waiver of its terms and conditions.

We hereby declare that we do not have any direct or indirect interest in the
Company/assets valued.

The report is issued on the understanding that it is solely for the use of the

person to whom it is addressed and for the purpos déseribed above. We will not

=qther than those to

e la.ol,

W\nﬁm

L,
4 ofS e



Corporate Capital Ventures e S,
{SERT Registered Catesory | Morchand Bankers) R i,

# PRIVATE ANG CONFIDENTIAL-
NOT FOR PUBLIC CIRCULATION #f

whom it is addressed.

e in no event, will CCV, its Directors and employees be liable to any party for any
indirect, incidental, consequential, special or exemplary damages (even if such
party has been advised of the possibility of such damages) arising from any
provision of this opinion.

Thanking You

For Corporate Capital Ventures Private Limited

Director

Place: New Delhi

Date - August 31, 2016




Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Pre and Post Shareholding Pattern as on 31-Aug-16

A) Promoters : Pre Post
1(a). |Indian Promoters : No of Shares! %age] No of Shares Y%age
Mt O.P. Lohia 37984000 25.02 37984000 2502
Mrs. Urmila Lohia 18184518 11.68 18184518 11,98
(h). |NRI Promoter:
M/s. Brookgrange Investments Lid. 43288057 28.51 43288057 28.51
{¢). |Reiatives and Associates :
Mrs. Ritika Kumar 414796 0.27 414788 0.27
Mr. Aloke Lohia 99200 0.07 99200 0.07
Mr. Vishat Lohia 1137896 0.75 1137896 0.75
Ms. Aradhana Lohia 313256 0.21 313256 0.21
Mrs. Rimple Lohia 239840 0.16 239840 0.18
Mr. Yashovardhan L.chia 249888 0.16 249888 0.18
Total Promoters Holding (A) ©:101911561| 67.13 101911551 67.13
B} Others :
2 {a}. |Fls & Banks
IFCI 2061866 1.36 2061866 1.36
LIC . 3005152 1.98 3005152 1.98
United India Insurance Co. Ltd. 613536 0.40 6135636 0.40
The Criental Insurance Company Limited 388162 0.26 388162 0.26
Bank's 102471 0.07 102474 0.07
Sub Total 6171187 4.06 6171187 4.06
{b). iMutuai Funds & Flis.
Mutual Fund {Others) 10556 0.01 10556 0.01
Flls (Various Accounts) 14182942 9.34 14182942 9.34
Sub Total 14193498 9.35 14193498 9.35
3 The Bank of New York — Depositary for GDRs. 10290560 6.78 10290560 6.78
4 Public {including Domestic companies) 19255446{ 12.68 19256446 12.68
Total Others (B} 49910691| 32.87 49910691 32.87
GRAND TOTAL (A+B) 151822242( 100.00 151822242 100.00

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31% August 2016

Corporate Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India. Tel : 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070
Registered Office & Manufacturing Complex : A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur - 441122, Maharashtra, Indta. Tel ; 07 104-863000 / 01, Fax : 07104-663200

for inde Rama Synthetics (India) Limitgg

& ,77@)

iy
V/

Jayantk Sood
Head-Corporate & Company Secretary
(ICS1 Membership No.: FCS 4482)

INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) LTD.

E-mail ; corp@indorama-ind.com » Websile : www.indoramaindia.com
CINL17124MH1986PLC166615




SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF INDO RAMA RENEWABLES LIMITED
AS ON 3157 AUGUST 20116 (PRE- AMALGAMATION)

Sr. Folio | Name and Address of Shareholders No. of Nominal % of
No. Mo, shares vaiue total
held paid-up
capital
i 0001 Indo Rama Synthetics (india) Lid. (IRSL} 3,88.43,677 39,84,36,770 99.99

20" Fioor, DLF Sguare, DLF Phase-ll,
NH-8, Gurgaon-122002

2 0062 | Mr. Om Prakash Lohia (Nominee of IRSL) 1 10 0.01
R-89, Greater Kailash, Part-|
New Delhi-110 048

3 Q003 | Mr. Vishal Lohia (Nominee of IRSL.) 1 10
R-69, Greater Kailash, Pari-|
New Delhi-110 048

4 0005 | Mr. Anant Kishore (Nominee of IRSL) 1 10
7-A, Greenview Apartment,
Sector-15A, Noida-201301

5 0007 | Mr. Jayant Sood (Nominee of IRSL) 1 10
WW-93, SF, Malibu Town,
Sohna Road, Gurgaoh

6 0008 | Mr. B. S. Rana (Nominee of IRSL) 1 10
RZ-1-14, Mahavir Enclave,
New Delhi-110 045

7 0009 | Mr. Anupam Singhania 1 10
{(Nominee of IRSL) Flat No. 141,

Shri Niketan Apartment, Sector-7,
Plot No.1, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075

TOTAL 3,98,43,683 | 39,84,36,830 100
Note: Post Amalgamation shareholding paitern of Inde Rama Renewables Limited is not
applicable as it will get dissolved without winding up pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation.

for Indo Rama Renewables Limited

Director (DIN 07529393)
Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31% August 2016

INDO RAMA RENEWABLES LIMITED
Corperate Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India. Tel : 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070
E-maii : info@irrl.in * Website : www.irrl.in

CIN : J40106HR201 2PLC045840
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF INDO RAMA RENEWABLES RAMGARH LIMITED
AS ON 3157 AUGUST 2016 (PRE- AMALGAMATION)

Sr. | Folio | Name and Address of Shareholders No. of Nominal % of
No. No. shares value iotal
held paid-tip
capital
1 0001 | Indo Rama Renewabies Lid. (IRRL) 49,994 4,99,940 99.99
20" Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-,
NH-8, Gurgaon-122002
2 | 0003 | Mr. Vishal Lohia (Nominee of IRRL) 1 10
R-69, Greater Kailash, Part- 0.01
New Delhi-110 048
3 0005 | Mr. Anant Kishore (Nominee of IRRL) 1 10
7-A, Greenview Apartment,
Sector-15A, Noida-201301
4 0007 | Mr. Jayant Sood (Nominee of IRRL) 1 10
WW-93, SF, Malibu Town,
- Sohna Road, Gurgaon
5 0008 | Mr. B. S. Rana (Nominee of iIRRL) 1 10
RZ-1-14, Mahavir Enclave,
New Delhi-110 045
6 0009 | Mr. Anupam Singhania 1 10
{Nominee of IRRL) Flat No. 141,
Shri Niketan Apartment, Sector-7,
Plot No.1, Pwarka, New Delhi-110075
7 0010 | Mr. Sanjay Syal (IRRL) 1 10
Flat No. 4/308, 2nd Floor, Bhagwati
Sadan, Opp. Sector-12A, Old Delhi Road,
Gurgaon-122001
TOTAL 49,994 4,99,940 100

Note: Post Amalgamation shareholding pattern of Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited is
not applicable as it will get dissolved without winding up pursuant to the Scheme of

Amalgamation,

Place: Gurgaon
31% August 2016

Date:

for Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited

INDO RAMA RENEWABLES RAMGARH LIMITED

I

g

i

Vikas Sehgal

Director (DIN 07529393)

o

Regd. Office : 20th Floos, DLF Square, DLF Phaze-2, MH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India.
Tel : 0124-4997000, Fax - 0124-4997070
CIN - J40300HR2012PLC046070 :




NEDC FRAR

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF INDO RAMA RENEWABLES PORBANDAR LTD.
AS ON 3157 AUGUST 2016 (PRE- AMALGAMATION)

Sr. Folio | Name and Address of Shareholders No. of Nominal % of
No. No. shares value total
held paid-up
capital
1 0001 | Indo Rama Renewables Lid. (IRRL) 49,954 4,099,940 99.99

20" Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-il,
NH-8, Gurgaon-122002

2 0003 | Mr. Vishal Lohia (Nominee of IRRL) 1 10
R-69, Greater Kailash, Part-i 0.01
New Dethi-110 048

3 0005 | Mr. Anant Kishore (Nominee of IRRL) 1 10
7-A, Greenview Apartment,
Sector-15A, Noida-201301

4 0007 | Mr. Jayant Sood (Nominee of IRRL) 1 10
WW-93, 8F, Malibu Town,
Sohna Road, Gurgaon

5 0008 | Mr. B. S. Rana (Nominee of IRRL) 1 10
RZ-1-14, Mahavir Enclave,
New Delhi~110 045

6 0009 | Mr. Anupam Singhania 1 10
(Nominee of IRRL) Fiat No. 141,

Shri Niketan Apartment, Sector-7,
Plot No.1, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075

7 0010 | Mr. Sanjay Syai (IRRL) 1 10
Flat No. 4/308, 2nd Floor, Bhagwati
Sadan, Opp. Sector-12A, Old Delhi Road,
Gurgaon-122001

TOTAL 49,994 4,99,940 100

Note: Post Amalgamation shareholding pattern of Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited is
not applicable as it will get dissolved without winding up pursuant to the Scheme of
Amalgamation.

for Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited

Vikas Sehgal
Director (DIN 07529393)

he

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31% August 2016

INDO RAMA RENEWABILLES PORBANDER LIMITED
Regd. Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India.
Tel : 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070
CIN: U40102HR2012PLC0O460H6



The financial detalls and capital evolufion of the transfereeflresulting and transferor/demerged
companies for the previous 3 years as per the audited staterment of Accounts:

Name of the Company: indo Rama Synthetics (lndia) Limited
(Rs. in Crores)

2015-16 2014-15 2613-14
Equity paid up Capital i51.82 151,82 i51.82
Reserves and surplus 439.82 402.09 441.89
Net surplus / {deficit) in the statement of Profit and Loss 180.18 142.45 182.25
Net Worth 591.64 553.91 593.71
Miscellaneous Expenditure * - -
Secured Loans 321.43 372.54 511.02
Unsecured Loans - - -
Fixed Assets (net) 951.92 941.83 1059.89
income from Operations (net) 2535.65 2761.38 2629.12
Total Income 2666.53 2771.19 2873.13
Total Expenditure 2626.19 2805.21 2898.4
Profit / (loss) before tax -59.66 -34.02 2527
Profit / {loss)after Tax 56.00 -21.53 -8.18
Cash profit / {loss) -39.20 82.56 105.88
EPS/(l.oss per share) 3.69 (1.42) (0.54)
Book value 38.97 36.48 39.11

* Assumed to be balance sheet item.

Note: The financials should not be more than 6 months old. In such cases additional columin may
be added to provide the latest financials.

Please note that for existing Listed Company, provide the last Annual Report and the audited /
unaudited financials of the latest quarter (were it is due) accompanied mandatorily by the Limited
Review Report of the auditor.

for Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited

-
{/ 4 o
Gy )
Jayantk Sood
Head-Corporate & Company Secretary

{ICSI Membership No.: FCS 4482)

INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) LTD.

Corporate Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgacn - 122002, Haryana, India. Tel : 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070
Registered Office & Manufacturing Complex : A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur - 441122, Maharashira, india. Tel : 07104-663000 / 01, Fax : 07104-663200
E-mait : corp@indorama-ind.com » Website : www.inderamaindia.com
CIN : L.17124MH1986P1.C166615

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31™ August 2016




The financial details and capital evolution of the transfercefresulting and transfercr/demerged
companies for the previous 3 years as per the audited statement of Accounis:

Name of the Company: Indo Rama Renewables Limited

(Rs. in Crores)

2015-16 2014-15 201314
Equity paid up Capital 3984.37 3668437 3698.48
Reserves and surplus -146.43 -126.75 -107 54
Net surplus / (deficit) in the statement of Profit and Loss -146.43 -126.75 -107.54
Net Worth 3837.94 3857.62 3580.94
Miscellaneous Expenditure * - - -
Secured Loans - - -
Unsecured Loans 4356.98 4534.38 4545 .49
Fixed Assets (net) 275.10 279.55 318.26
income from Operations (net) 0.50 7.70 0
Total income 0.50 7.70 0
Total expenditure 20.17 26.92 63.30
Profit / (loss) before tax -19.67 -19.22 -63.30
Profit / (loss)after Tax -19.67 -19.22 -53.30
Cash profit / (loss) -16.22 -18.75 -62.36
EPS/{Loss per share) {0.05) (0.05) {0.17)
Book value 9.63 9.68 9.71

* Assumed to be balance sheet item.

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31-Aug-2016

for Indo Rama Renewables L.imited

il

INDO RAMA RENEWABILES LIMITED
Corporate Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India. Tel : 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070

E-mail : info@irrl.in * Website : www.irrl.in

CIN : J40106HR 201 2P1.C045840

Vikas Sehgal

Director (DIN 07529393)
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The financial details and capital evolution of the transferee/resuiting and transferor/demerged
companies for the previous 3 years as per the audited statement of Accouriits:

Name of the Company: Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited

{Rs. in Crores)

2015-16 20114-15 2013-14
Equity paid up Capital 5.00 5.00 5.00
Reserves and surplus -8.96 -8.05 -6.54
Net surplus / (deficit) in the statement of Profit and Loss -8.96 -8.05 £.54
Net Worth -3.98 -3.05 ~1.54
Miscellaneous Expenditure ® -
Secured Loans - - -
Unsecured l.oans 166.49 232.60 232.60
Fixed Assets (net) 80.87 80.87 79.39
Income from Operations (net) - - -
Total income ' - - -
Total expenditure 0.91 1.50 3.87
Profit / {loss) before tax -0.91 -1.50 -3.87
Profit / {loss)afier Tax -0.61 -1.50 -3.87
Cash profit / (loss) -0.91 -1.50 -3.87
ERPS/(l.oss per share) (1.83) (3.00) (7.75)
Book value (7.92) (6.10) (3.08)

* Assumed to be balance sheet item.

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31-Aug-2016

for Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited

~ ol

Vikas Sehgal
Director (DIN 07529393)

INRO RAMA RENEWABLES RAMGARH LIMITED

5|

Regd. Office : 20th Fleor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India.
Tel : §124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070
CIN ¢+ U40300HR2012P1LCO46070



The financial details and capital evolution of the transferee/resulting and transferor/demerged
companies for the previous 3 years as per the audited statement of Accounts:

Name of the Company: Indo Rama Renewabies Porbandar Limited

(Rs. in Crores)

2015-16 2014-15 2013-14

Equity paid up Capital 5.00 5.00 5.00
Reserves and surplus -6.34 -5.43 -4.18
Net surplus / {deficit) in the statement of Profit and Loss -6.34 5,43 -4.18
Net Worth -1.34 -0.43 0.82
Miscellaneous Expendifure * - - -

Secured Loans - - -

Unsecured Loans 100.20 245,39 245.39
Fixed Assets (nef) 22.80 22.80 20.66
Income from Qperations (nef) - - -

Total income - - -

Total expenditure 0.91 1.25 1.64
Profit / (loss) before tax ~0.91 -1.25 -1.64
Profit / (loss)after Tax -0.91 -1.25 -1.64
Cash profit / (loss) -0.91 -1.25 -1.64
EPS/{l.oss per share) (1.82) (2.51) (3.28)
Book value (2.68) {0.86) 1.64

* Assumed to be balance sheet item.

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31-Aug-2016

INDO RAMA RENEWABLES PORBANDER LIMITED

for Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited

Vikas Sehgal
Director (DIN 07529393)

Regd. Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India.
Tel: 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070

CIN: U40102HR2012PLCO46056
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A lxpenses
() Cost of materals consmnal 50957 554,44
(b} Clanges in inventories of Tinishad goods snd work-in-progress 4.1 (7234
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(b Other ¢ 102,76 99.78
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B S R and Associates

Chartered Accountants

Building No.10, 8th Floor, Tower-B Telephone: + 91124 2358 610
DLF Cyber City, Phase - i Fax: + 91124 2358613
Gurgaon - 122 002 {India)

Review Report ta Board of DHrectors of Tndo Rama Syntheties (India) Limited

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results (‘the Statement’) of Indo
Rama Synthetics (India) Limited (‘the Company’) for the quarter ended 30 June 2016 attached herewith,
being submilted by the Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Attention is drawn to the fact that the
figures for the corresponding quarter ended 30 June 2015 including the reconeiliation of profit under Ind
A8 of the corresponding quarter with profit reported under erstwhile GAAP, as reported in these financial
results have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors but have not been subjected to review.
This Statement is the responsibility of the Company’s Management and has been approved by the Board
of Directors on 31 August 2016, Our responsibility is to issue a report on this Statement, based on our
review,

We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagement (SRE) 2410, ‘Review
of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to
obtain moderate assurance as to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of Company personnef and analytical procedures applied to financial data
and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion,

{a) Attention is drawn to note 2 of the Statement relating to Deferred Tax Assets amounting to Rs.8.72
crores as al 30 June 2016 recognised by the Company on the basis of future outlook of business
confirming that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which these assets will be
realised. In view of losses suffered in the current as well as preceding periods, and in view of other
wnused tax losses available to the Company, we are not in agreement with the deferred tax assets
recognized. Mad such asset not been recognized, the net loss after tax for the quarter would have been
higher by Rs,8,72 crores,

{b) Attention is drawn to note 4 of the Statement, which enumerates recognition of interest of Rs.0.73
crore for the quarter ended 30 June 2016 on the insurance claim recoverable by the Company from the
insurance company for the loss of certain assets and loss suffered due to business interruption at its plant
in 2007-08. The said recognition of asset, is not in accordance with accounting principle stated in Ind AS
37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. Had such income not been recognised, the
net loss before tax for the quarter and net loss after tax for the quarter would have been higher by Rs.0.73
crore respectively.

Based on our review conducted as explained in para 1 and 2 above, except for the matters referred to in
paragraph 3 above and related disclosure of impact on the financial results, which has been explained in
that para, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying statement




B S R and Associates

prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards i.c. Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognized accounting practices and policies, has not disclosed the
information required to be disclosed in terms of Reguiation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI Circular dated 5 July 2016 including the manner
in which it is to be disctosed, or that it contains any material misstatement,

ForB § I and Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm regisiration no. : 128901W

0 )
A

Jiten Chopra
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: 31 August 2016 Membership Nao,: 092894
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ANNEXURE - |

1. Name of Listd Entity INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) LIMITED {CIN: L.17124MH1986P1.C166615)

2. Quarter ending 31 MARCH 2016
. Composition of Board of Directors
No. of Direclorship | No. of Memberships in| No. of post Chairpersort in
- Date of ] in lis_led eptitfes Audi‘t.' SlakelhoEdef Aud.itf Slakehg}i(l;r
Titls Calegory(phasrpersonf Appointment i including 1_h|s listed Commntlee(s)_mcﬁudmg Commllllﬂe h}aid in listed
) 3 Executive/ Non- . entity this lisled entily (Refer | entities including this listed
(Px; Name of the Director PAN" & DIN Exaculive/ Independent/ lhe%_‘(;;:r?nl Tenure® | stor Requlation | Regulation 26(%) of enlity (Refer Regulation
Nominee)® Cossation 25(1) of Lisling Listing Regulations) 26(1) of;isling
Regulations}) Regulations)
Mr. [Mohan Lal Lohia PAN: AHWPL9486C | Non-Executive - - 1 0 0
DIN: 00918397
Mr. |Om Prakash {.obia PAN:AACPLO08SN {Chairperson-Executive) - - 2 1 0
DIN: 00208807
Mr. [Vishal Lohia PAN:AABPLS213F |Executive - - 1 4 0
DIN: 00208458
Mr. [Anant Kishore PAN: AACPAB468.) | Executive - " 1 0 o]
DIN: 05262142
Mr. [Ashok Kumar Ladha PAN ABAPLY754K {independant A 20/05/2014 | 5 Years 1 2 2
DIN: 00089360 C: 20/05/2019
Mr. |Suman Jyoti Khaitan PAN: AERPK725%Q |independent A 20/058/2014 | 5 Years 4 3 2
DIN; 00023370 ) GC: 20/05/2019
Ms. |Ranjana Agarwal PAN: AAFPA1896D |independent A:18/05/2016 | 5 Years 3 1 Z
DIN: 03340032 C: 18/05/2020
YBAN Mumber of any Dicaclar would not be displayad on the wehsile of Stock Exchango.
*Category of Diraclors means Exscutivel/Non-Execuive/IndepandentNominse. If a Director fils into more Lhan one calegory wrile all calegonios separaling them with hyphen.
* 1o o filled anly for Independent Diractor. Tenure would maan tolal period from which Indapendent Diractor is serving on Board of Directoers of the listed entity in conlinuily without any cooling off periad.

Dr. Arvind Pandalal, Independent Director, resigned on 20 February 2016.
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. Compaosition of Committees

o
B

BRI TR,

Category {Chairperson/
Name of Committee Name of Comimittee Members Executive/ Non-Executive/
Independent! Nominee}®
1. Audit Committee i) Mr. Ashok Kumar Ladha Chairperson-independent
iif) Mr. Suman Jyoti Khaitan Independent
iv} Mr, Vishal Lohia Executive
2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee ] Mr. Ashok Kumar Ladha Chairperson-Independent
e s C7 0008 | ) e Sunan ot rstan[ideperdent
3. Risk Management Committee {if applicable) i) Mr. Om Prakash Lohia Chairperson-Executive
i Iir, Vishai Lohia Executive
4, Stakehoiders Relationship Commiltee i) Mr. Ashok Kumar Ladha Chairperson-independent
i} Mr. Cm Prakash Lohia Executive
lii)) Mr. Vishal Lohia Executive

"Calegory of Qirectors moeans Exacutive/Non-Execulve/indapendenUNominea. If a Direclor fils into more than ona calagory wile &ll categories separating lhom wilh hyphen.

1. Meeting of Board of Directors

Date{s) of Meeting {if any) in the previous quarter

Date(s) of Meeting (if any) in the relevant quarter

Maximuim gap between any two consequtive
(in humber of days)

14 November 2015

10 February 2016

87

IV. Meeting of Committees

Date{s} of Meeting of the
Committee in the relevant quarter

Whather requirement of Quorum met {(dotalis)

Date(s) of Meeting of the Committee in the
previous quarter

Maximum gap between any
two consecutive meetings in
number of days*

a, Audit Committes:

10 February 2018 [ Yes | 14 November 2015 [ &7
b. Nomination & Remuneration Commitfee :
10 February 2016 Yes | 14 November 2015 | NA
¢, Stakeholders Relationship Committee:
31 March 2016 | Yes [ 31 December 2015 [ NA
d. Risk Management Committee:
NA ] NA | NA | NA
* This information has to be mandatorily be given for Audit Commiltes, for resl of the Committass giving this informalion is aplional.
*.
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V. Related Party Transactions

Subjest Compliance Status (Yes/No/ba) ™ o0 ¥ -
Whether prior approval of Audit Commitlee obiained Yes
* Due to resignation of Dr. Arvind Pandalal, Independent Director, on 20 February 2018, need 4 Yes
Whether detials of RPT entered into pursuant to omnibus approvat have been reviewed by Yes
Audit Commitiee
Noto:

1. Inthe column "Compliance Status”, compliance or non-compliance may be indicated by Yes/No/N.A.. For example, if the Board has been composed in accordance wilh the requirements
of Listing Reguiations, "Yes" may be indicated. Similarly, in case the Listed Entlity has no related parly lransactions, the words, "N.A." may be indicated.

2. If stalus is "No" details of non-compliance may be given here.
V1. Affirmations

1. The Composition of Board of Directors 18 in tefms o isiing obligations and disclosire requirements) Regulations, 5. Yes {Dr. Arvind Pandalaj,
Independent Director, resigned on 20-Feb-2016, thus vacancy to be full-filled by 206th May 2016)

2. The Composition of the following committees is in terms of SEBI (Listing okligations and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015:
a. Audit Committee : Yes

ination & R . ) . Ko (Due to resignation of Dr. Arvind Pandalai, Independent Diractor, on 20-Fgh-2016, need reconstitute the
b. Nomination & Remuneration Comemillee ; Committes in the next Board Maeting schedulad on ApriliMay 2016)
o. Stakeholders Relationship Committee : Yes

d. Risk Management Commitlee (applicalle fo the top 100 listed enfites): NA

2 The Committee Members have been made aware of their powers, role and responsibilities as specified in SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure requirements,
Regulations, 2015: Yes

4, The meetings of the Board of Directors and the above commitiees have been conducted in the manner as specified in SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure
requirements) Regulations, 2015: Yes

5. This report and/or the report submitted in the previous quarter has been placed before Board of Directors. Any comments/observations/ advice of Board of Directors

may be mentioned here: Yes (No comments)
‘/
N 4

Sdi- S
Name: Jayantk Sood

Designation: Head-Corporate & Company Secretary & fompliance Officer

Neta;

information at Table [ and 1l above nead to be necassarily given in first quarer of each financial year, However, if there is ne change of informalion in subsecuent quarter(s) of that financial
yaar, this information may not be given by Listed Entity and instead a statement "same as previous guarler” may be given.
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ANNEXURE - I

Name of Listed Entity : INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS {INDIA) LIVITED (CiN: L17124MH1986PL.C166615)
Quarter ending : 31 MARCH 2016

I. Disclosure on Website in terms of Listing Regulations

Compliance Status

ltem (YesINo.'NAJ Rales note below
Details of business Yes
Terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors Yes
Composition of various committees of Board of Directors Yes
Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and senior Management Personnel Yes
Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Palicy Yes
Critaria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors Yes
Policy on deaiing with Related Party Transactions Yes
Palicy for determining "Material" subsidiaries Yes
Details on familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors Yes
Contact information of the designated officials of the listad entity who are responsible for assisting and handling Investor Griavances Yes
Ermail address for grievancve redressal and other relevant details Yes
Financial Resuits Yos
Shareholding Pattern Yeos
Details of Agreements entered into with the media coempanies and/for their Assaciates NA
New name and the old name of the Listed Entity NA

Il Annual Affirmations

Particulars Regulation Number (Y::”;’gj':f:)cﬁjfﬁf;’,:m
Independent Director(s) have been appointed in terms of specified criteria of "Independence” and/or "Eligibility” 16{1)(b) & 25(6) Yes
Board composition 17(1) Yas
Meeting of Board of Directors 17(2) Yes
Review of Compliance Reports 17(3) Yes
Plans for orderly succession for appointments 17(4) Yes
Code of Conduct 17(5) Yes
Fees / compensation 17(6} NA
Minimum Information 17{(7} Yes
* Dr. Arvind Pandalai, Independent Director, resigned on 20 February 20186, thus vacancy to be full-filled by 20th May 2016, Pagetof2




Particulars Regulation Number {Y::,:grl;qa;; &E}ﬂmim

Compliance Gertificate 17(8) Yes
Risk Assessment & Managemant 17(8) Yes
Performance Evaluation of independent Directors 17{10) Yes
Compaosition of Audit Committee 18(1) Yes
WMeeting of Audit Committee 18(2) Yes
Caomposition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee 19(1) No *
Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committes 19(2) Yes
Composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 2000 & (2) Yes
Composition and role of Risk Management Committee 2101, (2). {3, 4 Yes
Vig# Mechanism 22 Yes
Policy for Retated Party Transaction 23(1}, (8), (6), {7) & (B) Yes
Prior or Omnibus approval of Audit Committes for ail Related Party Transactions 23(2), (3) Yes
Approval for material related party transactions 23{4) Yes
Composition of Board of Directors of unlisted material Subsidiary 24(1) Yes
Other Corperate Governance requirements with respect {o subsidiary of listed entity 24(2}, {3), (4), (5) & (6) Yes
Maximum Directorship & Tenure 25(1) & (2) Yes
Meeting of independent Directors ' 25(3) & (4) Yes
Famitiarization of independent Directors 25(7) Yes
Memberships in Committees 26(1) Yes
Affirmation with compliance to Code of Canducet from members of Board of Directors and Senior Management 26(3) Yes
Personnal

Disclosure of Shareholding by Non-Executive Directors 26(4) Yes
Policy with respect to Obligations of Directors and Senior Management 26(2) & 26(5) Yes

*“Diue to resignation of Dr. Arvind Pandalai, Independent Director, on 20 February 2076, need reconstitute the Committee in the nexi Board Meefing,

scheduled on April/May 2016.
Note

1 Inthe column "Compliance Siatus”, compliance or nen-compliance may be indicated by Yes/MoiN.A.. For example, if the Board has been composed in accordance wath the requirements of Lisling

Ragulations, "Yos" msay be indicated. Similarly, in case he Lisied Entily has no related parly franaactions, the words “NA" may bo indicated.

2 |f slatus |s “Mo” detalls of nep-corpliance may be given hara,

2 If the Listed Enlity would like lo provide any other information the same may be indicated hera.
11 Affirmations:
The Listed Enlity has approved Material Subsidiary Policy and the Corporate Governance reguirements with respecl to subsidiary of Listed Enlity have been complied: Yes

T

Sdli- o [jﬁ /
Name: Jayantk Sood Py
ompany S
14

Designation. Head-Corporate & ecretary & Compliance Officer
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Compliance report with the requirements specified in Par-A of Annexure 1 of SEBI circular
CIRICFDICMD/168/2015 dated November 30, 2015

Sub:  Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requiremenis), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of
Inde Rama Renewables Limited (Transferor Company No. 1), Indo Rama
Renewables Ramgarh Limited (Transferor Company No. 2), indo Rama
Renewables Porbandar Limited (Transferor Company No. 3) with indo Rama
Synthetics (India) Limited (Transferee Company)

In connection with the above application, we hereby confirm that we satisfy all the conditions as
stipulated in the aforesaid SEBI Circular, as given hereunder;

Sr. i Requirements as per Whether Complied or not
No. | SEBI circular CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 & How

dated November 30, 2015
1. listed companies shall choose one of | Yes.

the Stock Exchanges having nation- | The Board of Directors in its meeting held
wide trading terminals as the | on 31% August 2016 has chosen the BSE
designated Stock Exchange for the | Limited as the Designated Stock Exchange
purpose of coordinating with SEBI. for the purpose of proposed scheme of
Amalgamation.

Compliance as per Part A, Annexure | to the Circular

2. Documents fo be submitted: .
2.a | Draft Scheme of Arrangement/ | Yes.

Amalgamation/ Merger/ Reconstruction/ | The copy of draft Scheme of Amalgamation,
Reduction of Capital, etc. as approved by the Board of Directors in
their meeting held on 31% August 2016 is
enclosed with application and marked as
Annexure-B.

2.b | Valuation .Report from independent | NA

Chartered Accountant Annexure — C

2.c | Report from the Audit Commiftee | Yes.

recommending the Draft Scheme The report of the Audit Committee duly
sighed by the Audit Committee Chairman is
enclosed with Application and marked as
Annexure D.

Page 1 of 3

c @ O Soth Fi 5 INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) LTD.
orporate Ulfice : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Har i :
» ! : R , R , vana, India. Tel : 0124-4997000, Fax : 24~
Registered Office £ Manufacturing Complex : !\.-3 1, MIDC industrial Area, Butibori, Magpur - 4411232, Maharashtra, india. Tel : 07104-663000 / 01 F':x %_i ‘1?(;{;223?270(())70
E-mail : corp@inderama-ind.com » Website : www.indoramaindia. com ' ‘
CIN: L17124MH1886PLC166615



BRI Braivin

2.d | Fairness opinion by merchant banker The Fairness opinion Category No. 1,
Merchant Banker, dated 31% August 2016 is
anclosed with Application and marked as
Annexure E

2.e| Pre and post amalgamation | Yes.

shareholding  pattern  of  unlisted | Pre and post shareholding pattern of

Company Transferor's and Transferee Companies are
enclosed with Application and marked as
Annexure F.

2.1 | Audited financials of tast 3 vyears | Yes.

{financials not being more than 6 | Audited Financials of the

months old) of unlisted Company; Transfereefresulting and
Transferor/amalgamated Companies for the
last three vyears, as Annexure Q, Un-
audited Financial Resulls for the quarier
ended 30" June 2016, accompanied by
Limited Review Report is enclosed with
Application and marked as Annexure G.

2.g | Compliance with Regulation 17 to 27 of | Yes.

listing Regulations Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 31% March 2016 is enclosed with
Application and marked as Annexure H.

2.h | Complaints Report The Company wili submit the compliant
report within seven days of expiry of 21
days from the date of submission of the
Scheme of Amalgamation to the Stock
Exchanges.

3 The equity shares sought to be listed | Not Applicable.

are proposed o be allotted by the
unlisted |ssuer (transferee entity) to the
holders of securities of a listed entity
(transferor entity) pursuant to a scheme
of reconstruction or amalgamaticn
{Scheme} sanctioned by a High Court
under Section 381-394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 or Section 230 1o
234 of the Companies Act 2013
4. 1At least 25% of the post scheme paid | Not Applicable.

up share capital of the transferee entity
shall comprise of shares allotted to the
public holders in the transferor entity.
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The fransferee entity will not | Not Applicable.
issue/reissue any shares, not covered
under the Draft scheme.

6. | As on date of application there are no | Not Applicable.
outstanding  warrants/  instruments/
agreements which give right fo any
person to take the equily shares in the
transferee entity at any future date. If
there are such instruments stipulated in
the Draft scheme, the percentage
referred to in point (4) above, shali be
computed after giving effect to the
conseguent increase of capital on
account of compulsory conversions
outstanding as well as on the
assumption that the oplions
outstanding, if any, to subscribe for
additional capital will he exercised.

7. | The shares of the transferee entity | Not Applicable.
issued in lieu of the locked-in shares of
the transferor entity are subjected to the
lock-in for the remaining period.

for Indo Rama Synthetics {(India} Limited

GO ‘”39)}

Jayantk Sood
Head-Corporate & Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: FCS 4482)
Place. Gurgaon
Date: 31 August 2016
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Sanjay Batra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

802, Bhim Nagay Chowk, New Railway Road, Gurgaon-122001, Cell: 9811230040

The Board of Directors

Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Ltd
20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-I1, Nh-8,
Gurgaon-122002, Haryana

We, the auditers/ Chartered Accountants, of Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited,(hereinafter
referred to as “the Company™), have examined the draft Scheme of Indo Rama Synthetics (India)
Limited between Indo Rama Renewables Ltd, 100% wholly owned subsidiary and two step down
subsidiary companies , Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Ltd , Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Lid
and shareholders under the provisions of Section 391 to 394 and other applicable provisions of
Campanies Act, 1956 (“draft scheme”), book of accounts and other relevant records and documents
maintained by the company In the usual course of business for the purpose of certifying the
accompanying “Undertaking in relation to non -applicability of requirements prescribed in
paragraph 2 (a) of Annexure 1 of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November
30, 2015" in respect of Amaigamation, which has been prepared by the Company only for the purpose
of submission to the BSE Limited ("BSE™), The National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE") and
SEBI.

The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of aforesaid Undertaking and the
maintenance of proper books of account and such other relevant record as prescribed by applicable
laws, which includes collecting, collating and validating data and designing, implementing and
monitoring of internal controls reievant for the preparation of the Undertaking that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud of error.

Our responsibility is limited to certifying the particulars contained in the Undertaking on the basis of the
draft scheme, audited books of account and other related records and documents maintained by the
Company with the appticable guidelines. We conducted our verification in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit Reports and Certificates for Special Purposes and Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, which includes the concepts of test checks and materiality.

On the basis of our examination of draft scheme, audited books of account and other relevant records
and documents as referred to above and according to the information and explanations provided to us
by the Management of the Company, we certify that the Undertaking provided by the Company in Para
1 (A) (9) (a) of Annexure 1 of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30,
2015 is not applicable to the scheme for the reasons stated in the undertaking, is in accordance with
the audited with the audited books of account, the scheme and other relevant records and documents
maintained and provided to us by the Company.

This Certificate is issued at the request of the Management of the Company for submission of the same
with BSE, NSE and SEBI in terms of Para I (A) (9) of the Annexure 1 of SEBI Circular in connection with
the scheme and should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

For Sanjay Batra & Co.
Chartered Accountants_

(Sanjay Batra)
Prop.
M. No.092037
Place : Gurgaon
Date : 31.08.,2016




CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE 6™ MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF INDO RAMA SYNTHETICES (INDIA) LIMITED, CIN L17124MH1986PLC166615,
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 3157 AUGUST 2016, COMMENCED AT 3:30 PM AND CONCLUDED AT 5:05
P, AT 20" FLOOR, DLE SQUARE, DLF PHASE-Hl, NH-8, GURGAON-122 002, HARYANA.

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 391 to 394 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 19568 and corresponding provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 upon their notification and enabling provisions in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of Indo Rama Synthetics {India) Limited {‘the Company') and subject to the requisite
approval of the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Bombay ('the Court’), Securities and
Exchange Board of India ('the SEBI') Central Governmert and Stock Exchanges where the
shares of the Company are listed and that of shareholders and creditors of the Company,
consent of the Board of Directors (‘the Board') be and are nereby accorded to the Scheme of
Amalgamation (‘the Scheme’) of Indo Rama Renewabies Limited referred as “Transferor
Company No. 1", Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited referred as “Transferor Company
No. 2" and Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited refered as "Transferor Company No. 3",
wholly owned and step- down subsidiaries of the Company reqistered under the Companies Act,
1956 with the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors as per the terms and
conditions mentioned in the Scheme placed before the Board with effect from 1% April 2016
("Appointed date”) and initiailed by the Chairman for the pumoses of identification;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT since the entire share capital of the Company of Transferor
Company No.1, 2 & 3 is directly or indirectly owned by the Company, no shares shall be issued
by the Company upon amalgamation of Transferor Company No.1, 2 & 3 with the Company and
the shares held by the Company shall stand cancelled and extinguished pursuant to said
Amalgamation;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT:

(@) The report from the Audit Committee of the Company, duly signed by the Chairman of Audit
Committee, recommending the Scheme, as placed before the Board be and hereby
accepted and approved,

(b) BSE Limited be and is hereby appointed as the Designated Stock Exchange, for the
purpose of Scheme and for co-ordinating with ‘SEBY in terms of SEBI Circular No.
CIR/CFDICMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 issued under applicabie Regulations of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Regulations Requiremenis) Regulations, 2015,

(c) Certificate from Statutory Auditors (Chartered Accountants) of the Company to the effect
that the Accounting Treatment contained in the Scheme is in compliance with all the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESCLVED FURTHER THAT the undertaking issued by the Company in terms of SEBI Circular
No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 stating the reasons for non-applicability
of the provisions of Para 9(a)} of the aforesaid SEBI Circular to the Scheme of Amalgamation
between the Transferor Company No.1, 2 & 3 and te Company and their respective
shareholders and creditors as certified by Statutory Audafors (Chartered Accountants) of the
Company, be and his hereby noted and approved; o~
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Om Prakash L.ohia (DIN 00206807), Chairman and Managing
Director and/or Mr. Vishal Lohia (DIN 00206458), Whole-time Director and/or Mr. Sanjeev
Aggarwal (ICAl Membership No. 089369), President & CFO and/or Mr. Jayantk Sood {ICSI
Membership No. FCS 4482), Head-Corporate & Company Secretary andfor Mr. B. 5. Rana,
AGM (Secretarial) of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized o oversee and
monitor the process connected with the Scheme and to make such additions, aiterations,
rectifications and changes therein as may be expedient or necessary for satisfying the
requirements or conditions imposed by the Shareholders, the Creditors, the Central Government
or the Court and to take all such steps as may be necessary for the purpose of giving effect to
the aforesaid Scheme of Amalgamation which shall include:

(1)  Filing of Scheme and other information/details with the concerned Stock Exchanges or any
other body or regulatory authority or agency in order to obtain approval or sanction of
Scheme of Amalgamation or for giving effect thereto,

(2)  Filing appilication{s) before the Hon'ble Court or any other Competent Authority for seeking
directions as to convening/dispensing with the requirements of the meetings of the
shareholders andfor the creditors of the Company as the Court or any other Competent
Authority may direct and to file all necessary documents, applications, affidavits,
Vakaiatnama, petitions and other documents as may be necessary from time to time for
the said purposes and to undertake the follow up action required thereafter;

(3) To file any incidental application/petition as is necessary for the implementation of the
Scheme;

(4) To file petition for sanction/confirmation of the Scheme by the said Court or any other
Competent Authority and to do all that may be necessary and incidental in this behalf;

(5) To settle any question or difficulty that may'arise with regards to the implementation of the
Scheme and to give effect to the above resolution;

(8) To de aill acts, deeds and things ne'cessary, convenient and incidental and ancillary in
relation thereto and for that purpose to engage any advocate, Solicitor, counsel or other
consultants;

(7)  And for the purposes set out hereinabove and in this behalf to sign and verify all
declarations, affidavits, statements, notices, applications, other deeds and documents and
to give such undertakings as may be necessary from time to time in connection with and
incidental to the Scheme of Amalgamation;,

(8) Obtaining approval from such other parties as may be considered necessary, for the
Scheme;

(9) To delegate authority to another person{(s) by a valid power of attorney or other
appropriate authorizations;

(10) To do all acts and things as may be considered necessary and expedient in relation to the
implementation of the Scheme; and

\
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{(11) To carry out and execute such additional and ancillary documents and formalities as may
be deemed necessary.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company, Common Seal of the Company, if required, be affixed on any document(s)
executed in connection with the above resolution.”

Certified {0 be frue
for Indo Rama Synthetics {india) Limiied

!

avantk Sood
Head-Corporate & Company Secretary
(ICS| Membership No.. FCS 4482)
Address: WW-93, 5F, Personal Floors,
Walibu Town, Sohha Road,

Gurgaon, Haryana

o
\g},(’

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31% August 2016
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE 6™ MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF INDO RAMA SYNTHETICES (INDIA) LIMITED, CIN L17124MH1986PLC166615,
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 31%" AUGUST 2016, COMMENCED AT 3:30 PM AND CONCLUDED AT 5:05
PM, AT 207" FLOOR, DLF SQUARE, DLF PHASE-ll, NH-8, GURGAON-122 002, HARYANA,

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 391 to 384 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 and corresponding provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 upon their notification and enabling provisions in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited {‘the Company') and subject to the requisite
approval of the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Bombay (the Court’), Securities and
Exchange Board of India (‘the SEBI') Central Government and Stock Exchanges where the
shares of the Company are listed and that of shareholders and creditors of the Company,
consent of the Board of Directors (the Board’) be and are hereby accorded to the Scheme of
Amalgamation (‘the Scheme') of Indo Rama Renewables Limited referred as “Transferor
Company No. 1", Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited referred as “Transferor Company
No. 2" and Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited referred as “Transferor Company No. 3,
wholly owned and step- down subsidiaries of the Company registered under the Companies Act,
1956 with the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors as per the terms and
conditions mentioned in the Scheme placed before the Board with effect from 1% April 2016
("Appointed date") and initialled by the Chairman for the purposes of identification;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT since the entire share capital of the Company of Transteror
Company No.1, 2 & 3 is directly or indirectly owned by the Company, no shares shall be issued
by the Company upon amalgamation of Transferor Company No.1, 2 & 3 with the Company and
the shares held by the Company shall stand cancelled and extinguished pursuant to said
Amaigamation;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT:

(a) The report from the Audit Committee of the Company, duly signed by the Chairman of Audit
Committee, recommending the Scheme, as placed before the Board be and hereby
accepted and approved,

(b) BSE Limited be and is hereby appointed as the Designated Stock Exchange, for the
purpose of Scheme and for co-ordinating with ‘SEBI in terms of SEBI Circular No.
CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 issued under applicable Regutations of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Regutations Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

»(c) Certificate from Statutory Auditors (Chartered Accountants) of the Company to the effect
that the Accounting Treatment contained in the Scheme is in compliance with all the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the undertaking issued by the Company in terms of SEBI Circular
No. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 stating the reasons for non-applicability
of the provisions of Para 9(a) of the aforesaid SEBI Circular to the Scheme of Amalgamation
between the Transferor Company No.1, 2 & 3 and the Company and their respective
shareholders and creditors as certified by Statutory Auditors (Chartered Accountants) of the

Company, be and his hereby noted and approved, /,;" I
e \
f’i,:”' Page 1 of 3
A Lo
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INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) LTD. . ‘9(}}-; e '

Corporate Office : 20th Fioor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India =Tl 1 1244997000, Fax : 0124-4997070
Registered Office & Manufacturing Complex : A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Magpur - 441122, Maharashtra, india, Tel ; 07104-663000 / 01, Fax : 07104-663200
E-mail : corp@indorama-ind.com * Website : www.indoramaindia.com
CIN: L17124MH1986PLC 166615
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Om Prakash L.ohia (DIN 00208807}, Chairman and Managing
Director and/or Mr. Vishal Lohia (DIN 00206458), Whole-time Director and/or Mr. Sanjeev
Aggarwal (ICAl Membership No. 089369), President & CFO and/or Mr. Jayantk Sood (ICSI
Membership No. FCS 4482), Head-Corporate & Company Secretary and/or Mr. B. §. Rana,
AGM (Secretarial) of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to oversee and
monitor the process connected with the Scheme and to make such additions, alterations,
rectifications and changes therein as may be expedient or necessary for safisfying the
requirements or conditions imposed hy the Shareholders, the Creditors, the Central Government
or the Court and to take all such steps as may be necessary for the purpose of giving effect to
the aforesaid Scheme of Amalgamation which shall include:

{1)

(3)

(4)

®

(8)

(9

(10)

Y

Filing of Scheme and other information/details with the concerned Stock Exchanges or any
other body or regulatory authority or agency in order to obtain approval or sanction of
Scheme of Amaigamation or for giving effect thereto;

Filing application(s) before the Hon'ble Court or any other Competent Authority for seeking
directions as to convening/dispensing with the requirements of the meetings of the
shareholders and/or the creditors of the Company as the Court or any other Competent
Authority may direct and to file all necessary documents, applications, affidavits,
Vakalatnama, petitions and other documents as may be necessary from time to time for
the said purposes and to undertake the follow up action required thereafter;

To file any incidental application/petition as is necessary for the implementation of the
Scheme:;

To file petition for sanction/confirmation of the Scheme by the said Court or any other
Competent Authority and to do all that may be necessary and incidental in this behalf,

To settle any question or difficulty that may arise with regards to the implementation of the
Scheme and to give effect to the above resolution;

To do all acts, deeds and things necessary, convenient and incidental and ancillary in
relation thereto and for that purpose to engage any advocate, Solicitor, counsel or other
consultants;

And for the purposes set out hereinabove and in this behalf to sign and verify all
declarations, affidavits, statements, notices, applications, other deeds and documents and
to give such undertakings as may be necessary from time to time in connection with and
incidental to the Scheme of Amalgamation;

Obtaining approvat from such other parties as may be considered necessary, for the
Scheme;

To delegate authority to another person(s) by a valid power of attorney or other
appropriate authorizations;

To do all acts and things as may be considered necessary and expedient in relation to the
implementation of the Scheme; and
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(11) To carry out and execute such additional and ancillary documents and formalities as may
be deemed necessary.

RESCOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the provisions of the Articies of Association of
the Company, Common Seal of the Company, if required, be affixed on any documeni(s)
executed in connection with the above resolution.”

Cerlified to be true
for Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited/

e
2/
'y L
i
Jayantk Sood

Head-Corporate & Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: FCS 4482)
Address: WW-93, SF, Personal Floors,
Malibu Town, Schna Road,
Gurgaon, Haryana
Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31% August 2016

e éﬁ}
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Brief particulars of the Transferee and Transferor Companies

Particulars Transferee/ Resulting Transferor/ Merged
Company Companies
Name of the Company Indo Rama Synthetics (India) i} Indo Rama Renewables
Limited Limited

i} Indo Rama Renewables
Ramgarh Limited

iii} Indo Rama Renewables
Porbandar Limited

Date of Incorporation & | 28" April 1986 - i) 3" May 2012

details of name changes, if i) 25™ May 2012

any fii) 23" May 2012

Registered Office A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, A-31, MIDC Industrial Area,
Butibori, Nagpur - 441122 Butibori, Nagpur - 441122
Maharashtra, India Maharashira, India

Brief particulars of the | The objects / activities of the Transferor/ Applicant Companies
Scheme and Transferee/ Applicant Company are similar/ identical in
nature therefore in order to synergize the operations and to
achieve the following benefits, this Scheme of Amalgamation is

Rationale for the Scheme presented:

a) Greater efficiency in resource management, cost savings
resulting from  rationalization,  standardization  and
simplification of business processes.

b) Improved organizational capability arising from pooling of
financial, managerial and technical resources.

¢) Re-aligning the business operations as part of overall
business reorganization plan.

d) Avoiding un-necessary duplication of costs of administration,
distribution, selling and marketing costs.

e) Maximize the overall shareholders value by strengthening its
core competencies.

Date of resolution passed by
the Board of Director of the | 31 August 2016 31% August 2016
Company approving the
Scheme
Date of meeting of the Audit
Committee in which the draft | 31% August 2016 Not Applicable
Scheme has been approved
Appointed Date 15t April 2016 1%t April 2016
Name of Exchanges where | i) BSE Limited Not Listed
securities of the Company | ii) National Stock Exchange
are listed of india Limited
.’.\r,{;/ Page 1 of 3
o «)
A\ 4%
INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) LTD. “

Corporate Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, MH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, lnd1a\€[‘é"l Q124v4997000 Fax:0124-4997070
Registered Office & Manufacturing Complex : A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur - 441122, Maharashira, India. %Z‘Pl .Q’?]Od G63000 /01, Fax : 07104-863200
E-mall 1 corp@indorama-ind.com + Website : www.lndoramaindla.com
CIN : L177124MH3986P1LC166615



EREETED BRAlAS,

Nature of Business Polyester / Manmade Fibre Power Generation
Capital before the Scheme 1,85,00,00,000/- i) 50,00,00,000/-
iy 5,00,000/-
jiiy 5,00,000/-
No. of shares to be issued Not Applicabie
Cancellation of shares on | 3,88,43,677 99,988
account of cross holding, if
any
Capital after the Scheme 2,35,00,00,000/- Not Applicable
Net Worth (Rs. in Crores) {Rs. in Crores)
Pre 57758 i) 38.38
Rost 575.97 | i) (0.040)
iy (0.013)
Post Net Worth — NA

Valuation by Independent
Chaitered Accountant - Not Applicable
Name of the valuerfvaluer
firm and Regn. no.

Methods of valuation and
value per share arrived | Not Applicable Not Applicable
under each method with
weight given to each
method, if any.

Fair value per shares Not Applicable Not Applicable

Exchange ratio Not Applicable

Name of Merchant Banker | Refer Annexure
giving fairness opinion

Shareholding Pattern Pre Post
No. of Shares % of No. of Shares % of
holding holding
Promoter 10,19,11,551 67.13 10,19,11,5651 B87.13
Public 3,96,20,131 26.09 3,96,20,131 26.09
Custodian 1,02,90,560 6.78 1,02,90,560 6.78
TOTAL 15,18,22,242 100 15,18,22,242 100
No of shareholders 21,110 21,110
Names of the Mr. Mohan Lal Lohia Not Applicable
Promoters Mr. Om Prakash Lohia
Mr. Vishal Lohia

Page 2 of 3
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Names of the Board of | Mr. Mohan Lal Lohia Dr. Arvind Pandalai
Directors Mr. Om Prakash Lohia Mr. Rajendra Kumar Gupta
Mr. Vishal 1.ohia Mr. Vishal Sehgal

iMr. Ashok Kumar Ladha
Mr. Suman Jyoti Khaitan
Ms. Ranjana Agarwal
S e Dr. Arvind Pandalai
Details regarding change in | Not Applicable
management control, if any

for indo Rama Synthetics (india) Limited

2

Jayantk Sood
Head-Corporate & Company Secretary
(ICS! Membership No.: FCS 4482)
Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31% August 2016
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MET-WORTH CERTIFICATE

i > @ acscﬁ “‘:t'l*‘“ﬂ%é““h of O M%mu : :
e maigamatu}n m’c~wm*ti% of tnde Rama Synthetics {india) Limnt@d ("’T?z@ﬁsi’ere&/ Applicant
Compony”) on the basis of Brancial Statements as on March 31, 2016 with respect to draft
Schems of Amalgamation of indo Rama Renewables Limited [“Transferor / Applicant Company
fe. 17, Indo Rama Fenewables Ramgarh Limited (“Transferor / Applicant Company No, 27)
hdo Rama Renewsbies Porbandar Limited (“Transferor / Applicant Company No, 37} with
Transferee Company {herein after referred 1o as the “Scheme™) for the purposes of submission
to BSF Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited” {"the Statement”), prepared by
the Company with the books of account and other relevant records maintained by the Company
nthe ordinary course of B3 business

2. The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the said Statement and
the maintenance of proper books of account and other relevant records. Our responsibility, for
the purpose of this certificate, is timited to certify the particulars contained in the Statement on
the basis of our verification of the relevant books of account and other records maintained by the
Company.

w

On the basis of our verification as referred to in Paragraph 2 above and according to the
informations and explanations provided 1o us by the Management of the Company, we certily
that the particulars furnished by the Company in the said Statement are in agreement with the
books of account and other refevant records maintained by it

4. The Certificate is issued at the request of the Company for submission 1o BSE Limited and
Mational Stock Exchange of Indis Limited and should not be used for any other purpose without
Our prioy written consent.

For Sanjay Grover & Associates

Company Secretqgi%s

Firm Registratiph No.: P2001DE052900
P //

Sanjay Grover

New Dethi ' Managing Partner
September 0§, 2016 CP No.: 3850
T
/J. % ;f} .
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terrent of Compuiation of pre-amatgamation and post amalgamation net-worth of Iido
Rama Synthetics {ndia) Limftad Transferse! Applicant Company” on the basis of Financis)
rments an on Marel 31, 2076 with respect fo draft Scheme of Amalgamation of ndo Rama
s Limfesd PP wr o Anploant Comp e Rams Benowables

' b Applisant Compar wio Bama Repewabios

i oree 1y [herain
Limiled snd

{Amountin Lacs)

Pre Aiialgamation | Post Admialgamiation

Eguity . . o e ARABZE 15,182

L Add- Reserves & Surply S

b Capital reserve 2,038 2,038

- SE9EL 5,888,

plus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 18,018 _A7.857

_Total Reserves and Surplus - N 42,578 42,415

meous expenditure notwrttenoff | Nt NI

NIL _ NIL

NetWorth . sLyssl 87,897

for tndo Rama Synthetics {India) Limited

o
1

o7/

Jayantk Sood
Head-Corporate & Company Secretary
(IGST Membership No.: FCS 4482)

Place; Gux’§a<3n :
Date. 8% Septermber 2016 o

INEO RAMA SYNTHETICS (MDA B9 -
orpotate ice @ 20t Floor, DILE Seuare, DLF Phase-2, MH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryang, indla. Tel : 0124-4897000, Fox : 0124-4997070
Ragistened Officg L Manutsctiniag Complas | A1, MIDC industrist Ares, Bulibon, Bagput - 441 122, Muhorashira, India, Ted 07 YO4-GLI000 7 01, Fax : 67104663200
Bmalt : corp@indorama-ind, com + Website © www.indorsmalndin.com
. CHY LTV 124MIT 108670 ) 66615



MEF-WORTH CERTIFICATE

1. We, Sanjay Grover & Asscciates, Company Secretaries (Firma Registration Mo, P2O01DE052500),
Mew Delhi, have mamined the enclosed “Statement of Computation of pre-gmalgamation net-
wartls of indo Rama Renawables Limited {“Transferar / Applicant Company No. 17} on the basis
of Financial Statermenis as on March 31, 2016 with respect to draft Schemae of Amalgamation of
Transferar / Applicant Company No, 1, Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited (“Transteror /
Applicant Company No, 27) and Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited (“Transferor /
Applicant Company #o. 3") with Indo Rama Synthetics {India} Limited {"“Transferee/ Applicant
Company”) (herein after referred to as the “Scheme”) for the purposes of submission to BSE
Lienited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited” (“the Statement”}, prepared by the
Company with the books of account and other relevant records maintained by the Company in
the ordinary course of its bhusiness,

2. The Nanagement of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the said Statement and
the maintenance of proper books of account and other relevant records, Our responsibility, for
the purpose of this certificate, is limited to certify the particulars contained in the Statement on
the basis of our verification of the relevant books of account and other records maintained by the
Company.

3. On the basis of our verification as referred to in Paragraph 2 above and according to the
informations and explanations provided to us by the Management of the Company, we cetify
that the particulars furnished by the Company in the said Statement are in agreement with the
books of account and other relevant records maintained by it

4. The Certificate is issued at the request of the Company for submission to BSE Limited and
Natioral Stock Exchange of india Limited and should not be used for any other purpose without
our prior written consent.

For Sanjay Grover & Associates

_Company Secretaries

Firm Registrai:/.i{;n No.: PZ001DE052960
4 / N

\\ <
s T
“Sanjay Grover

New Delhi
September 06, 2016

Managing Partner
CP No.: 3850

L




Statement of Compufation of preamalgamation asetworth of hide Rama Renewables
LimHed {"Tranaforor JAppdicant Coin mny Mo, 1) on the basls of Financial Slatemonts as
on Mei?(,gi 31, 2016 with rezpect fo diaft tBuhieme of Amalgamation of Transferor iﬁxgaphmni
{ mny \érs 1 mzi ndt Rama Hanewables Famyarly Limited "Transtoerss / f‘«p}.}“{:diﬁ
;o 2 : Ranewabios F’C:?“%B*%r%i’%»;; i m%a (ravisferor J Applicant

: i i Awphoan

asion to

s

itin L

Particulars

o 3,984.37
| L
| dwre notwittenort e NI
{y Accumuiated Josses S . o 148,43
. NetWorlh L 383784

ForIndo Rama Renewables Limited

W Vlk‘ls Sehgal
{Director)
DIN: 07529303

Placea: (7Ui{} 401
Date 6" September 2016

‘r“.”%’ [,“

INOC RAMA RENEWABLES LIMITED
Bogd. Uifice - 20th Floorn DLF Square, DLE Ph 2R 8 Uargaon - 122002, Haryvana, India,
Tet f;l ’Q AG97000, Fax . 0124.49970670
AT GBI 2PLCOAGE40




MET-WORTH CERTIFICATE

Company Secretaries (Firm Registration Mo, PR2O0IGEG!

i, have examined the enclosed “Statement of Computation of pre amdégammmn nct-
wovil of Indo Rama Henewables Ramgarh Limited (“Transferor / Applicant Company No. 2”) on
the basis of Financial Statements as on March 31, 2016 with respect to draft Scheme of
Aralgamation of indo Rama Renewables Limited {“Transferor / Applicant Company No. 17),
transferor / Applicant Company No. 2 and Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited
{“Transferor / Applicant Company No. 3") with indo Rama Synthetics (India} Limited
{"Transferee/ Applicant Company”) (herein after referred to as the “Scheme”) for the purposes
of submission to BSE Lirited and National $tock Exchange of India Limited” {"the Statement”),
prepared by the Company with the books of account and other relevant records maintained by
the Company in the ordinary course of its business,

2. The Manazement of the Company i responsible for the preparation of the said Statement and
the maintenance of proper books of account and other relevant records. Qur responsibility, for
the purpose of this certificate, is limited to certify the particulars contained in the Statement on
the basis of our verification of the refevant books of account and other records maintained by the
Lompany.

1. On the basis of our verification as referred to in Paragraph 2 above and according to the
informations and explanations provided to us by the Management of the Company, we certify
that the particulars furnished by the Company in the said Statement are in agreement with the
hooks of account and other relevant records maintained by it,

4. The Certificate is issued at the request of the Company for submission to BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited and should not be used for any other purpose without
our prior written consent,

For Sanjay Grover 8 Associates
Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No.: P2001DEQ52900,

5an;ay Grover
Managing Partner
CP No.: 3850

New Delhi
September 06, 2016

%0




Gtatement of Compulation of pre-amalgamation networth of tndo Rama Renewables
garh Limited {("Transferor / Applloant Company Ko, 27) on the basis of Financial
e oas ot March 31, 2018 with vgepuct W draft Scheme of Amalgamation of lndo
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Legs- () Miscellansous sxpenditure nol wiitten off
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For Indo Rama Renswables Ramgarh Limited

~dchopd

" Vikas Sehgal
{Director)
DN 75293583

2UE

IMDO BAMA REMEWABLES RAMUGARN LIMITED
Regd. Qiffea  20th Floern, DLE Square, DLF Phase-2, M-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Hasyana, india.
Feb 0 O124-4997000, Fax : $124-4997070
CIN G UAG300HE201 2.0046070
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website | www.cssanjzygrover.in

MET-WORTH CERTIFICATE

Wi, Senjay Orover & Assogaies, Company Secretaries {Firm Registration Mo, PRO0TDEOR 2900},
aw Defhi, have examined the enclosed “Statement of Computation of pre-amalgamation net-
worth of indo Raws Renewables Porbandar Umited {"Transferor / Applicant Company No, 37)
o the basts of Financial Siatements as on March 31, 2016 with respect to draft Scheme of
Arafgamation of fndo Rama Renewables Limited {"Transferor / Applicant Company No, 17),
ndo Hama Renewables Ramgarh Limited ("Transteror / Applicant Company No, 27} and
Transferor / Applicant Company No. 2 with Indo Rama Synthetics {India) Limited {“fransferee/
Applicant Company”} therein after referred to as the "Scheme”) for the purposes of submission
to BSE Limited and National $tock Exchange of india Limited” {“the Statement”), prepared by
the Company with the books of account and other relevant records maintained by the Company
in the ordinary course of its business.

4

2. The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the said Statement and
the maintenance of proper hooks of account and other relevant records. Our responsibitity, for
the purpose of this certificate, ts limited to certify the particulars contained in the Statement on
the basis of our verification of the relevant books of account and other records maintained by the
Company.

3. On the basis of our verification as referred to in Paragraph 2 above and according to the
informations and explanations provided to us by the Management of the Company, we certify
that the particulars furnished by the Company in the said Statement are in agreement with the
books of account and other relevant records maintained by it.

4. The Certificate is issued at the request of the Company for submission to BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited and should not be used for any other purpose without
our priar writien consent,

For Sanjay Grover & Associates
Firm Registration No.: onogiaﬁ‘észfﬁﬂ
iy - Y
" Sanjay Grover
New Delhi 7 Managing Partner

Company Secretarjes
4 ,;;.::::.N‘K...-K( f gt
Septamber 06, 2016 CP No.: 3850
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Btatement of Lm:rspuiaimﬂ oi pri-amaigamation networth of inde Rara Renewables
!'?f;;'iﬁéi'm{'zr iwi"i*i"i'i" oL Appticant STy N{a "”) o ih& ba&?a i;i Hﬂaﬁmal
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Forticulars

{ Applicant
sinisgion to

Ay gsfﬂw: G

JAfmount in Lacs)

? P ;\zm:(mmfai‘nm

Met Worth

Place: Gurgaon
Date : 8" September 2016

. 5.00

Add- Resarves & Surplus Nl

_Less- () Miscellansous expenditure not wrilten off g ORI ) ||
{iiy Accumudated fo

For tndo Rama Renewables Porbandar Linited

\-lz.&nz&lsqul
“Vikas Sehgal

{Director)
DIN: 07526393

%

NGO RAMA RENEWABLES PORBANDER LIMITED

Regd. Office 1 2000 Figor, DLF Square,

Tid {)) 244097000,

LF Phase-2, NHB, Guegaon - 122003, Huryara, ndia.
1244997070

B
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Details of Capital evolution of the Transferee Company

Date of | No. of Shares | Issue Type of lssue (IPO/FPO/ Preferential Cumulative | Whether listed, if
Issue issued price issue/ Scheme/ Bonus/ Rights etc.) Capital (No.of | not listed, give
shares) reasons thereof.

28/04/1086 7 10 Suboribed o the Memerandum 7 listed
07/08/1989 9956243 10 PO 9956250 Listed
17/06/1991 6011105 10 Right Issue - conversion of Part-A PCDs 15967355 Listed
23/02/1993 3700000 10 Private Placement 19667355 Listed
26/03/1993 2374680 10 Right Issue - conversion of Part-B PCDs 22042035 Listed
05/05/1994 11023793 10 Right Issue - conversion of Part-A FCDs 33065828 Listed
01/02/1995 24252344 10 Right Issue - conversion of Part-B FCDs 57318172 Listed
26/07/1995 28659086 10 Bonus Issue 856977258 Listed
28/03/1996 43975380 10 GDR's 129952638 Listed
10/05/1996 25793177 10 Right Issue 155745815 Listed
23/01/2000 250000 10 Conversion of Loan 155995815 Listed
26/03/2001 10270000 10 Conversion of Loan 166265815 Listed
Share Capital de-merged/splitted on 3rd June 2003.

03/06/2003 133020694 10 | Split of capital upon de-merger 133020694 Listed

Less: Reduction in terms of exit option

24/10/2004 -1193410 pursuant to scheme of de-merger 131827284 Listed
29/01/2008 20000000 10 Issued upon Amalgamation 151827284 Listed
28/01/2009 -5003 10 Less: Forefeited partly paid shares 151822191 Listed
19/05/2009 51 10 Add: Annulment of Forfeited Shares 151822242 Listed

for Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited

\/%antk Sood
Head-Corporate & Company Secretary
(ICS1 Membership No.: FCS 4482)

INDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) LTD.

Corporate Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India. Tet : 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070
Registered Office & Manufacturing Complex : A-31, MIDC industrial Area, Butibori, Magpur - 441122, Maharashtra, India. Tet : 07104-663000 / 01, Fax : 07104-663200
E-mail : corp@Indorama-ind.com » Website : www.indoramaindia.com
CIN G Li7124MH19B6PLCIGH61S

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31% August 2016




Details of Capital evolution of the Transferor Company No. 1

Date of No. of Shares | Issue Type of Issue ((PO/FPO/ Preferantial Cumulative | Whether listed, if
lssue issued price Issue/ Scheme/ Bonus/ Rights eic)) Capital (No.of | notlisted, give
shares) reasons thereof.
03/05/2012 100000 10 Subcribed to the Memorandum 100000 Unlisted
17/10/2012 36884831 10 Preferential Issue 36984831 Lnlisted
26/06/2014 2858852 10 Preferential [ssue 39843683 Unlisted

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31-Aug-2016

for Indo Rama Renewables Limited

e SR q)ﬁ\

et W1

P, S
J——

Vikas Sehgal

Director (DIN 07529393)

INDO RAMA RENEWABLES LIMITED

z5

Corporate Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India. Tel : 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070

E-mail : info@irrl.in ¢ Website : www.irrl.in
CIN : J40106HR201 2PLC045840



Detalls of Capital evolution of the Transferor Company No. 2

Date of No. of Shares | Issue Type of Issue (IPO/FPO/ Preferential Cumulative | Whether listed, if
fssue issued price Issue/ Scheme/ Bonus/ Rights etc.) Capital (No.of | not listed, give
shares) reasons thereof,
25/05/2012 50000 10 Subcribed to the Memorandum 50000 Unlisted

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 3t1-Aug-2016

INDO RAMA RENEWABLES RAMGARH LIMITED

for Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited

oAbl

Vikas Sehgal

Director {IIN 07529393)

Regd. Office 1 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaorn - 122002, Haryana, India.

Tel 1 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124.4997070
CiN : U40300HR2012PLCGA8070
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Details of Capital evolution of the Transferor Company No, 3

Date of No. of Shares | lIssue Type of Issue (IPO/FPO/ Preferential Cumulative | Whether listed, if
Issue issued price lssue/ Scheme/ Bonus/ Rights etfc.) Capital (No.of | not listed, give
shares) reasons thereof.
23/05/2012 50000 10 Suberibed to the Memorandum 50000 Unlisted

for Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited

00
Place: Gurgaon : T\ﬂlﬂikas Sehgal
Date: 31-Aug-2016 Director {DIN 07529353)

@t

INDO RAMA RENEWABLES PORBANDER LIMITED
Regd. Office : 20th Floor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India,
Tel - 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070
CIN: 440102HR2012P1L.C046056




CONFIRMATION BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY

Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Indo
Rama Renewables Limited (Transferor Company No. 1), Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh
Limited (Transferor Company No. 2), Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited
(Transferor Company No. 3} with indo Rama Syathetics (India) Limited (Transferce
Company).

In connection with the above application, we hereby confirm that:

a) The proposed Scheme of Amalgamation to be presented to any Court or Tribunal does not
in any way violate or override or circumscribe the provisions of the SEBI Act, 1992, the
Securities Contracts (Regulaticn) Act, 1956, the Depositories Act, 1996, the Companies Act,
1956 / the Companies Act, 2013, the rules, regulations and guidelines made under these
Acts, and the provisions as explained in Regulation 11 of the SEBI (Listing obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 or the requirements of BSE Limited.

b) The draft Scheme of Amalgamation together with all documents mentioned in Para I(A)(7)(a)
of SEBI Circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015, has been
disseminated on Company’s website as per Website link given hereunder:

hitp://www.indoramaindia.com/schemeofamalgamation.php

¢} The Company shall disclose the observation letter of the Stock Exchange on its website
within 24 hours of receiving the same.

d) The documents filed by the Company with the Exchange are same/ similar/ identical in all
respect, which have been filled by the Company with Registrar of Companies/SEBI/Reserve
Bank of India, wherever applicable,

e) There will be no alteration in the Share Capital of the unlisted Transferor Companies from
the one given in the draft Scheme of Amalgamation.

for Indo Rama Synthetics {India) Limited

oD’

Jayantk Sood
Head-Corporate & Company Secretary
{ICS| Membership No.. FCS 4482)

A
s

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 31% August 2016
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[NDO RAMA SYNTHETICS (INDIA) LTD.

Corporate Office : 20th Fioor, DLF Square, DLF Phase-2, NH-8, Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana, India. Tel : 0124-4997000, Fax : 0124-4997070
Registered Office & Manufacturing Complex : A-31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Magpur - 441122, Maharashtra, india. Tel : 07104-663000 / 81, Fax : 07104-653200
E-maii : corp@indorama-ind.com » Website : www.indoramaindia.com
CIN: L17124MH1686PI.C166615



Sanjay Batra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

802, Bhim Nagar Chowk, New Railway Road, Gurgaon-122001, Cell: 9811230040

Independent Chartered Accountant Certificate

. We, Chartered Accounts of Indo Rama Synthetics India Limited (“"IRSL"” or the “"Company”) have

examined the proposed Draft Scheme of Amalgamation under Section 391 to 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 between the Company, having its registered office at A -31, MIDC Industrial
Area, Butibori, Nagpur, Maharashtra 441122 and Indo Rama Renewables Ltd having its registered
office at A -31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur, Maharashtra 441122 (IRRL}, a whoily
owned subsidiary of the Company and Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Ltd having its registered
office at A -31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur, Maharashtra 441122 {IRRRL), a wholly
owned step down subsidiary of the Company and Indo Rama Renewabies Porbandar Ltd having its
registerec office at A -31, MIDC Industrial Area, Butibori, Nagpur, Maharashtra 441122 (IRRPL), a
whoily ownhed step down subsidiary of the Company and their respective shareholders and
creditors (“the Scheme”) which has been approved by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors
of Indo Rama Synthetics India Limited at its meeting heid on 31" August 2016.

Based on our examination of Draft Scheme and according to information and explanation given to
us, we note that the Draft Scheme entails the amalgamation of IRRPL, IRRRL, IRRL with parent
IRSL,

. We further note that as a result of the proposed amalgamation, the shares of IRRPL and IRRRL

held by IRREL and shares of IRRL held by IRSL will stand cancelled, with no issuance of shares or
payment of other consideration by IRSL. Since, the shareholders and shareholding pattern of IRSL
remain same, it is treated as 'no change’ in shareholding pattern and accordingly no valuation
process is applicable to the transactions contemplated by the aforesaid scheme.

. A certificate copy of the Draft Scheme duly authenticated on behalf of the Company and certified

copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors of the company approving the Draft Scheme are
attached as Annexure 1 and II, respectively, to this Certificate and are stamped by us only for the
purpose of identification.

. This Certificate is issued at the request of the Company in accordance with circular no

CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015% dated November 30,2015 read with regulation 11 and 37 cof the SEBI
{(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for its onward submission to
the Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange of India Limited and should not be used
for any other purpose or to be distributed to any other parties without our written consent.

For Sanjay Batra & Co.
Chartered Accountants

{Sanjay Batra)
Prop.
M. No.092037

Place : Gurgacn

Date

1 31.08.2016
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S R and Assoclates

Chartered Accountants

Telephone: + 31 124 2358810

Building No.10, 8th Floor, Tower 1 81 124 2358 613

DLF Cyber City, Phase -l [Fax:
Gurgaon - 122 002 {India)

Independent Auditors” Repart
To the Members of Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
1. Reporton the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements (“standalone financial statements”) of Indo
Rama Synthetics (India) Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maltters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Acecounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and defecting frauds and other irregularities; sefection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to frand or error.

3. Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which arc required 1o be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the anditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. AH/M{TINE\Q?})“‘H{C]UCICS evaluating the
"\
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R 8 R and Associates

appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the {inancial
statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified audit opinion on the standalone financial statements,

4. Basis for Qualified Opinion

Attention is drawii to aote 39 () of the standalone {inancial statements, which ensmerates recognition
of interest of Rs. 10.95 crores for the year ended 31 March 2016 on the insurance claim lodged by the
Company with its insurance company for the ioss of certain assets and loss suffered due to business
interrupfion at #ts plant in 2007-08. The said recognition of asset, is not in aceordance with accounting
principle stated in Accounting Standard 29, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’.
IMad such income not been recognised, the net oss before tax for the year would have been higher by
Rs. 10.95 crores, the net profit after tax for the year would have been fower by and Rs. 7.16 crores and
Reserves and Surplus as at 31 March 2016 would have been lower by 7.16 crores.

5. Qualitied Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the matter descried in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ paragraph above, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Act, in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2016, of its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

6.  Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 39 (a) of the standalone financial statements which describes the uncerlainty

related to the outcome of the lawsuit filed by the Company agains( an insurance company, Our opinion

is not madified in respeet of this matter.

7. Report on OQther Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

(i) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order’), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure ], a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to
the extent applicable,

(i)  As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. except for the effects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph
above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement, dealt with by
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. exeept for the cffects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph, in

our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial slatements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

. the matier described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ and matier described under ‘Emphasis

of matter’ paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an advesse effect on the functioning of the
Company;

on the hasis of the writlen representations received from the directors, and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the ditectors is disqualified as on 31 March 2016 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and oiher matters connected therewith
are as stated in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ paragraph above;

. with respect to the adequacy of the internal {inancial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer lo our separate report in
“Annexure 17, and

with respect to the other matters o be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position n its
financial statements ~ Refer notes 36 and 39 to the standalone financial statements;

ij. the Company did not have any long term contracts, including derivative contracts outstanding
as at 31 March 2016 for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts that were required (o be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For B 8 R and Associates
Chartered Accouniants
ICAL Firm registration number: 128%01W

oY

Jiten Chopra
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 092894




8 8 R and Associates

Aunnexure I referred to in paragraph 7 (i) of the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited on the Standalone financial statements fox the year
ended 31 March 2010,

(i} (a) According to the information and explanations given (o us, the Compary has maintained proper
records showing full particuiars, including quantitative details and sitoation of fixed assets.

{b) As explained to us, the fixed assets are physically verified by the management in accordance
with a phased programme designed to cover all jtems of fixed assets over a period of three
years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to ihe size of the Company and nature
of its fixed assets. In accordance with this programme, certain categories of fixed assets at
certain Jocations have been physically verified by the management during the year. As informed
to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ol our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name
of the Company.

(i)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories, except for goods in
transit and stocks lying with third parties, have been physically verified, at reasonable interval
by the management during the year. For stocks lying with third parties af the year end, written
confirmations are obtained. As informed to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company, during the earlier
periods, had granted interest frec unsecured loans to a wholly owned subsidiary company
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further,
according to information and explanations given to us:

(2) the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) the interest free loan is to be converted, on mutual agreement, into equity, quasi equity or
debentures or repayable by 31 March 2017, Hence, the loan were not due for repayment in the
current year in accordance with the stipulations.

(¢) There is no overdue for more than ninety days.

(iv)  According {o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security where
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are required to be complied with. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v}  Acecording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from public during the year,

(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of
products where, pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government, the maintenance of cost
records has been preseribed under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed.examination of such records with a

view to determine whether they are accurate or c()m);if:g-
()

N
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(vit) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the vecords of the Company, amounts deducted/ acerued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Imployees® State Insurance, Income
tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other
material statutory dues, to the extent applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given io us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duly
of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, to the
extent applicable, were in arrears as at 31 March 2010 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of the records of
the Company examined by us, there are no dues of Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty of
Customs, Value Added Tax, Duty of Excise, which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except as mentioned below:

1.06 - 2002-03
0.38 . 2005-06 Bomba?{ High Court,
Nagpur Bench
0.51 March 2008-
' December 2010
The Central Excise l?ut}'/ of 1996- 97 to C\‘us?oms, o
At 1944 Excise 65.77 391 2009-10 Excise and Service Tax

Appellate Tribunal
Commissioner of Central

. 1996-97 to e N

17.56 0.08 2008-09 I.,x;;:e a|.1d Customs

0077.C ommissioncr/ Assistant
4.97 199798 to Commissioner/ Depuly
2010-11 ZOMIMISS)
PSSP P . B e T N BT ST ) (—/0]1111115510!101‘
Bombay Sales
Tax Act, 1959/ . 1998-96
Central Sales Tax | Sa16s tax 0.43 0.13 1o 1999-00 o
) Joint Commissioner Sales
ALIINO bbb Tax (Appeals), Nagpur
Maharashira 2006-07, 2008- | 1 VAPPERE) THER
NS VAT 22.20 5.60 09 and 2010-11
VAT Act, 2002 16 2013-14
e
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214.25 2006-07 Supreme Court
: Customs, Excise and
0.09 - 2002-03 Service Tax Appellate
- Tribunal B
Commissioner of
Customs Act, I?UW of 6.01 i 2006-07 “Customs
Customs - §
1962
0.04 ) 1997-98 10
' 1998-99 Assistant Commissioner/
068 o 2014-15 1o 1 Beputy Commissioner
' 2015-16
_ ' CustonﬁjExcise and
0.22 0.08 2?04'05 to Service Tax Appellate
2009-10 o
i A Servi Tribunal
“pance Act service ) '
, ! 2002-03 to .
004 . . - 8 e R
1994 tax 0.22 2005-06 Commissioner, Nagpui
0.18 2010-11 to Assistant/ Deputy
’ 2013-14 Commissioner Nagpur
0.26 i AY 2006-07 §0=n11'1155101‘ae:' of Income
lax, (Appeals)
Income tax Act, Income Y 200903
1961 * tax ' -03 to e A ale
24.55 1450 | AY 2004-05 and I{?}‘;S'{:&?“x Appellate
AY 2007-08

* excluding cases where losses / unabsorbed depreciation have been adjusted by the tax authorities without raising any
dertands, though disputed by the Company.
# including interest/ penalties, where quaniified and demanded by authoritics.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in

(ix)

()

(xi)

the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. Further, there are no loans or borrowings from
financial institutions or government and there are no dues to debenture holders during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the term loan taken by the Company
have been applied for the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not raised
any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in
accordance with the the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013 except Rs, (.62 crores which has been paid as Mamg,g: ial Remuneration by the Company
to one of its directors for services rendered subscqumﬂ lqiﬁgmmcmtlon period approved by the
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Central Government vide approval SR B61072120/4/2013-CL VII. The Company is in the
process of obtaining requisite renewa! of such approval subseguent to 31 March 2016,

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Ordes is not applicable.

(xiti) According to information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements, as reguired by the applicable accounting standards

(xiv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order ig not apphicable.

(xv)  According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi}) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered wnder section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

For B S R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 12890F'W
N
~

. ™ j

Jiten Chopra
Place: Gurgaon Partner

Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 092894
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Annexure 11 referred fo in paragraph 7 (i(h) of the Independent Auditors’ Report to the
Members of Indo Rama Synthetics (Tndia) Limited

Repori on the Internal Financial Conirols under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indo Rama
Synthetics (India) Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2016 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control aver financial reposting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential compenents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on ‘Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating cffectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its asscts, (he prevention and defection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of refiable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our respansibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on ‘Audit of Iniernal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting” (the *Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICA! and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate interna! financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves perlorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or CIror.

We believe that tha audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Gver Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial contrel over [nancial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the 1'eliﬂbi§iiy of Nnancial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assels of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance thal  transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of inpternal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatiements due to error ar fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial contro! over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the pelicies or
procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

Iy our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on “Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B S R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm registration number: 128901W

NOX

Jiten Chopra ‘1’
Place: Gurgaen Partner g
Date: 18 May 2016 Membership MNo.: 092894 ‘3
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LAH amonunts i B, crores, wnless athenvlse sieed)

Note Nu, Az i Asaf
S Mareh 2046 e S MiREEh 2018
I, Equlity ansd BabHitics
(1} Shareheitders’ lunds
(o) Share capital 3 i5i.82 P54 82
{1} Ruserves and surplus 4 339082 A0 08
£21.64 S35

{2} Non-cuy'rent linbiliies

{1} Long-ieim borrawings

5 8 80 107,740
{5 Deferced 15x Habililies (nel} <] . 172.96
{e) Cther long-term liabitlties 7 037 0.6
{d) Leng-term provisions 13 19.79 1090
118,02 30120
{3) Currend linbitities
{a} Shanrermn borrowings g V1792 204 b4
{b) Trede payebles 10
Total puistanding dues of micrs enterprises and smafl enterprises 003 .
Torsd outsinnding dues of ereditors orher thian micro enierprises and small enterprises PATRES 54285
(&) her eurrent Habilities 1i 15999 124 01
{d) Short-term provisions 4 Finty
89390
TOTAL
Il Assels
(3} Nor-current nescis
{n) Fixed nsscls
{i} Vungible assets 12.1 938 56
(i) Inlangibie assets 122 005
(il Caplial wark-in-progress o L N /2
95102 941,83
{b) Non-currenl invesbnenls 13.1 1985 1985
() Long-1erm loans nngd ndvances 14.i 2058 12323
() Other non-current ussels 15.4 . 2 = SRR A -
68.70 17013
{2} Curvenl assets
{a) Carrent invesimants ) 122 07 428
by Imvenlorios 14 256 71 273 48
{3 Tadde receivables 17 198 0% 11500
{d} Cash wel Bank balanees [} 8242 35 68
{e} Shiori-icr josns and advences 14z 0434 68 60
{f) Other curvent assets 152 SO L. 1. L
182.80
TOTAL
Significont accounting poilcies 2
The accompanying noles {from 1 1¢ 45} form on integral part of the finencial statcments
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Eiselo Raman Syarhetles (todla) Limiied
Sintement of Frafid and Loss for ¢he yoar eaded 31 Marcli 2016
(Al amentints T Ws. erores, unless othenvise stited)

Note Na. Far the year ended
e 2000
Income
¥ Revenne from opeetions I
Sple of products {gross) 21469
Less: Excise duly 24994
Sale af products (net)
{Mther opersting revenue
evare (rom opeaations {ne)
11 Otleet trcome 20
11, Toinl revenuz (I+H) :
1V, Expenses:
Cost of muterialy consurned 2i 261932
Chonges in inventories of finished goods and waorkeineprogress 22 {52.80)
Employes bencfits expense 23
Other expenses 24 L
Hxpenses hefore e cosly, depreclatlonfmsortisatlon and exceptional Meins (647,24
V., Profit hefore finance costs, deprechtion/amortisnilon, cxceptionat Hems and tax (T11-1V) R 124.2
VI, Fhnnee cosls 25 5506
Vi1, Profit before deprecinttonfmisortiyalion, exceplinnal ittns and 1ax (Y=Y
VI, Deprecistion and amortisedion expense 121 & 122 TLIG
1X. Lass befare exceptional items and tax {YIE-YII) [ER K]
X, Exvepiional Hens
- Forsign exchange fuctuation (loss) / guin {refey nove 43(bY) {2362)
- Inventory losses {refer note 21 and 22) (20,08}
- Othets (refor note 43(c)} (9.23)
X1, Loss before tax (IX+X) - TIN5
X3l Tux oxpense (refer note 41h
MAT eredit taken in previous yeers charged off 5730
Deferred tax eredin {172.96)
X1 Profit / (Loss) fov the yonr 86,00 .
Tansic end diluted earnings / (loss) pex equity share (in Bs ) [Fece value Rs, 10 each] % 3,69
Significant accounllag policies k4

The aecomptnying totes {from | to 45) form an integral part of (he faancial sigtements
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Cash Now statemend for e yosr audeil 3 March 2066
FeE aanatainty B Ns. craves, Hitless ethersdve stafed)

Casty Bow [roms operpding aclivities
Toss before lnxniion

Adjusied for;

Vlepreciation and smortiion (e of wansien fon revaluation reserve)
Laoss or (patind an serip 7 disposa! of tixed pssey

Provigion mode / (writen back) for dimminudan in e vahle of invesimenis
Provision for doubill debls and ndvances

Profit on sale of cwrrenl investanents {ot)

nterest incame

Diyidend income

Titerest expense

Qperating (loss) £ profit hefore working capital changes
Chinges in:

Teerease in inventories
{Increase) in trade receivables

{Increpse) / docresse in short lern lnans and sdvances ind olher cuiveid gssets

{nerease) in long leon foans ond advances
{increase) in other non cuirent asscls
Incrense borade paynbles

{Beerease) in other von curvent liabilites
Ingregse in other cuirent Babilities

crease in fong teou povisions

Ingrease inshort krm previsions

Cash geneented frem aperaiions

ineone tax pid

Mot ¢ash {low from opernting activilies (A)

. Cash flows fram {svesting avtlvites

Purchase of fixed assels

Sole of fixed ossels

Safe of curent investments {nel)

fncomte from renuncition of dghis issue
Purchese of non current nen trade Jnvestnients

Muvement In bank deposits {net) (having oviginiel moturity of maore then 3 months)

Repayment fram sutnidiang company
Eividend received
Inferest received

wet ensh Do (used) br/ fram investing netivitios (13}

. Cash flows used in Bnancing netvities

Long-teran borrewings repadd doring the year
l.ong-terin borrewings taken doring ihe yem

Shant werm bonowings repaid during the year (net}
Payment ol divideod

Tuxes on divichem

Inlerest paid

MNet casl Now used in lnancing activilies (C)
Pt changes in ensh nnd eash equivalents (A334()

Cakly and ¢hsh equeivalents - opening balance

Casly and cash cquivalents - elosing baltiee

Components of cash and cush equivalents {refer note [8)
Cashin hand
Willy scheduled bunks:

I cwrent acvounts

I morgin money accounts {eurrently nut avallable Tor use by the Compuny)

Tetal

Moless

Tl avcompanying notes (rom L 43) Form an inlegiol part ol the financint skaements

For the year ender

For the year cnded

e M Murch 2015
(59.,66) (34.02)
TG 176
0.0% (1.33)
. (0.0
{0.38) 0.85
{25.45} (0.y9}
129.69) £12,34)
(0.60) (0,52}
35,73 2830
o
16,77 20,13
(82.11) {44H)
{10.48) 55,87
{1.00) (1.02)
(0.30) (0.44}
£92.03 12,28
0.27) {0.19)
1712 1M
(111 1.76
o a.19
1277.55 18245
. 108] {051)
181,94
(16.13) (937}
040 |57
21899 014
- 0.85
- (280
(44,57} {1.66)
177 LR
.6l 0.52
25.50 11.H)
D) ) '
{3039} (1o
- 414
(2722} {4691)
3N {(15.16)
(3.09) (2.58)
(35.30) {30.84)
an, B7.00)
{17.83) 11,08
231.69 12.6%
e
092 0,27
494
T UsEn

e Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under e ‘fecdinest method’ a8 set aut in Accounting Standasd - 3 'Cagh Flow Stateinents', as specilied under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
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Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(Al amound in Ry, erores, wiless otfterwise stated)

General information

Indo Rama Synthetics {India) Limited (hereinafier referred Lo as ‘the Company’ or ‘IRSL’) is a
manufacturer of Polyester Filament Yarn (PFY), Polyester Staple Fibre (PSF), Draw Texturised Yam
(ITY), Specialty Fiber and Chips. The Company is also engaged in power generation, which is used
primarily for captive consumption. The Company’s manufacturing facilities are Jocated at Butibori, Nagpur.

Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include
vevaluation of certain fixed assels, on a going concern basis, on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India. Indian GAAP primarily
comprises mandatory accounting standards as specificd under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 7 of Compariies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and other accounting pronouncements of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2.2 Use of estimaftes

The preparation of financial fslalemcnts in conformity with pencrally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements
and the results of operations during the year. Differences hetween actual results and estimales are
recognized in the year in which the results are known or materialized. Examples of such estimates are
estimated useful Yife of assels, classification of assets/liabilities as current or non-current in cerlain
circumstances, recoverability, of minimum alternate 1ax credit entitlement, provision for doubtful
receivables and retirement benefits, ete. Actual results could differ from those gstimates. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

2.3 Current/ non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classificd as current and non-current,

Assels

An asset is classified as cun et when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected 1o be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating
cycle; '

by it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) it is expected to be realized within 12 months afier the reporting date; or _

d) it is cash or cash equivaient unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used Lo settle a fiability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assels include the current portion of non-current financial asscts.
I

All olther agsets are classified as non-current.




Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 33 March 2016
(All amount in Rs. crores, unless otherwise stured)

Linbilities

A lability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;

a) it is expected to be setlfed in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting dale; or

&) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Cureent liabilities include current portion of non-current financial Habilities.
All other Habilities are classified as non-current.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle is (he time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or
cash equivalents, The Company considers ils operating cycle to be within a year,

2.4 Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost or at revalued amounts fess accumulated depreciation. Cost of fixed assets

includes all incidental expenses and interest costs on borrowings, attributable to the acquisition of

qualifying assets, uplo the date of commissioning of assets.

Foreign currency exchange differences are capitalized as per the policy stated in note 2,12 (b) below.

2.5 Depreciation/ amortization

s Leaschold land and cost of leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of lease or their usell
fives, whichever s shorter,

o Depreciation on other fixed assets {(excluding software) is provided using the straight line method at the
rates based on following useful lives of assets estimated by the management:

Particnlars ) Useful life o
Factory buildings/ Non factory buildings 28 years/ 58 years
Plant and equipment {Continuous Process Plant) | 18 years

FFurniture and fixtures 15 vears

Vehicles 0years
Office equipment/ Computer and Peripherals 20 years/ G years |

The above useful lives are arrived at, based on the internal technical assessment of the management,
are currently reflective of the estimated useful lives of the fixed asscts.

o Fixed assets individually costing up 1o rupees five thousand are depreciated at the rate of 100% over a
period of one year.

s Software arc amortised on straight Hine method over a period of three years.




Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limifed
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Miarch 2016
(ANl amount in Rs. crores, witless otherwise stated)

2.6 lmpairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assels are reviewed al each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. I any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverabie amount is
estimated as higher ol its net selling price and vaiue in use. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, Impairment losses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assels are prouped together into the smaiiest group of assets (Cash
Generating Unit or CGU) that gencrates cash inflows from continuing use that arc largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates uscd 1o determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortization, had no
impairment loss been recognized. ' o

2.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributabie to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asscts are capitalized
as part of the cost of such assets 1o {he extent that they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be
put Lo use. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of {ime to get ready for its
ftended use. All other borrowing costs are charged Lo the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.8 Investnzents

Long-term investments (including s current poriion) are carried at cost less diminution, other than
temporary, in value, Current investments arc carried at the lower of cost and fair value, which is computed
calegory wise.

2.9 Inventorics

o Stores and spare parls are valucd at cost or wnder, computed on weighted average basis,

«  Raw materials, work-in-progress and finished poods are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Finished goods and work-in- progress include material cost and appropriate portion of
manufacturing and other overheads. Cost is ascertained on a weighted average basis.

2.10 Revenne recognition

i) Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the products are dispatched against orders from
customers in accordance with the contract terms, which coincides with the transfer of significant risks
and rewards.

Sales are stated inclusive of excise duty and net of rebates, trade discounts, sales tax and sales returns.

ii} Sale of power
Sale of power is recognized on the basis of actual quantity of power sold with reference to the contracted
rate. ' i

L :
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Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(Al amaunt in Ry, crores, witless otlerwise stated)

i} Insurance claims
Insurance claims arc accounted for on an accrual basis, to the extent these are measurable and ultimate
collection is reasonably certain (Also refer to note 39).

iv) Dividend
Dividend from investments is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established,

v) Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking info account the amount outstanding and
the interest rate applicable.

2.1% Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased
asset are classificd as operating lease. Operating lease charges are recognized as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss ot a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.12 Forcign exchange transactions and forward contracts
Forcign exchange transactions

a) Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. All monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are converted at the exchange rates
prevaiting at the date of the balance sheet. All exchange differences, other than in relation to acquisition of
fixed assels and other long term foreign currency monetary liabilities, are dealt with in the Statement of
Profit and l.oss.

b) In accordance with Accounting Standard 11, “Accounting for the effects of changes in foreign exchange
rates”, exchange differences arising in respeet of long term forcign currency monetary items used for
acquisition of depreciable capital asset, are added Lo or deducted from the cost of asset and are depreciated
aver the balance life of asset,

¢) In case of foreign exchange forward contracts taken for underlying transactions, and covered by
Accounting Standard 11, “Accounting for the Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, the premium
or discount is amortised as income or expense over the life of the contract. The exchange difference is
caleulated as the difference between the foreign currency amount of the contract transtated at the exchange
rate al the reporting date, or the settlement date where the transaction is settled during the reporting period,
and the corresponding foreign currency amount translated at the later of the date of inception of the forward
exchange contract and the last reporting date. Such exchange difference is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the reporting period in which the exchange rates change.

Any profit or loss arising on the cancellation or rencwal of such contracts is recognized as income or
expense for the year,

d) Forward exchange contracts taken for highty probable/forecast transactions, which are not covered by
Accounting Standard 11, are marked to market in accordance with the principles under AS 30 “Financial
lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement”, issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India.
The Company records the gain or loss on effective hedges, i any, in the Hedging Reserve until the
1:7{})?{621”@&,4@ gain or loss is transferred to the Statement of Profitand Loss




Indo Rama Syanthetics (India) Limited
Notes {o the finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(AN aimount in Rs. crores, unless atherwise stated)

of the period in which such transaction is concluded. To designate a forward contract or option as an
affective hedge, management objectively evaluates with appropriate supporting documents at the inception
of each contract whether the contract is effective in achieving offsetting cash flows attributable to the
hedged sk, In the absence of a designation as effective hedge, a gain or loss is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

2.13 Employee bencfits
a) Short-term employee benefits

All employee benelits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus, ete., are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service,

) Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company deposits the congributions for provident fund to the appropriate government authorities and
these contributions are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year to which they
relate.

Defined benefit plan ¢

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary, using
the Projected Unit Credit Method, which secognizes cach period of service as giving rise to additional
unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately 1o build up the final obligation. The
obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
delermining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields
on Govermment securities as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and 1.oss. * '

¢) Other long term employce benefits

Entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to employces. Leave entitlements may he
availed while in service or encashed at the time of retirement/ termination of employment, subject 10 a
restriction on the maximum number of accumulation. The Company determines the liability for such
aceumulated leave entitlements on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary at
the year end.

2.14 Taxation

Income lax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. Current tax provision is made
based on the tax liability computed afier considering lax allowances and cxemptions under the Income tax
Act, 1961, The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liability and assets are
recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted on the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets arising from unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses are recognized only if

there is virtual certainty of realization of such amounts. Other deferred tax asscts are recognized only to the

extent there is reasonable certainty of‘,mﬁﬁ?ﬂhﬁgﬂm\futu1‘c. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance
R i Co,

sheet date o reassess 1heirrcalisalﬁlﬁ‘ .um«mi Y

&

-
# (cukphon
|\ GURERL




Indo Rama Symnthetics (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All arstond in Rs. croves, unless otherwise stited)

‘The credits arising from Minimum Alternate Tax paid are recopnized as receivable only if there s
reasonable certainty together with convincing/ reliable evidence that the Company will have sufficient
taxable income in future years to utilize such credits.

2.15 Government granis

Government grants specifically receivable as a reduction of interest charpe under the grants scheme is netted
off from the interest charge for the year.

2,16 Larnings per share

Basic carnings per-share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of caleulating difuted carnings per share, the net profit or foss for the year attributable
1o equity sharchaolders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential cquity shares.

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities

‘Fhe Company recognizes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is
more tikely than not that there will be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 1o settle such
obligations and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not discounted to
their present value and are determined based on the managemeni’s estimation of the outtlow required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted
to reflect current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities arc disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and
the existence of which will be-zonfirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future cvents, not
wholly within the control of the Company.

When there is an obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is yemote, no
provision or disclosure is made.
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Hdo s Syntiveties (fndin} Lindied
Miles to the finmncinl statomenss for the year eheed 31 Mwrch 2056
(Al ancoenitts in Rs. croves, kless wtherwise taded)

Note 3: Shave capiln}
As il As

Athorlsed

185,300,000 {provious year 185,000,000) equity shares of Rs 19 vach R 1.5 U
tssued, subsertled and fully paid-up

151,822,242 (previous yeor 151,822,242) equity sheres of s |0 ench (ully pald-up I 151 82

Jipel notes s
I During lhe vument year and in the proviows year, there have bron o movemonts iy the number of pulsianding 2quity sharcs

2. The Company hus anly ane elass of eglity sheros, kindng 5 par valuz of s 10 par share Yol sharehalder is ofgible 10 one vate per shive held, eicept for shares held egsinst Global Depository Receipts (GDR) The
dividend propused, if sy, by the Hoard of Diteeiors bs subject 10 approval of shurchaldess In the cusuing Annun! Genetal Mesting, excepl In cave of interim dividend The repryment of eqalty shave copital i the cvent of
liquidotion snt buy bick of shares are passible subject (o prevedent regulsiions In ihe event of liquidation, narmally Ihe equity sharchalders are eligitle o receive the remaining assels of te Company efler distribution of all
prefecentinl emounts, in propotion 1o their shareholding

3. Shires in the Camporny held by cach shareholder holding more than 3% shares (alsa refer hote d below) rro &5 umder:-

Asnd 31 March 2016 As bt 31 March 2015
Names Nurmber of shares % of shnres Teld Number of shaees Y of shares hell
Brookgrnge lovasments Limited 43,288,057 28.5} 43,288,057 28 5
Mr O P Lohin (Chairuas and Managing Director) 14,984,000 25.02 18,378,350 2330
Wirs Usntiln Lolie 18,184,518 11.58 15,855,314 1044
APMS Jnvestment Fund Limited 12,652,175 333 VE052,175 LK)
112,108,750 Ta84 107,173,896 F0.58

4, Abave cquity shares o Rs 10 cach inchude 30,290,560 equily shares (reprosenting 6.78% al toial number of sharead, oulsigading agalnst 1,286,320 Globu) Deposhiory Recsipts (GDR), eash GDR comprising 8 underiying
fully peld up equity shures of Rs.30 esch {previous year 10,290,560 cquity shares {reprasenting 6.78% of tolel rumber of shares), oulstanding egalnst 1,286,220 GDRs). Since, the same are hold by depasitory, details of
individual benefictarios is not nvailible witl: the Company

Note i Reserves nnd surplug
As nl
S Mareh 2045

Capilal reserve
As e beginning snd s the and al'the year 20.38 20.38

Securitics presiwm neconnt
As uf ihe beginning snd at the end of ihe yexs 166,22 166,22

Bevaluailon reserve
Opening balance
Less: transferred <o general reserve

Closlng balance

Genernl reserve

Opening belance 38.13
Adid: zmount Iransferred from revaluniion reserve s
Closlig balrnee 58,08
Surples I the Stntement of Profie and Loss
Opesing balence 142 45 18225
Profit / (foss) ofler tax Far the yenr 56,00 (2153)
Less: Appropriations:
Proposed dividend (refer note §) 15.18
T an dividend (rofer roic §) - L.
Net surplus in the Statemeni of Frofit and Loss 180,18

43082

Tolal reserves and surplus

AW (3)
%LJA(TJ W
S i @

o




Indo Rama Syathetics (idia} Bimited
Nofes 10 fnaneiat siatemenis for the year ended 31 March 2016
(AN aororns in Bs. crores, wiless atlrerwise sinted}

Note 8 Leng-fernn borrowings
Totnl

Non-eurrent poviion Current pordion

As at
31 Mael 2016

Asal o
31 March 2018

As i
31 Maveh 20016

As at As sl
31 Mareh 2014 31 plarch 2015

Asat
31 Mareh 2015

Seewred :
Loans from banhs
Term toms

- Rupee loans 71 81 95.68 44.94 .78 26.87 2390
- Foreign mu‘rcnc_{i loans 71.00 71.92 5392 1592 17.98 36.00
1871 167.60 o886 LI T 5990
|25y
Amounis disclosed under the head
"oifei cuitent b " refer note . . {n4.85) {5% i)
i
143.71 167.60 98.86 107.70 - -

Natare of seenrity
2) Rupee term loans Nrom hinks:

L, Amounting to Rs 2.67 crores (previous year Rs. 8.00 croresy are seeured by
spoeific charge over specific assels puschased under the loan agresment.

i) Amouiting 10 R 1526 crores (previous year Rs, 20 82 crores) are secured by
exclusive eharpe on the eaptive power plant at Thitibori, Maharashtra

iii) Amounting 1o Ry 53 12 crares (previous year Rs.65.63 croras) are secured
primarily by S0 pui-passu chiasge on the cugrenl assels and enllateraliy by first
pari-passe charge on the fixed assets of the company  Further, the same s
seeured by the personal gavranice of promoters, i e, Mr Om Prakash Lohie and
Mr Vishal Lohia

iv) Aggregaling to Rs 0 76 crores {(previons year Rs 123 crores) are seeured by
hypothecation of speeilic vehicles

1) Forelgn corrency (erne loans froim banks:

i) Amounting 1o Rs. 46.40 crores (previons year Rs 45 46 crores), are seeured by
spesthic charge on the cquipment purchased undes the loan agreeinent for the
Company's Polyester Expansion Praject and a first charge on (he land situated nl
Mehsana, Gujarat.

iy Amounting to Rs. 25.50 crores (previous year Rs 26 46 crores) are secured by
specilic charge on the equipment purchased under the loan agreement lor the
Company’s Polyester Lxpansion Project and o [irst charge an the Jand-situaled ot
Mehsana, Gujarat. - o

Terms of repayment

Repayable in 18 equal quarterly installments of Rs.1 33 crores each eommeneing from June
2012, along with interest ag bank rale plus 1.50%

Repayable in 18 cqual quarterly instaliments of Rs. 139 eroves each carmnencing from 30
September 2014 along with interest al 3.25% over base fale

Repuyable in 8 equal quartedy installments of Rs. 312 erores cach commencing from 30
September 2014 aad 10 equal quartedy installments of Rs. § crores thereafler, atong with
interest at 3% aver base rale.

(1) Rs. Wil {previous yea Rs. 005 crores) repayable in 36 monthly installments
commencing from January 2613

(b} Rs.0.56 crores (previous year Rs. G.91 crates) repaybic in 36 monthly instalmems
commeneing rom Scptember 2014

(e} Rs.0.08 crores (previous year Rs. 0.4 crores) repayble in 36 monthly instalments
commencing from June 2014,

(d} Rs.0.05 crores (previous yesr Rs. 0.08 crores) repayble in 36 monthly ingtalments
commencing from May 2014,

{e) Rs.0.03 crores (provious year Rs. 0.05 crores) repayable in 36 monthly instalments
commencing from fune 2014

(N Rs.0.04 crores (previous year Rs. Nif) repaysble in 36 monthly instalments commencing
from Nov 2015

The outstanding emownt of borrowings taken for vehicles is Ry 0.76 crores {previous year R§
1.23 crores) out of which current maturity payable next year amounit to Rs 053 crares
{previous year Ry Q.51 crores).

The outstanding loan is repayable in & semi-annual instalimems i April and Octaber every
year with interest at six months EURIBOR plus 0 95%. e loan is 10 be repaid by October
2019,

Amount payable within one year ameunts to Rs. 1860 crores {previous year Rs. 2277
crores).

The outstanding loan is repayable in 8 semi-omual instaliments in April and October every
year with iverest al six months LIBOR plus 0.95%. The loan s Lo be repaid by October
2019

Amounl payable within one yoar amounts 1o Rs 6 38 crores {previeus vear R 1323 crores)

/s
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Trite Rema Syotheties {fndin) Lisised
Motes 1o e flapncin) siatemeuts for the yurr endeid 31 Mareh 20048
(Al amsaituds e Rs. erores, sathess etheniise staied)

Note 6 Deferred Lnx Habilities {rel)
As As at
LS Mareh OIS

Deferred tax fiabbiity on accound of 1
- Fixetl assels 182,60 199,47

Delerred 1nx nsseis on heeoual ofy

- Unobsorbed doprecintion® 176 28

. Effoct of expenditure debited 1o siatement of prafit and toss 30 the current/earier yenrs but

aliowable for tux pusposcs I following years 163 4.1

. Trovision for doubifid debis and advances E. L
182.60

172,94

Nel deferred tnx linbility

< by view of sisenee of virlual ceitainty of resliuiion of wuebzerbed depreciation, during the year the Company has recopizcd doforred 10x assels on unabsorbed deprecintion o e exient of thi wvatlatifity of fsture oxsble
income, by virtwe of the fdture roverset of deferred sax Bubiliy (rofer note 41(63).

Nate 73 Giher long-teem Habilllies
Asag As i
31 March 2016 AN Mareh 2018

Lease equalisation reserve 937 064

Nole & Frovistons

______ . Long-ferm e Short-irn
A at As at Asut Asnt
3§ Murch 2006 31 March 2015 31 NMasch 2016 31 Marcl: 2038
provisian for srployee benelits
- Girshuity (refer nuoje 32) 2.1 17 635 1,04 100
- Compenseied shsenes Geler note 32) 6,68 725 1,95 186
Others
Proposed dividend . . 1518 13,18

Tux on proposed dividend * - - i 1.09 3.09

1598

* [Juring the cussenl year, the Companty has Jeclared o dividend of Rs. § (psavious year Rs: |) per eguity shore of Rs 10 each
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Indo Roma Syniketies (nihin) Binited
Woles (o Hye finanetnt statements S the year onfed 31 Mareh 2016

(AT apmacnis I B, croves, sidess othenvise stted)

Note ¥ 1 Short-term bovrowings
As ot Asal
31 March 2000 :

Lonas repayable en demand (Seeuved)
From hanis ¢
Cosh eredil and wotking capitl fockiltes . o 17172

20494

Natore of secusity

Cash credit and other weoiking copitat fciiities from banks we scoured by way of hypotheoalion of stocks o raw erials, work-in-progeess, Tished goods, stores and sprres, packing walerisl, goods ut porthn
wransithonder shiprent, outstanding wmoney, book delis, revclvables and other eirrent assels ol ihe Company, Bl present and folure, These are further secured by a second charge on all the immovable properties of the
Company, both present and fuiure '

Note 10: Trade payables
As i As at
31 March 2016 11 My 2018

Acceptances . 351.69 161 52
Sundry ereditors
Totgh outstuating dues of mic o ealérpiists wnd sl enterprises (refer note 40} 003 -
“Total oisstanding dues of credilors other than micro entorprises and small enleipitses 8316 3193

Csas

Nafe )1 Oher currend linbilites

Asat Ay at
o J1 Mareh 2006 B M 2005

Currenl mesuritios of long-term homowlngs {refer nole 5) 44.85 : 5690
Interest accrued bul not dug on horrewings o - . o L 0.67 062
Unpaid dividends* ) C e T T Lo 039 . 0.38
Advnnces from customers 2231 12.55
Lense equatisation reserve 027 ) 017
Cther payables:
Payable 16 employees i3 65 1615
Credilors lowarils [xed assets ** 4 4223 838
Stalutory dues payuble

- Excise duly on (nished geods 1292 891

- Costoms duty 1411 15.00

Fan duducted 5 seve 245 0 bk

- Other statulosy duos

Moje:
* “Tfigre are a6 outstanding duws 10 be paid to Tnvesior Bducation rnd 12oteetion Pund
*¢ |guding seceptances of Rs, 5 19 crores {previous year Rs Nif)

#includes amounts payable to micro enterprises ond small enterprises Rs. Nil (previous year Rs Nily
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Note 131 Non-vuarent investmenis (valued al cosl uniess othenvise xinjeil)

Other than eade investents (Unguoled)

Enuily shares

fully paid up quity shares of Rs 10 ench

indo Rama Rengwabies Limited (wholly owned su})sidisuy)

Rilspin Synthetics Limited

Less: provision for other than femporary diminution in the value of non-current invesiments

Aggregnie beek value of wnguoted non-currend investmenls

Noie 13,2 Cusrent Snvesimentis

Curvesd fuvestments {enreied of the knver ol cost nnd fir vadse)
A) Fquily shaves, queted

Fully pald wp eqalty shares of s, 14 each

Opte} Telecommunientions Limied

Sanghi Palyesters Limited

Relianes lndustries Limited

Fully padd up equity shares of Rs. % ench
Balasore Alloys Limited

- Fully puid wp equﬁy Ql_mrcs of 1 Brhl each
TIndoroms Venturgs Miblic Company Limiled, Theiland

Less: provisien for diminulion in the value of curent avestments

B) Prelerence sharey, quoded
Fully paldeup preference shares of 18510 ench
0 §1% Cumnulative redeemsble preferense shares
JSW Stecl Limited
Less: provision for diminutian in the value of current investments

1) Goverament securbles, unquoled
Mutionn! Savings Cotifiemes Vb wssue
(pledped with sales lax autherilics)

Additional diselosures for current invesimenis

Qunted invesimenty
- Equity shates
- Preference shares

Beok valne ol squoted nvestinents

Aggreaate diminution in the value of current invesirments
* Rs. 7,780 (previous yeor Rs, 7,780}
*+ Ry 4,000 (previous yeor Rs 4,000)

1t exeluding Tor equily shares of $anghi Pelyesters Limiled and Opiel Telecommunientions Limited in respect of which market value ore not avaiable.

Indo Rasan Syniletles (hulin) Lhniied
Notes (o finpncind statements for the yenr endued 3§ Maveh 2636
(AN wrrennis fo Rv.oenves, anlesy oiherivise sturcd}

Asnl
Mo. Na. e I MOk 2015
; T3B4077 ' o 3085 30,843,677 3485
1,504,000 . 1.50 1,500,000 1.50
SRS .
M. Mo,
54,501 037 52,501 Q.37
08,400 234 708,400 234
10 B 1D -¢
72,601 .0 72,601 . 017
T AT a 2,509,200 SOSN8
’ 2,48 -
277 -
0.13
£92,000 089 492,000 989
bz, . g D32
L63 0.57
9 L1}
As at 31 March 2056 Ags at31 Mareh 2018
- Aggregale Boal Market Yaluel Met Aggrognle Book Market Ynlue/ Met
Yalite  Avsel Yaloe o Value Asset Value #
011 8.1 i 3162
063 - 0,63 0.57 0,57
0.74 4,74 4.28 38,19
A s




Tnda Banta Synthedes {India) Limdted
Hodes (o 1he Bunneial statements oy the yewr nded 33 March 26146
LAN amonais i Bs. croves, arfess atfienelve stafed)

Nuge 1904 5 Long-tevns lonns and advanves

To parties other (hao velaied (unsecuredy
Comsidered poott
Caplinl sdvances
Seewrity deposits
Other foons nnd sdvances
Sursbnder valuo of keyinan insurance
MAT crodit entitlemem {refer note 41{n))

Advinge Inx [nel of provision Rs 306.42 crores {previous vear Re.106.42 grores))

Others

Considered doubtiit :
Advences to vendurs
Less ; provision for doubtfid advences

To velnted parties (unseevweed, considered good}
Indo Ramn Renmwables Limited {wholly owned subsidisry) (reler note 37)

Note 14.2 ¢ Shovi-term lanns arad advanees

To paribes oiher Lhan relsicd (unsecured)
Considersi good ;
Ofhers :

Cusloms and oxcise duly

Propald oxpenses

Advanoes 1o vendors

Advanees 10 employees

To relnted parties (unsecured, considered goed)
irndo Ramu Renewables Lintiled (wholly cwned subsidiary) {refer sote 37)

MNate 15.1 : Other nan-curreat nssels

Cleims and ciher receivables

Note 18.2 ; Oibier current nssels

Cleims aad oiher receivables
Forwerd cover teceivable (nei)
Interest accrued on deposits and others

Asad

e ), Maveh 208

930
215

Ayal
Lo3L Maveh 2086

As af

3] March 2006

119,13
14.51
£.92

N
U ;&m i
]

Asal
L BEMoreh 2008

45 34

As Bt
M March 2018

37356
S

2601
Y

As st
Sl Mareh 2018

As at
e 3L Mk 2015

10041
1390
273

)



Endo Haunae Sysihatios {indin} Linbled
Motes 1 ihe Suancial snfenienits foy e year enged 4 March 2816
(Al ey in Ry vreres, npdess arberwive safed)

Note 16: lnvendoriey
As Asnt

WA March 2006

(e maredals {inehede i ransit s 7 93 ziores (previons yeor K. 84 92 crores)] et 152 21
Work- in-progress * 1916 1908
Finished goods [inclide in transit Rs 4 99 erores (previous yenr Rs B 59 erones)) ¥ 12352 51.04
Stores ang speres {inchade in 1ransit s MNil (previous year s 0 05 crores)) # 1395 i2.0]
Packing meterinl # 4.42

Wasie $ . 3.59

o wilued g the lower of cost wid net realisable value. The inventorles were reduees) by Rs. 1.30 orores {previous year s 110 vrores) on secount of net realisabe vabie biing tower than the cost:
fi valued # cost o unter
§ at realissble vahie

Addltonat disclosures regreélug inventories

Rew mnlevinls

Purified Terepthulic Acid 1479 98 08
tone Eilylene Glyeol 16 88 4598
Otliers 3 .0 . 82

Worli-In-progress

Palyester Staphe Fibre TGS T U
Folyester Filmnent Yarn 6 04 4.25
Diaw Texiarised Yorn 548 275
1976 B A

Tinlshed goods

Tolyestor Staple Fibre 36,90
Polyester Filament Yam 21.28
Draw Teaturised Yarn 1358

Polyesier Chips

/.(\55 Asg
<5 AT

i \




Nate 11 Trade veceivabley

Tnelo Renva Syniketios adlay Limbed

Mates (o the faadcial staterents for the year endel 33 Murel 2016

(AN mprsicsety i RS crores, uanbess offrerwise staéed)

- Receivobles putsianding for o period exceeding sis. months from the dute they become diie for paymerns

- Unsegued, conshdered uood
- Unseeatred, constdered doubidul

Less:- Provision

« Other receivables, unscebred and considered good

Nate 18! Cash angl bank batnnees

Cash and ensh equivalents

Cosh on hand
Badencos with banks:
+ Cuitent pecoupts

Tixed deposits with original waturity pedod of ypte dree months #

Orher bk balanees

Fined deposits with banks due 1o moture withio 12 months of reposting diie #

Balances will: lahk:
- Unpaid dividends ¢
Morgin mpney aceouis **

il Medged with brnks for eredit limils

* Barmorked pgainst the corresponding provision

++ Pledged with benks for peformance gusrantees issued to government outhorities en behalt of the Conpany

Asnl

A Mareh 2016

Asal
AL Mpreh 2086

Asal

LA Manch 32018

Asat
3L Mareh 2008

0.92 027
494 1098
: SRR+ . .5
22,69

68.57 315
939 03
.60 o08
76,56 3199
82,42 85,08

I

| i
9

Y

.;
¥

<5
G



Note 190 Reveiue e opeyations

Sale of prodocts
Finished goods
Less: Hxelse duty

Other operiilag revenue

Scrap sales

VAT refund

Interest fiom eusiomers

Interest on Insarance claim (refer note 39 (b))
Oulyers

Revenue from opevativns {net)

Hrenkup of revewne from sale ol produas

Sale of finished gouds
Polyester Sinple Flbre
Polyester Filament Yaen
Diaw Texturised Yarm
Polyestor Chips

Tower

Producl Wasle

Nole Z0: Cilrer income

Interest on fixed deposits

Dividend income [fowm cnrent investments

Profit on sale of current investiments {nel)

Reversat of provision for diminution in 1he value of curvent investments
Gain on sale ol fixed nssots

MinceHaneony i oz

Note 21: Cesd of materinls consamed

R mnterinls :

Purified Terephiholic Acid
Mono Ethylene Glycol
Others

Less: wrize down of inventary, cansidered as exceptional item {refer note 43(n))

tnde Kasma Syniietes {dnding Linited
Mutes 1 Ui Bonnclel stnloments 1oy 1he year ended 30 Mreh 2016
(A ooty i RS, croves, nofess athersise stofed)

For the yoar ended

2,714,609

For the year ended
31 March 2016

e 480

For e yenr ended

For the yenr ended

1,.346.81
407.63

68.97

[
#

For (he yenr ended
2018

2,961 90
R
2,708,950

9.16
1183
.41

Lhos
42,48

For (ke year ended

1,641 67
355 11
730 47
0.4k
0715

30

R

For the year ended
o3 March 2008

.9
052
Q9w
0,04

For ihie year ended
A Marck 20158

1,540.54
[ARl]




o g Syitlethes (Jadin) Limifed
Mozes 10 the flunnclal sintemenis for the yenr esded 31 March 2056
LAN amonenry in 5 crares, wiless arthenvise stofeidf

Nole 22: Changes in invenlorics of finished goods and work-In-progeess

Asnl As al {Incrense)idecrense
3 Marels 2680 31 March 2018 thiring e year enided

{avenjories nl the end of the yery

~ Finished goods 112 52 91.04 {21 48)
~ Work-in-progress 19.76 14.08 (5.68)
- Wasto 359 a4 (3 15}
135,87 105,56 {30.31)
Invenipries at ihe beginning of the yeay 31 Maveh 2035
-Finished goods 9102 6073 {303n
~Wark-in-progress 14 08 3003 {07
Wasio S L
105,56
Wiite dows of invemory, considered a8 exceptionsd item {refer note 43{a)} 549
(Inerense) / Wecrease during the yesr {30.84)
Note 231 Employee benelits éxpense
Far the year ended for the yenr cnded
e S MMrh 2006 w31 Mareh 20
Solaries, wages and bonus 9537 . 82,49
Contribution 10 provident and other unds (refer note 32) 511 49z
Workmen and stnfl welfire expenses 497 448

106,43

Mebe 24; Other expenses

For the year ended Tor the year ended
dareh 2016 e B MR OIS

Consumplion of siores and spires 2729 3308
Trower and fact 16517 183 23
Rent and hice cherges (efer nate 35) 676 565
Repairs und mainisunte:
- plant and machinery 14 82 14,92
- huildings 1.57 230
- olhers 6.00 619
Insurance 161 113
Less: Recovery 048 1.43 091 032
Rates and laxes Trmmmm—— agr T ” 143
Praciing materials consumed 5504 50.67
Treight and forwarding cherges : 106.73
Less ; Recovery - 21 . L 3883
Brokerage and commission on sales (ether than 16 sode selling agenis) . 1000 10.04
Cash discounts pnd clalng . . . 50 60 3.34
Diireclors' sitilng fee . 0.09 (074
Leysl and professional chorges - 826 449
Audlilors' remuneralion:

~ Tor audii . . 042 .40

< Tor tax awdil - GOn

= for other surviecs 027 028

- for reimbuisement of oul of pocket expenses ¢ 0§ 00d
Donntions 004 040
Carporaie social responsitilivy expenses (refpr note 44} 02 V18
Provision for deubiful debts and advences .45 [ 3]
Loss on discard / disposal of fixed assels 043
Increase in excise disly on stucks of finished goods and wasie 401

Miscellaneous expenses 315




Tnds Rama Syniheties (ndla) Limited
Wotes b0 the fnncisl statemennts Tor the yer ended 3% areh 26106
(AN ety Bt Rs. craves, widess otherwise wtufeel}

Noje 25! Finance cosds
For the yenr etled For (he year ensled

31 Mnych 2016 L March 2008

Intercst 3307 2630
1508

Bank and other chargas e 1859

Naotr 26: Earnings { {boss) per equity shave (EPS)
Tor e year esded For the year ended

o3 Muareh 2006 31 Maveh 201

et Profit £ {Loss) ae por Statenest of Profit gad Loss 56 00 {2153
Wumber of vty shures of Rs 10 cach ot the beginiog of 1he year 151,832,242 151,822,242
Number of cquity shares of s, 10 ench at tho end of the yew 151,822,242 151,822,242

151,522,242 151,822,242

Weighted average aurber of wquity shares of Ra 10 cach at the end of the year far catculaiion of
bisic and diluted E1'S
DBasic ond diluled carnings / (Joss) por shere (in Rs ) {Per share of Rs 20 cach) 3.6 1.42)




indo Rama Sypthetics (fndin) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All amounts in Rs. crores, unless otherwise stafed)

27, CIF value of imports

Barticoiars

For the yre ar
ended
31 March 2016

For the year
ended
31 March 2015

Raw materials 653.60 1331.29

Packing material 1.01 0.26

Stores and spares 5.89 3.98
Capital goods 20,58 2.23

28, Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)

Particulars For the year For the yea;_m

ended ended

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Travelling 1.59 2.24

Commission 2.34 3.16

Interest 3.00 3.03

Others 138 0.76

29. Value of raw materials, stores & spares and packing materials consumed:

Particulars

Raw materials

 Percentage of total consumption (%)

For the year
ended
31 March 2016

40

For the year
ended
31 March 2015

66

Value

For the year
ended

For the year
ended

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

818,23

. 1,466,94

% [ EOP féﬂ};ﬁ?\{

Imported . _
Indigenous .60 34 120518 741.16
Total 100 100 2,023.41 2,208.10
Stores and spares

Imported 15 12 3.96 3.85
Indigenous 85 88 BB 29.20
Total 100 100 27.29 33.05
Packing materials

Imported 2 i 115 0.26
Indigenous o 98 99 53.99 5041
Total 100 100 55.14 50,67
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30, Net dividend remitied in foreign exchange

mwi?m' the year I*mtlnyen ‘
ended ended
31 Mareh 2016 31 Marvch 2015

i
Period to which dividend relates to 2014-15 2013-14
Number of non-resident sharcholders (Nos.) 2 2
Number of equity shares held on which dividend was 43,620,465 43,620,465
due (Nos.)
Amount remitted USD 653,980 (Previous year USD 4.36 4.36

T20,761) { R4, in crores)

31. Earnings in foreign currency {accrual basis)

partieulars For the year For the yea;'w
ended ended
31 March 2006 31 March 2015

F.OB. value of exports 388.02 596.72
Dividend 0.60 0.52
Sale of current investments (Gross consideration) 2888 0.92

32. Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15 on “Bmpioyee Benefits”

a. Defined contribution plans

An amount of Rs. 4.52 crores (previous year Rs. 4.33 crores) for the year has been recognized as an
expense i respeet of the Company’s contributions towards Provident Fund and an amount of Rs. 0.58
crore (previous year Rs. 0.57 crores) for the year has been recognized as an expense in respect of
Company’s contributions towards Employee State Insurance, which are deposited with the government
authoritics and have been included under employce benefit expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Defined benefit plang

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on superannuation, death or permanent
disablement in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Company’s Scheme,
whichever is more beneficial,

The following table scts forth the status of the gratuity plan of the Company and the amounts recognised
in the Balance Shect and Statement of Profit and Loss:

“ P
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Particulars

Changes in present value of obligation

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the
year

| Interest cost

Current service cost

1 Past service cost

‘| Benefits paid

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation

Present value of obligation as at end of the year

- Long term
- Short term

fixpenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost on benefit obligation

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in the year
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss

" Yorthe ycaxen ded  Yorthe vuncndui
31 March 2010 31 March 2015
13,65 12.64

1.10 1.05

0.91 0.99

(1.34) 0.53)

(1.20) {0.46)

13.12 13.65

1211 12.65

1.01 1.00

13.12 13.65

0.91 0.99

110 1.05

o 120) (0.406)
0.81 1.58

Txperience adjustments

For the year

ended ended

31 March 31 March

2016 2015

Defined benefit

obligation 13.12 13.04
Plan assets = -
Surplus / (deficit) (13.12) . (13.64)
Experience adjustment ' '
on plan liabilities {0.38) 0.81

Past service cost -
Experience adjustment
_on plan assets

For the year

For the year
ended

31 March
2014

12.60

(12.60)

0,59

For the year
ended

31 March
2013

12.00

{12.00)

0.22

For the
year ended
31 Mareh
2012

11.26

(11.26)

(0.29)
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The prineipal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s pians are shown below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2016 31 Mareh 2015
Discounting rate 8.20% 8.10%
Retirement age : 58 Years 58 Years
Satary Escalation Rate (per annum) 4% 5%
Withdrawal rates
Age - Uplo 30 years 3% 3%
31-44 years 2% 2%
Above 44 years ) 1% 1%
Mortalily table IALM (2006-083 - 1ALM (2006-08)

Discounting Rate: The discount rate is estimated based on the prevailing market yields of Indian
Government securilies as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation.

Salary Escalation Rate: The estimates of salary increases, considered in actuarial valvation, take account
of inflation, promotion and other relevant factors.

c. Other long term benefits:

An amount of Rs. 0.92 crores (previous year Rs. 1.76 crores) pertains to expense towards compensated
absences and included in “Employee benefits expense”

33, Segment information:

(a) Information about primary business segment

The Company recognises ‘Polyester’ as its only primary segment since its operations consist of
manufacturing of this product and related activities. Accordingly, 'Polyester' segment is the only
segment comprising the primary basis of segmental information set out in these financial statements.

{b) Information on secondary/ geographical segment

The Company selis its produets Lo various manufacturers within the country and also exports fo other
companies. Considering the size and proportion of exports to local sales, the Company considers sales
made within the country and exporls as two geographical segments. Information of geographical
segment is based on the geographical location of the customers.

AR in crores)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Segment revenue

Domestic 2,138.45 2,145.35

Overseas ' 39726 616.03

Total 2,535.65 2,761.38

Segment reccivables <

Domestic 158.96 91.36

Overscas 3913 23.64

Total 198.09 115.00

Note: All assets of the Company are located in India except as mentioned above. TP

KMWML"Q'
o3

w, \é
* Gt..l}%{«(gnu #
g :




dado Rama Synthetics (Indin) Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All arowssts in Rs. crores, unless otherwise stafed)

34. Related party disclosures (As per Accounting Standard — 18)

(i} Related parties where control exists:

(&) | Wholly owned subsidiaries Indo Rama Renewables Limited (‘IRRL")
Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited
indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited
Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited

{iiy Other related parties with whom Company had transactions:

(a} | Koy management personnel and | Mr. Mohan Lal Lohia, Chairman Emeritus

{*CMD7) ‘

Mr. Vishal Lohia, Whole Time Director (WTD?)
Mr. Anant Kishere

Mrs. Urmila Lohia, Wife of CMD

Mr. Aloke Lohia Brother of CMD

Mrs. Ritika Kumar, Daughter of CMD

Ms. Aruna Goenka, Sister of CMD

Mrs. Rimple Lohia, Wife of WTD

Indorama Retail Holding Private Limited

their relatives Mr. Om Prakash Lohia,Chairman cum Managing Director

(1) | Bnterprises over which key Indorama Petrochem Limited, Thailand
management personnel or their | T P T Petrochemicals Public Co. Limited, Thailand
relatives have significant PT. Indorama Petrochemicals, Indonesia
influence L.ofa Industries Private Limited

(¢} | Enterprises having significant . Brobkgremg_e Investments Limited
influence on the Company :

(i) Transactions with related parties:

Particulars Wholly owned ey Tnterprises over  Enferprises Total
subsidiaries Management  which key having
Personncl management significant
and their  personnel or influcnce on
relatives their relatives the
have significant  Company
influence
Investment made in
the equity shares
-1IRRL - -
(2.86) (2.86)
Loans and advances
repaid/ adjusted
towards shares issued
-IRRL 1.77 1.77
0.11) (0.t

N
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Y

Particulars 'Wholly owned - Key Enterprises over Enterp:‘:i'é‘é Total
subsidiaries “Management  which key having
B . Personnel management significant
and - their - personnelor influence on
relatives their relatives the
have sipnificant  Company
influence
‘Purchases of raw
maierial
- Indorama Petrochem
Limited 47,37 47.17
(410.83) (410.83)
- TPT Petrochemicals
Public Co. Limited 25.16 25.16
(329.25) (329.25)
- | -PT. Indorama . '
| Petrochemicals . 39.84 39.84
' (16.94) (16.94)
Managerial
remuneration *
- Mr. Q.P. Lohia 2.82 2.82
(2.83) {2.83)
- Mr. Vishal Lohia 2.41 2.11
(2.08) (2.08)
-Mr. Anant Kishore 1.08 1.08
(1.06) {1.06}
{ Dividend paid
| - Brookgrange
Investments Limited 4.33 4.33
(4.33) (433
- Mr. O.P. Lohia 3.54 3.54
(3.54) (3.54)
- Mrs. Urmila Lohia 1.59 1.59
(1.59) {1.59)
| - Others 0,08 0.68
: (0,73 (0.73)
b Ag




Inde Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Notes to financial statements for-the year ended 31 March 2016
(All amounis in Rs. crores, un(e.&‘s‘oxh erwise stated)

(1v) Closing Balances of related parties :.

Particnlars Wholly owned Key nterprises over  Lnferprises
subsidiaries Management  which key having
Personncel management significant
and their  personnel or infhience on
relatives their relatives the
have sipnificant  Company
influcnee
Trade Payables
}123?:31“‘! Petrochem 52 73 52 73
{61.15) {61.15)
- TPT Petrochemicals 42.47 42.47
Public Co. Limited (90.80) (90.80)
- T Indorama - -
Petrochemicals (16.95) (16.95)
Loans and advance
Reccivalble
- IRRL 43.57 43.57
(45.34) (45.34)

* excludes expenditure towards gratuity and compensated absences, since the same are based on actuarial
valuaticns for the Company as a whole.

Personal guarantee has been given by My, Om Prakash Lohia (CMD) and Mr, Vishal Lohia (WTD) in.
respect of loan taken by the Company amounting to Rs. 53,12 crores (previous year Rs. 65.63 crores).

Note: previous year figures have been given in brackets,
35, Long ferm obligations in respect of operating lease
The Company has taken office space on operating lease. The lease rentals charged during the year in

respect of cancellable and non cancellable operating leases and maximum obligations on long term non-
cancellable operating lease payable as per the rentals stated in the agrecment are as follows:

For the year TPor the year

ended ended

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Lease rental ¢xpinse _ 6.76 5,65

Future minimum lease reatals for non-cancellable operating lease

Total future minimum  Total future minimuom
lease rentals payable as  lease rentals payable as

on 31 March 20106 on 31 March 2015
Within one year L.67 1.67
Later than one yecar and not later than five years 2.31] 3.98
Later than five years - .
Total 3.98 5.05

Dottt
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36. Contingent Habilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

37

Contingent Habilities:

%

b)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts.

As al As at
31 Mareh 2016 31 March 2013
Excise / customs / service, tax mditub in dlbp‘&itu’ undcz' T 9226 62.83
appeal - S
Ingome tax matters in.dis Jlllb/ under dpp(:ﬂi 11.88 11.88
Sales tax/ VAT watters in dispute/ under appeal 12.84 11.04
Claims by ex-employees, vendors, customers and civil 0.95 0.84

Customs duty claims (including penalties) against the Company aggregating to Rs. 214.25 crores
(previcus year Rs. 214,25 crares) have not been considered contingent as favourable orders have
been received, in some of the cases, by the Company from the CESTAT. The Company believes
that its position is strong in this regard. The matter is pending with the Honorable Supreme Court.
In addition during the previous year, the Company has also reccived a show cause notice
amounting to Rs 6.01 crores.

The Company also believes that the above issues, when finally settled, are not likely to have any
significant impact on the financial position of the Company.

Commitments:

Istimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
(net of advances) is Rs. 17.46 crores (previous year Rs.25.48 crores),

The Company has commitments to export 191,549 MT (previous year 285,985 M) of [inished
goods as per foreign trade policy pursvant to import of duty free material under advance license
scheme,

Supplementary statutory information required to be given pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015, in respect of the loans given

Interest free loans to wholly owned subsidiary given for the purpose of setting up of renewable power
project, are (o be converted, on mutual aga eement, into equity, quas; cqunty or debentures or repayable on

- or before 31 March 2017: i
Name of Subsidiary Balance as at Maximum Balance us at Maximum
31 March outstanding 31 March outstanding
20106 during the 2015 during the
year 2015-16 year 2014-15
Indo Rama Renewables Limited 43.57 45.34 4534 45.45

fa i
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38. Derivative instraments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

il

(a)  Foreign carveney forward contracts outstanding:

m]“";;irpuse Asat | Ty
31 Marvch 2016 3% Mareh 2015
ush INR UusDh INR
Millions erores Millions Croyes
Hedging of expected future exports (Sell) 110.21 730.27 126.44 789.93

()  Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure:

Particulars  Curreney As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015
Amountin  Exchange  Amount Amount Exchange Amount
foretgn rate (in Rs in foreign rate (in Rs
currency  {in abselute crores) currency  (in absolute  c¢rores)
(millions) rupees) {(millions) rupees)
Trade USh 24.95 66.26 165.32 51,31 62.505 320.73
payables Euro 0.01 75.42 0.11 (.02 67.21 0.15
JPY 107.13 0.59 6.32 79.52 0.52 4.14
AED 5.06 18.04 9.13 4,81 17.02 8.19
Advance , .
from UsDh 0.35 66.26 2.34 0.70 62.505 4.36
customers
Loans usn 22.80 66.26  151.06 32.23 62.505 201.43
{including
inferest .
ur ¢
payable) Euro 6.19 75.42 46.710 6.81 67.21 45.77
Capital UsD 1.72 66.26 1§.42 -
creditors

39, Insurance claim receivables:

{a) The Company had lodged claims with its insurance company for the loss of certain assets and loss
suffered due to business interruption under loss of profit policy relating to a {ire incidence at
Butibori plant in 2007-08. Since, the matter has been under dispute with the insurance company, as
er the lerms and conditions of the above policy, the Company has, during the previous years,
“Umonitiated the arbitration process for a claim of Rs. 72.94 crores for loss of business interruption and
b l\n the claim of Rs. 6.43 crores for loss of assets. While the said matter was pending conclusion by

; ’lin Arbitral Tribunal, the Company, on a conservative basis, carried forward insurance recoverable
2 (fecorded in the financial year ended 31 March 2008) to the extent of Rs. 33.53 crores (net of
-eceipt/adjustment) as advances recoverable, without prejudice 10 its right to claims aggregating
Rs. 79.37 crores. On | August 2012, the Arbitral Tribunal decided the matier in the favour of the
Company with an award of Rs. 32.45 crorfes {net off receipt/adjustment) and interest at 9% per
e annum from July 2008 till the date of payment. Pursuant 1o the above award, the Company had
= Q,a during the year 2012-13 recorded the interest receivable amounting to Rs. 11.69 crores upto July
I\BA2012 (the date of order) and aligned the carrying amount of insurance claim. The Insurance
Q"‘"@“’)\Qi ’4“ . (Company had filed an appeal in the Delhi High Court against the same. On 20 January 2015, the

\ﬁif A QU"
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Delhi High Court Single bench pronounced the order wherein the Court has remanded the matter
back to Arbitral Tribunal for computation of claim on “turnover basis”. Subsequently, the Company
had filed an appeal with the Dethi HMigh Court double bench and an interim stay has been awarded
pending disposal. Currently, the case is pending with Delhi High Court.

{b) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has recognised interest of Rs. 10,95 crore on

award decided by the arbitral tribunal, for the less of certain assets and loss suffered due to business
interruption vnder loss of profit policy relating to fire incidence at its plant in 2007-08 under ‘other
operating income”,

{c) Consequent o an incident of five during ihe year 261112, the Company had spent Rs, 7.58 crores

40.

on refurbishment of the concerned plant and machinery, which had been recognized as a receivable
from the msurance company under other current assets. During the current year, the claim was
rejected by insurer on grounds of insufficient premiuvm paid. The Company has filed the writ
petition on 6 May 2016 against the insurance company.

Further, the Company strongly believes and is reasonably certain that the above cases do not have
any significant impact on the financial position of the Company and it will be able to realize the
above amounts in the normal course and, therefore, all the claims have been classified as current.

Based on the information available, there are certain vendors who have confirmed that they are
covered under the Micre, Small and Medinm Enterprises Development Act, 2006, Disclosures as
required by section 22 of ‘The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, arc
given below:

unpaid to any supplier as at the end of year
- principal amount¥ 0.03
- interest thereon -

(i) the amount of interest paid in terms of section 16, along with the
amounts of the payment made to the suppliers beyond the
appointed day:

- principal amount** 0.14 0.09
- interest thereon - .
(iii) the amount of interest duc and payable lor the year of delay in
making payment {which have been paid but beyond the 0.0
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest '
specified under this Act #
(iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid ## 0.02 0.01

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of - -
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
this Act.

* Rs. 253 thousand {(previous year Rs. 24 thousand)

#* Rs. 1,421 thousand (previous year Rs. 893 thousand)
# Rs. 58 thousand {previous yvear Rs. 15 thousand)

i Rs. 158 thousand (previous year Rs. 99 thousand)
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41, (a) The Company has internally assessed the operating margins and it’s set-off against accumulated
Unabsorbed Depreciation as per the income tax laws, In the absence of virtual certainty and as a
matter of prudence the Company has charged off MAT Credit eatitlement amounting to Rs. 57.30
crores during the year,

(b)Y Earlier, the Company had not recorded deferred tax assets in relation to unabsorbed
depreciation as the same has been subject matter of hHtigation. Pursuant to the changes made by
Finance Act, 2015 and based on opinion of legal counsel, the Company is reasonably cortain that
the litigation do not have any significant impact on recoverabilily of Rs, 15833 crore of
unabsorbed depreciation (o the extent of future reversal of defered tax Habifities.

42. The Company had made an carly application, since the year 2010-11, of Aceounting Standard 30
“Financial Insiruments- Recognition and Measurement™, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountanls of India for accounting for forward exchange contracts taken for highly probable /
forecast fransactions, which are not.covered by Accounting Standard 11. An amount of Rs. 5.09
erores has been recognized as income (previous year an expense of Rs, 4.69 crores) in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and included in exceptional items as an adjustment on
the said application of Accouniing Standard 30,

43. Exceplional items

() Inventory losses amounting to Rs. 26.68 crore for the year ended March 31, 2016, which includes
foss of Rs. 4.02 crore (previous year Rs. 20,75 crore) on account of write down of closing
ihventories, caleulated on month on month basis, incurred by the Company due to crash in global
crude oif prices and consequently impacting raw material prices, i.e., of PTA and MEG. The loss
incurred has been primarily due to the timing difference in the prices at which material has been
purchased and sold.

(b) Due to significant volatility in the foreign currency vis-a-vis Jocal currency, the Company has

~ considered the foreign exchange fluctuation as an exceptional item ip the Statement of Profit and
L ose o ; v

(c) ‘Others’ includes differential excise duty (including interest thercon) amounting to Rs. 4.23 crore
paid in compliance with the judgment of the Supreme Court.

44, CSR expenditure

(a) CGross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: Rs. Nil (previous year Rs.
.36 crores).

(b) Amount spent during current year is as follows:

Sr. No. | Particulars : For the yeay ended | For the year ended 31
31 March 2016 March 2015
B Promation of Education 0.11 ' 0.17
2 | Health Care 0.01 0.01
| Total 0.12 0.18
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45. The figures relating to the previous year have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever necessary, 1o
confirm to the current year’s classification, '

As per our report
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B S R and Associates
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Talaphona: + 91 124 2368 610

Buitding Mo.30, Biby Floor, Tower-B Fax: O 124 7358 613

DLF Cyher City, Phase - Il
Gurgaon - 122 002 (India}

Independent Auditors® Report

To the Members of Indo Rama Synihetics (India) Limited

1. Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Indo Rama Synthetics (India)
Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as ‘the Group’), comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the
consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (“the consolidated
financial statements”}.

2. Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the preparation of these consolidated
financial stalements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated Gnancial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows of the Grouyp in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are
respongible for maimtenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets ol the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, tmplementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a truc and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

3. Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on cur audit.,
White conducting the audit, we have taken inte account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to

 Yer
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obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement,

A audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disciosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures seiected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatemnent of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant 1o
the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the ¢ircumstances. An audit also inciudes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presemtation of the
consolidated financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

4. Basis for Qualified Opinion

Aftention is drawn to note 39 (b) of the censolidated financial statements, which enumerates recognition of
interest of Rs. 10.95 crores for the year ended 31 March 2016 on the insurance claim lodged by the Holding
Company with its insurance company for the loss of certain assets and loss suffered due to business
interruption at its plant in 2007-08. The said recognition of asset, is not in accordance with gecounting
principle stated in Accouniing Standard 29, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent Assets’. Had
such income not been recognised, the net toss before tax for the year would have been higher by Rs. 10.95
crores, the net profit after tax for the year would have been lower by and Rs. 7.16 crores and Reserves and
Surplus as at 31 March 2016 would have been lower by 7.16 crores.

5. Qualified Opinion

In eur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for
the maticr described in ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ paragraph above, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Act, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consol idated state of affairs
of the Group as at 31 March 2016, their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

6. Emphasis of matter

We draw attentjon to note 39 (a) of the consolidated financial statements which describes the uncertainty
related 1o the outcome of the lawsuit filed by the Holding Company against an insurance company. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,
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7. Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

(i) Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

©

(D

(8)

(h)

S

we have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

except for the effects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion® paragraph
above, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our

examination of those hooks;

the consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and loss, and the
consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report, are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

except for the effects of the matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph
above, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

the matter described in the *Basis for Qualified Opinion’ and matier described under ‘Emphasis
of matter’ paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the
Group;

on the basis of the relevant assertion contained in the audit reports on standalone financial
statements of the Holding Company and each of its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India,
none of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on 31 March 2016 from being
appointed as a dircctor of that company in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as staled in the ‘Bases for Qualified Opinion’ paragraph above;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating cffectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure-[";

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according lo the explanations given to us:

i the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the

consolidated financial position of the Group — Refer notes 37 and 39 to the consotidated
{inancial slatements;

e
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if.  the Group did not have any long term contracts, including derivatives contracts outstanding
as at 31 March 2016 For which there were any material foresceable losses; and

fii.  there has been no delay in transferring amounts that were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company. There were no amounts
which were required to be transterred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
subsidiary companies, incorporated in India.

For B S R and Associntes
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration number: 128901W

Jiten Chopraw
Place: Gurgaon Pariner
Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 092854
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditors® Report to the Members of Indo Rama Synthetics (budia)
Limited on the consolidated financial statements

Report on the Internal Winanecial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*ihe Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial staiements of the Group as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2016, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Conirols

The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on ‘Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT)”.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intersal financial controls over financial
reporling based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidanee Note on “Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting’ (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining ar understanding of internal {inancial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial siatements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

N
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is & process designed 1o provide reasonable
agsurance regarding the reliability of financial veporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purpeses in accordance with generally accepted accounting principies. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes these policies and procedures that (1) nertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary 1o permit preparation of financial stalements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and dircctors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Winancial Controls over ¥inancial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material missiatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary Companies which are companies incorporated in
India have, in all materia} respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on ‘Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting’ issued by the ICAL

For B 8§ R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
[CAY Firm Registration No.: 128901 W

( \ N ; Wﬁ\

Jiten Chopra
Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 092894

Ptace: Gurgaon Partner
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Indo Rama Synthetics (fndia) Limited
Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(Al amomits in Rs. crores, unless otherwise stated)

General information

Indo Rama Synthetics {India) Limited (hereinafter referred fo as “the Hoiding Company” or ‘IRSL’) is a
manufacturer of Polyester Filament Yarn (PFY), Polyester Staple Fibre (PSI), Praw Texturised Yarn
(DTY), Specialty Fiber and Chips. The Company is also engaged in power generation, which is used
primarily for captive consumption. The Company’s manufacturing facilities are located at Butibori,
Nagpuy,

The Holding Company has invested in certain subsidiaries which are directly or indirectly engaged in the
business of generation and supply of encrgy from renewable resources. The Holding Company along with
its subsidiaries bas been referred to as “the Group”.

Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation and consolidation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost cotrvention,
modified to include revaluation ol certain fixed assets, ob a going concern basis, on the acerual basis of
accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India. Indian
GAAP primarily comprises mandatory accounting standards as specified under the section 133 of the
Companics Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, and other accounting
pronouncements of the institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2.2 Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Group, ali being incorporated in India. The
cansolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures for
the preparation and presentation as laid down in Accounting Standard- 21.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

i} The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been combined on a line-by-line basis by
adding the book values of all items of asscts, liabilities, incomes and expenses after eliminating intra-
group balances/ transactions and unrealised profits in full.

it) The consolidated financial statements are prepared by using uniform accounting policies for similar
significant transactions and other events in similay circumstances. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are adjus(ed for the accounting principles and policies followed by the Group.

iiiy The consolidated financial statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as that
adopted by the Group for its separale financial statements.




Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(Al amounts in Rs. croves, unless otherwise stated)

{iv) The companies considered in the consolidated financial statements are:

Name of the company Date of incorporation Percentage of
shareholding as at
31 March 2016

Indo Rama Synthetics Ul‘l(ﬂ'é) Limited | 28 April {986 Ultimate holding
(IRSLS) SR R { Company
Indo  Rama Renewables  Limited | 3 May 2012 100

Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited | 23 May 2012 100

CIRRILT) e : .

Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar | 23 May 2012 160

Limited (‘IRRPL?)
Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh | 25 May 2012 100
Limited (‘1RRRL") .

2.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and labilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements and the results of operations during the year. Differences between actual results and estimates
are recognized in the year in which the results are known or materialized. Examples of such estimates are
estimated useful life of assets, classification of assets/liabilities as current or non-current in cerain
circumstances, recoverability of minimum allernate tax credit entitlement, provision for doubtful
receivables and retirement benefits, etc. Actual resulls eould differ from those estimates. Any revision Lo
accounting estimates is recognized prospeetively in current and future periods,

2.4 Current/ non-current classification .
All assets and liabilities are classified as current and non-current,
Assets

An asset is classificd as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or conswmption in, the Cempany’s normal
operating cycie;

b it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

¢) it is cxpected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date.

> _N"‘».
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. 0(“@"3;".0:;\ )
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Al other assets are ¢lassified as non-current.




Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Notes (o the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All amonnts in Rs. croves, wiless otherwise stared)

Liabilities

A tiability is classified as current when it satisfics any of the following criteria:

a) it is expected to be settied in the Company’s normal operating cycie;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

¢) it is due to be settled within 12 months afler the reporting date; oy

@) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer setilement of the Hability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Current Habilities include current portion of non-current financial Habititics,

All other liabilities are clagsified as non-current,

Operating eycle

Operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or
cash equivalents. The Company considers its operating cycle to be within a year.

2.5. Tixed assets
Fixed assels are stated at cost of at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation, Cost of fixed assets
includes all incidental expenses and interest costs on borrowings, attiibutable to the acquisition of
qualifying assets, upto the date of commissioning of assets.
Foreign currency exchange differences are capitalized as per the policy stated in note 2.13(b) below,
2.6 Deprecialion/ amortization

Holding Company (Polyester business)

¢ Leaschold land and cost of leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of lease or their
useful lives, whichever is shorter,

e Depreciation on other fixed assets {exciuding software) is provided using the straight line method at
the rates based on following useful lives of assets estimated by the management:

Particalar 5 Useful life
TFactory bui Idings/ Non factory buiidings 28 years/ 58 years
Plant and equipment {Continuous Process Plant) I8 years
F urniture and fixtures 15 years
Vehicles 110 years
quipment/ C nmpulu and Peripherals 20 years/ 6 years

The above useful lives arc arrived at, based on the internal technical assessment of the management,
are currently reflective of the estimated useful tives of the fixed assets.

s Fixed assels individually costing up fo rupees five thousand are depreciated at the ratc of 100% over a
period of one year. '

s Software are amortised on straight line method over a period o[‘th:eu years, ——

S iy,
X Guk/(ou ;




Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All amounts in Rs. croves, unless otherwise stated)

Subsidiaries (Power Generation)

In respect of assets used in generation and supply of energy from renewahle sources, the depreciation
is being provided at the rates as well as methodalogy potified by the Maharashira Ilectricity
Regulatory Commission in its order dated March 22, 2013 for Determination of Generie Tariff under
Regulation 8 of the Maharashira Blectricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions for
determination of Renewable Tnergy tariff) Repulations 2010, As per the regulations, the depreciation
is 1o be allowed uplo a maximum of 90% of the Capitai Cost of the assci and the depreciation rate for
the first 10 years of the Tariff Period shall be 7% per annum and the remaining depreciation shall be
spread over the remaining useful life of the project from §1th year onwards.

Further, office cquipment are depreciated over useful life of 20 years.

“The useful life is arrived at, based on the internal technical evaluation of the management, primarily
consisting of plant and machinery. As per this evaluation, the useful life of assets does not require a
change from the previous estimates.

2.7 Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at cach balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. I any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable
amount is estimated as higher of its net selling price and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized
whenever Lhe carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount. impalrment losses are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of asscts (Cash
Generating Unit or CGU) that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of
the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. '

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does nol exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or
amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized.

2.8 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisilion or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized
as part of the cost of such assets to the extent that they relate to the period till sueh assets are ready to be
put 1o use. A qualifying assct is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged ta the Statement of Profit and Loss,

1.9 Investments

Long-term investments (including its current portion) are carried al cost less diminution, other thai
temporary, in value. Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value, which is
computed category wise.

2.10 Inventories

\/,
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Indo Rama Syniheiics (India) Limited
Notes {0 the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(AIl amounts in Rs. croves, unfess otherwise stated}

o Raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at ihe tower of cost and net realizable
value. Finished goods and work-in- progress include material cost and appropriate portion of
manufaciuring and other overheads. Cost s ascertained on a weighted average basis,

2,11 Revenue recognition

i) Sale of goods

Revenue fram sale of products is recognized when the products are dispatched against orders from
customers in accordance with the contract terms, which coincides with the transier of significant risks and
rewards. .

Sales are stated inclusive of excise duty and net of rebates, trade discounts, sales tax and sales returns.

ii) Sale of power
Sale of power is recognized on the basis of actual quantity of power sald with ceference to the contracted
rate.

Rovenue from the sale of wind power is recognised when earned on the basis of contractual arrangemaents
and reflects the number of units supplied in accordance with joint meter readings underlaken on a
mouthly basis by sepresentatives of the buyer and the Company at vales stated in the contract.

iil) Generation-based jncentives

Revenue from generation-based incentives are recognised based on the number of units supplied and
when the eligibility criteria under the indian Renewable Energy Development Agency Limited -
Generation Based Incentive scheme are metl.

iv) Insurance claims
Insurance claims are accounted for on an accrual basis, to the extent these arc measurable and ultimate
collection is reasonably certain (Also refer to note 39).

v) Dividend
Dividend from investments is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

vi} Interest income
[nterest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the inferest rate applicable.

2.12 Qperating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased asset are classified as operating lease. Operating leasc charges are recognized as an expense in the
Statermnent of Profit and Loss on a straighi-line basis over the lease term.

2.13 Foreign exchange transactions and forward contracts

Foreign exchange transactions

a) Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
ransaction. All monetary foreign currency assets and labilities are converted at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the balance sheet, All exchange differences, other than in refation to acquisilion
of fixed assets and other long term foreign currency monctary lHabilities, are dealt with in the Slatement of
Profil and Loss.




Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All amounts in Rs. crores, unless otherwise stated)

b) In accordance with Accounting Standard 11, “Accounting for the effects of changes in foreign
exchange rates”, exchange differences arising in respect of long term foreign currency monetary items
used for acquisition of depreciable capital asset, are added 1o or deducted from the cost of asset and are
depreciated over the balance life of asset,

¢) In case of foreign exchange forward contracts taken for underlying transactions, and covered by
Accounting Standard 11, “Accounting for the Bffects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, the
premium or discount is amortised as income or expense over the life of the contract, The exchange
difference is calculated as the difference between the foreign currency amount of the contract translated at
the exchange rate at the reporting date, or the settlemnent date where the transaction is settled during the
reporting period, and the corresponding foreign currency amount lranslated at the later of the date of
inception of the forward exchange contract and the last reporting date. Such exchange dilference is
recognized in the Statement of Protit and Loss in the reporting period in which the exchange rates change.

Any profit or loss arising on the cancellation or renewal of such contracts is recognized as income or
expense for the year

d) Forward exchange contracts faken for highly probable/forecast transactions, which are not covered by
Accounting Standard 11, are marked to market in accordance with the principles under AS 30 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
The Company records the gain or loss on effective hedges, if any, in the Hedging Reserve until the
transactions are compiete, On completion, the gain or loss is transferred to the Statement of Profit and
Loss of the period in which such transaction is concluded. To designate a forward  cortract or option as
an effective hedge, managemeni objectively evaluates with appropriate supporting doctuments al the
inception of each contract whether the contract is effective in achieving offsetiing cash flows atiributable
to the hedged risk. In the absence of a designation as effective hedge, a gain or foss is recognized in the
Statement ol Profit and [oss.

2.14 Employee beuelits
a) Shori-term employce benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are clagsified as
short-lerm employee benefits. Benefits such as salarics, wages, and bonus, etc., are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service,

b} Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company deposits the contributions for provident fund 1o the appropriale government authorities and
these congributions are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year to which they
relate,

Defined benefit plan

The Company’s graluity scheme is a defined benefit plan, The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent acluary,
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes cach period of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employec benefit entitiement and measures each unit separately to build vp the Jinal
obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The
discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is




Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 208106
(Al amounts in Rs. crores, unless otherwise stated)

based on the market yields on Government securities as at the halance sheet date. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Other long term employee benefits

Tntittements o annual feave are recognized when they accrue 1o employees. Leave entitlements may be
availed while in service or encashed at the fime of retirement/ termination of emplayment, subject 1o a
restriction on the maximum number of accumulation. The Company determines the lability for such
accumulaied leave entitlements on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
at the year end.

215 Taxation

mcome tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or eredit. Current tax provision is made
based on the tax Tiability computed after considering tax allowances and exemptions under the Income tax
Act, 1961, The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred Lax liabitity and assets are
recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted on the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets arising from unabsorbed depreciation or cary forward losses arc recognized only if
there is virtual certainty of realization of such amounts. Other deferred tax assets are recognized only to
the extent there is reasonable certainty of realization in future, Deferred tax asscts are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to reassess their realisability.

The credits arising from Minimum Alternate Tax paid are recognized as receivable only if there is
reasonable cerlainty together with convineing/ reliable evidence that the Company will have sufficient
taxable income in futare years 1o utilize such credis.

Deferred tax is not recognized on timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday period.
2.16 Government grands

Government grants specifically reecivable as a reduction of interest charge under the grants scheme is
netted off from the interest charge for the year.

2.17 Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atiributable 1o
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss [or the year attributable
to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potentiat cquity shares.

2,14 Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company recopnizes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past cvent and it is
more fikely than not that there will be an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benetits to settle such
obligations &nd the amount of such obligation can be reliably cstimated. Provisions are not discounted to
their present vatue and are determined based on the management’s estimation of the outflow required to
seltie the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at cach balance sheet date and adjusted
to reflect current management estimates.
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Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(Al amounis in RS. crores, anless otherwise stated)

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possibie obligations that have arisen from past events and
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-oceusrence of future events, not
wholly within the control of the Company.

When there is an obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources js remole, no
provision or disclosure is made,
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ek Ravns Syntielies {indla} Limbted
Notes tn Ure comselililed fiosneisd sipioments for e yeny eided 3 Magin 2
(A amnass i s, crores, nitesy ather wive stafee}

Nole 3: Share caplin
As ol

Authostsed

145,000,060 (previous yea 1$5,000,000) cquity shares ol Rs. 1) each

xsued, subserilied and fully pasd-ng

151,822,242 {previous year 151 522.2423 equity shases of R 10 cach Tuily patd-up

31 Mareh 2016

LS

i

1500

2

i51.8

Foot netes
¢ During the coreert yest sk iy e provious yeas, WMo T Bees 1o movemerits in te samber of outstasxding. couity shares.

volue of Rx. 10 per share tHach shavholder is eligible to one vote per share

he Cempany has only one class ol equity shases, hagving @y
ividend propussd, 1 any, by the Board of Birectors it subjeel to approvid of sharetuiders in the ensiop Anosol General Mecting, exeept
of iquidation and buy tuck of shures arg possihte subject 10 prevatent sogakions In e cvent of figuidation, sormaily the quily sharcholders sre ¢l
of sl preferentiol smonnls, i proportion to deld sirehalding.

R

3. Shares in the CO!\][)N\}' hekl ll)’ each shareholder |\0|I“l:g inore Hon 5% shares (HlSll refer o note 4 Lelow) are a5 undur:-
Asnl 3] Nlllf(}il 2086

tn case of Haterin dividend, The ¢

Asut

31 Mureh 2016

151.82

151,62

held, except for shaves held aguinst Global Depositary Receipis (GDRY. The
payment af squity share capilal in e ¢veinl
Hgible 1o receive the remainiag asscis of the Compoiy after i

Ayt 33 Maveh 2015

Names Numler of shares % of shares held Noniber of shares
Brookgrange Investiments Limited 43,288,057 4.5 43,288,057
Mr. Om Prokush Lohia (Chairawan & Mavaging Diegtor) 37,984,000 25.02 35,378,350
Mrs, Urmila Lohio 18,184,518 {1.98 15,855,314
APMS Investmrent Fund Limied 12,652,175 233 12,652,175

112,108,750 484 11,173,896

4. Above equity shares of Rs. 1Y each include 1€4.290,560 cquity shiees (representing 6.78% ol wtal number ol shuses), owstanding ageins! 1,286,
underlying fiiy pridd up equity shures of Re. 10 cach {previous your 10,280,560 cquity shures (represenling 6.78% of wolul pumber of shares), outstmding ngal

detgiis of individual beneficiaries s not available with the Company.

Nate i Reserves and surplus
Ay at

Capitad veserve
Asal e beginning ond st the end of the yeer

Securilics premdum seconnt
As i the bepioning sid wl the end of the year

Wevaluntion reserve

Opening balance

t,css: fronsforred 1o geners! reserve
Clusing bulanee

General reserve
Opening balance
Add: amouitt frsnsfermed from revatustion reserve
Closlap balinee

Surplus i the Stadement of Pralil nnd Loss
Opening batance
Prafit / {loss) aiter wax forthe yenr
I.exs: Apprapristions

Prapused dividesd {refer nuie 3}

Tux on dividead (e
Nel surpios in the Statement of Profitand Luss

“Total reserves wntl surpius

2.8

16622

11,06

58.13
DS
SH.98

13692
§6.44

15,18

Ty

320 Gipbal Depository Receipts (GDR), cacly GRR comprising 8
st 1,286,320 GTts], Sinee the sume are held by depository,

Asal

20.38

166,22

{75 88
(2069
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St n stiien)

{All s i RS COEES

note Bt Lonj-lerm horrowings
Yo

T as
arch 2046 3101

Secured
Loans from ban s
Totm jouts

Hplesy iy

As i 7”

sl 31 Mareh

As il

- Rupee lons 71 8! 05463 44 94 7178 2687 300

- Voreign CHrieney Louns 7190 o, 5392 35.92 17.98 3600

(hhier loans

- Rupee foans 144 .68 125 10 9480
- o 2?3“3}- T o Mm(?‘)".'l)ﬂ

Less:

Amoutls disclosed undar [he nead “othey curneit - - - (54.07) (69.70)

liaitilies® (wier Bete [H}] R i

123.96 247258 - : -

Niture of seearity

) Rupes term Tonns from banks {aien by HoMing Compabyi
i) aimounting, to Rs .07 Crores {previous yenr Rs. 4.00 crores) wi¢ secured by speeific chinrpe
over speciiic nssets 1o e pm‘chased wnder the loan pgreenent

i) amouuting 0 Re 1526 crores (previous year g 20082 croves) are secared by gxchisive

chiarie on e caplive pawer plant ot Butibon, Paharasilr

i) nmonaling to Rs. 53.12 crores (previous year 25,656} crores) e socured privoarily by first
piani-passu charge on e cwrent assets and cotaterally by first pari-prssu charge ot the fined
assels of (he Company. Further, (he same is secured by the parsanil garanies of promoters, e,
M. Qi Prakash [ohia and Mp Vishal Lohiy

W) zlggrcgalillg 1 R, 9.706 ¢rores (previous yeuw Rs. 125 crores) aie secvres) by hypull!cce\tion
of speeific velvicles

b) Fuseign currency term leans from hanks falen ny Bolding Company:

iy winounting 10 Ry 46 40 croves {pevious yeat Rg 45 46 cnes), Hre secured by spueilic chalge
an the cquipment pchased under the lodn apreement for the Company’s Polyesie! Cxpansion
project and 8 {irst charpe on the jand sitvated at Mehsams, Gujinat

i}y amounling ko Re 25,50 croves (previous year Tts 26,46 cuoves) are seeured by specilic charge
on lhe eguipment purulu\sud under the loan agreement for the Campiny's Polyesier Cxpansion
Project and & [ist chinpe on e {and siluated &1 Mehsang, Gujorat

rerms of vepayment

Repayable in 18 equat quarterly insialiments of RS. 1 A3 croves ench comuencing
fiom june 2012, along with imyerest at bank vale plus 1.50%.

Repaysble in 18 equal quarterly {nstallinents of Rs. 1,39 crores enelt comMencing
{rom 30 September 5014 aiong with interest at 3,25% over baze rate.

Repuyuble in % equal guarierly {agialtments of Rs. 4,12 croies cach commeneing
lrom 30 Scptembey 2014 and 10 cqual quaterly instalimens of RS 5 Grores
herenlter, atong with interest al 304 over buse rule.

(m) R, Wil (previous yeur Rg. 0,05 crores) repayatie 16 monthiy installingnis
commencing from Junnary 2813,

() R 0 56 croes (previous year Rs. 091 crores) repaybie in 36 monthly
instalments commencing from September 2014,

(c) Bs. o8 crores (previous yeu! g, 0.4 crores)
instalments commencing fiom Jane 2014,

(o) s, 085 crores (previous Yo Re. 0.08 crores) repaybie in 36 monthly
instalments commencing, Fom May 2014,
e} Rs. 0.03 crores {previous year Rs,
nstalments commeicing from e 2014,

(f) Rs. Q.04 crores (previous yeor {ts. Mil) repayabic in 36 wonthly instalments
commencing from Nov 2014,

The oulstandiing amount of yorsowings taken for vehicles is Rs 076 croves
(provious Year Rs. 123 crores) ot of whiich corrent maturiy payable hexl year
smounls to B (.53 crores {proviows year Rs. 0.51 croves)

repayble in 36 manthiy

Q.05 croses) jepuyable in 36 monthly

The oustanding joan s repayabie in 8 seini-tnowal inslallments i Apil wnd
Greiolbier every yeav with intercst al six monihs BURIBOR plus 0.05% Vhe loan I
10 be repaid by October 2019

Amount paysble withinn one yeut amounts W /s 11.60 ¢raies {previows yorr Rs
27217 eroves)

The outstanding loan 8 repayable i 8 seni-snnual installments April and

Qelaber cyety year witlh interest al six months LIBOR plus $95% The loun i3 10
b repaid by Qciobey 2019,
Amount payable within one
Re. 1323 crotes}

yray amouts 10 R, (.38 cipres {provious yeay




e} Tepee term lomus from others fuken by I

Agul 3] Marel 2016 the breskuy of securzd boan s as follows:
PYLAT Dl R, 68 47 cromes {previous year RS 7342 croves)
23 TCCL Re 24095 ceones {pevions vam Rs 26 76 croves)
PES Ry 4t ‘Unu.u(,ncvaws vear Rs 44 30 cores)

The Loon is Scenred in all tespect pari passe mnong all lenders with the below mentioned
charges/pledgesimarntpages and puaanices

() Fiest mongnge and charge of all the bormewer's immavabie propertics {frechold/iensed
subject 1o pravisions of applicable faw in retation 1o forest fand and revenee land, if any)
Logeitier with a1l shuctures and appintenances therean and thereunder, both present and Nurel

(B} First charge by way of hypothoeation of all the boicower's movable assers, including
ntovable plant and machinery. machinery spares, foels and socessories, fumitre, Rxtures and ait
ather movable aysets, hoth present and folore;

{c) Fiest chage on alf intangible nssets of the borower ingluding but not finited 1o goodwili and
uncalled capital of the berrower, boltl present and fowre;

(@) Tirst charge on all aceounts, revenue, all receivables, operating cash flows, COMMIsSions,
sosoives, book debls wnd DR of the bomowes including withaut Hmitetion, the st and
relention accawitsiesciow necounts (o any aceaunt i subssiiniion thereof) and of all funds
fiom time 1o time deposked therein and in alt Permitted Investments or other sceurilies
representing alt amounts eredited to the trust and retention accounts both present and lilure;

(e} First charpe by way of assigmnent, both present and futwre, ol

(i) All rights, tile, interest, benedits, elaims and demunds, whnisoever of the borrower in, o aad
wnder all of the project documens s tmay be smended, variad and supplemented Bom Hne to
time, including erection & cosunissioning contract, supply contract, operation and mnditenance
sereement (O&NM) aic duly acknowied ged/consenied in weiting by relevanl counter paities (o
such moject dosiment(s);

(i) AR riphts, ite and unerest, clabns and demands, whatsoever of he borrower in, 1o and
under alt the penmits, approvals, clesranceds) and the povermment approvals;

(iii} Al siphis, nitle, njerest benefits, claims and demands, whalsoever of the Dorrower in, 10 and
under all the posianteesfletier of credit othor pecformance bouds warrantics, corporale
guatantee, bank guarantce, indemnitics and seourities that may be fumished in favour of e
borrewer by the various contenelors and any parsy under (he project documents, after obleining
the written consent of the pavties thereto, il necessary,

(iv) All righis, tille, benefits, Qaims, demands and inlerest, whatsaever under sl he Insurance
contracts/insurance proceeds pertaining to the project ’

(1) Pledpe of 1% (seventy six per ceat) of the paid up and voting equity share capital axl of
prefaonce share capital (if any) held by the pramoter in the share capital of the borrower il
final seithemen) dale, and;

(&) Aw inevocable und unconditional corporme puaraniee from the provacter in favour of the
secmity trustee acting Tor the benefit of lenders Tor the due paymentiepayment of securéd
obligations

Fad structmed mionthly instathneits post motatormn pesied of & months fvani the
Pale of Commencanend of Commercint Opeialion (NCCOY e | Octobes 2013

{nteresd snle

(1) Rate of imerast, The vate of interest is "14 T Infia® pinse fending 1ale (PLR)
minns spresd per asnum with monthly rests ("Applicable Interest Rare") payable
morihly

Gid "Spread” is calevimied as the difference between "L&T infin” PLIU and the
Applicable Ruerest Rate amowning to 2 5% per ainum The spread was
determined ut 1he time of first disbirsement based an the L& T infia FLR on that
date. Averape interest rale for the year ended 31 March 2016 is 13% (previous
year 13.25%),

(i) The Applicable Interest Rate shall be resct on the first day of the subsequent
month at the ond of ohe year Tram the date of fiust disbursement ("First Resel
Date"y and every anniversary of such dale thereafar ("Resal e, based on he
then prevailing L&'T Infra PLR

(iv) In case the account is iregulir (or more than ene monil al time of feset, no
benelit for ieduction i interast would he paysed o, thongh the ingrease iy interest
will be {vaded.
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Yo Rarma Syietvidics (adiag Rulied
Nutes to (he consobithsied fnancial stotements for the your eoded JF Mavch 2016
(AN reroints i Bs, crores, unfess otherivise Statud}

Mot G0 Deferred s Babllities (nety
As

Deferred 1y diabiliey on account of
« Fiized assels £52.60

Pyefersod (ux assels o necounl 6%

- Unabsorbed deprecintion® 116.%5
« ElVeet of expenditere debiled 1o statement of profit and foss in the currenticartior yoars hi 4.63
sHowable for tox purpases in lollowlng years

- PProvision lor doubtlut debis and advanees o 1.69

AL Mareh 2046

18260

Net deferred fox Slubitity

Asal
3F Magul 2055

17947

4.72

L9
65t
172,96

v fiy view of ubsence of virtal cerininty of rabisolion of umbsorbed deprecivtion, durbng the: year ihe Company his reqognived defirrcd ax assess on unabsorbed depreiotion 1o the exient of the avallabifity of fulure

tusnble income, by viriue of the fuure reversal of deferred tox Jinbility (vefer note 43(b))

Nole 7 1 Other tong-term linbilities
ANt

o Mareh 2086

As sl
31 Maysch 2415

Lense equalisation reserve 437 0.64
0,37 .64
Note 8: Provisions
Lang-teirm Short-term
Asat Agal As sl As it
31 Mereh 2010 1 March 2018 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Provisien fer empioyer benefis
- Grstuity {refer nose 33) t2.11 12.65 1.01 1,00
- Compensaled nbsences (refer note 33} 6,468 1328 1.93 1 86
Wy T 1900 2896 2.5%
Others
Troposed dividend * - {518 15.18
Tax oi propesed dividend * B - kR 1,09
v - 16,27 027
15,79 19.90 2523 2513

* During the eurrenl year, the Company has declired a dividend of Rs. | {previous year Rs. 1) per equity shore of Rs. {0 ench.




Frda Rama Syathedivs (fedia) Limlied

Aates to e consadidnied Bnanciol stniements (o8 he your caded 30 March 2016

(AN ety in B, Croves, undesy otherwise stated)

Note § ; Bhost-term barrowings

Asnl As b
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Lugns repryable on dentamd {sevured)
From hanks
Cash eredil amd working capital laeilities 110,12 204.94
171,712 14,94

Nalare of seeurily

Cush credil and other working eapital frcillies from banks ore secured by way of hypotheeation of stocks of raw muterints, work-in-progress, finished povds, slores and spares, packing maieriad, goods e pot/in
sransivinder shipment, swstanding money, book debis, receivables and othet conent pssets of the Company. both present and fulure, These me funther seeured by 8 seeontl charge on )t the immovable propertics of e
Campuniy, bedh present sad e,

Mote H0: Trade paynbies
Asal As al
B Mureh 2036

Accepiinees 3560 inda2
Sundry credilors
“Tot) autstanding dues of micro enterprises and smadi entesprises {cefer note 40)

Teand outstanding <durs of ereditors other than micre ciierprises and smu enlerpriscs 379.36

51288

Note 11 Qlher currest Hubititles
Asat Asat
3 March 2040 31 March 20£5

Current masurities of long-torm barrowings {refer note 5) 54.67 62.70
Intezas! acerued but not due on borrwings 0.67 .19
Unpaid dividends * 039 0.3%
Advanees from customers 22.31 1255
l.ease equalisation reserve 027 617
Other payables: .
Layable fo employees i8.66 16.15
Croditors {owards fixed asseis ¥ 42,23 838
Statutory ducs payable:
- Exclse duty on finished poods : 12.92 891
« Custorus duty 4.1 i5.410
i besdited st senaie 21 112
- Dther stawtory dues 117 1.07

LY

Nute ;

* Thers ere na oulsionding dues to be paid 1o Investor Bduentlon and Protection Fund

*+ Including acoeptances of Rs.5.19 crores (previnus yeur ReNID,

i taicludes smounis pyable (o micro enterprises and swwil epterprises Rs. Nil (previous year Rs, Nil).
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Mate F1 L Nan-carren investments (valued al enst nndess olhecwise sinfed)

Othar i tende fuvestaents {Ungualed)

fopmiey shares

Fully prid up eguily shaies of Ry 10 each

Ritspia Synheiies Laniled

Less: Provision for dimimation in the value of long (een invesinents

Aggregnte boak value ol naguoeled vvestiventy

Nuote 13,2 Cureen) investents

Crrvenl Invesimenss (at the lower o eost snd [de vadue)
A) Lquity shares, yuoted

Yty paid #pp eqully shares of Rs, 10 eack

Optal Telecommunicalions Lemited

Sunphi Polyesters Limited

Rolianee Industiics Limited

Fully pril up eguity shares of Rs. 5 ench
Halnsore Alloys Limited

Vully pnid up eguily shnrves of ¥ Uaht ench
Indorama Verturgs Fublic Company Lintited, Thailand

Less, Provision Tor dinmsistion in e value of current invesiments

B) Prefeprence shares, qnoted
Fielly padid-up prefevence shaves of Rs,10 ench
0.01% Cutnuluive redeemable preference shares
ISW Sieel Limviled
Less: Provision for diminutian in the value of current invesiments

C) Governmait securifies, nagquoted
Natienal Savings Centificates VIth issue
{pivdged with sales iax suthorities}

1) Units of Mutanl Fund of Rs, 10 ench
1. & T Uttrs Short Term Fund Direet Mlan « Growrh
1. & 1 Laguid Fond Direct Plan - Growth

Additional disclosures for corrent invesiments

Quoledd inveslmenls
ity shares
-Preference shares
~Mutuad P

Bool value ol uggoted fnvestments

Aggeegate diminution in the vaiue af current invesiments

+ Rs 7,780 {previous year Rs ,780)
++ flg 4,000 (previons yeur Hx 4,000}

1 excluding for equity shaves of Sanyli Polyesiers Limited and Opte! “Telecommunications Limited in respect of which markel value arc nol uviilabie

indo Bama Syniletics (Indin) Limited
Nuley 10 Hie consollduied Tiaancid sindements for the yosr ended 31 Maceh 2016
(Al waianatts dix Rs.ovores, wundess wtherwive staied)

As

As

037
234

LRy

925

Azl 31 March 2016

Asat
L3 Mareh 2008

150

Asaf
3 Magch 2015

G 37
M

0.7

4.28 .

1] 65
023

As al 31 Maveh 2015

Markel Value/ Nel
Assed Value ff

Murkel Value/ Net
Assel Value if

¢l

063
9.69

3742
[y
i235

18,43

50,54
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Hede Knms Synthetles (Tndds) Eiibad
Nodes (0 tie conselidated fsancin sttements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2010
(AN nony in Ry, Ceoves, wiless othenwive steted)

Note 142 Dederred tns assers (net)
Ag ut
31 Marel 2016

Deferred 1ax ssseis on avcount of:

- Unplsorbed deprecintion 28.36
Belerred tax Hubility on secount of ¢

- Fised ossele 26,36
Net deferred {nx asset 200
Net deferred inx nyset / Hnbllitles recognizel 2.00

s Bl
31 Mareh 2015

Note: Benefls under section 80 LA of Income Tox Act, 1961 is available 10 SRR for period of 14 yers stariing from Sinonciol year 2018-19, The Company would be able ie avaii the venefits under {his seciion post

utitisation of brought forwrrd waabsarhed deprectation.

Note 15,1 2 Long-lerm loans and advanees (unsecured)

Congidered pood *

Caopiia) advences 1.80
Sueurly deposils 2.15
Other Joans and ndvanees :
Suender value of keynino insurnce 5.8
MAT eredil entitement (refer note 41(a)) -
Advanee tax [iet of provision Ns.106,42 crores (previous year s, 106,42 crorus}) 16.29
P'repaid expenses . . .
Qthers 0.69
11.580

Considered douldful

Advances lo vendors . 1.8¢
Less : Provislon For doubtful sdvances 180
21,50

Node 15,2 : Short-lerm loany andé ndvances {unsecured, consliered poed)

Asnt
B Moreh 2006
Othery 1
Customs and excise duty 4301
$repaid expenses 0,46
Advinice x 040
Advances o vendors - 11.63
Advances lo employees N i . 0.5

TenY

Noto 36,1 1 Other noli-citrrend nssets
Asal
3 March 2016

Clebmg and oiter receivables 8.35

825

Noie 16.2 1 Other curreni assels

Asad
3 March 2006
Clatms and other recelvabhs 126,
Ferwerd cover reaeivabie (net) 14.51
Urbilied revenue 1.61
Jnieresl accrued on deposhs and olhers 692

14309

FiE ]

M Mereh2ms
0,44

1.97

1.80
57.30
10,46

7

264
B3040

1.80
1,80

8340

As al
3 Mureh 2015

3780
523

26.01
1.06
60,84

As al
31 Mye)) 2015

As al
A1 Mg 2015
100.97
1390
1.6%
2.73
11928

o

—
\
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fndo Wams Synthetes (Indin) Linited .
Woies 0 the corgoidaied fnsncin strtements for the yeur ended 3 March 2006
(Al arsainnty i s, Croves, iinfexs atherwise shded)

Nate 17 tnvenleries
A il

31 Mprch 2016

Fanw swader fals (inelude in tonsit Re U3 crares {previous year Rs, 84,92 crosvs)] 102.77
Work- in-progiess * 19,76

Finished goods [include in transit Rs.1. 99 erores {previous yeur Rs 859 creres))* Hzh2
Siores nd spanes inetude i ransil Rs. Nil (previous yeer Rs. 0.03 vrores)ii 13.95
Packing mpterial # 412
Wasie § 359

286,71

v yafued at fhe lower of cost and nel realisable vaiue, The Jnveniorics were reduced by Rs. 1,50 cvoves {previoos year Rs, 1,10 erores) on account of net rudisable

# valued ng cost dr under.
§ i reolisatde vilue

Aulditlons) disclosteres regardlng Inverdorles

T snderlids

Purified Terepihadic Acid 14,19
Mono Elhylig Glyeol 7688
Oibers e MR

valie belng lower than the cost,

9808
4598
821

182,27

Work-in-progress
Polyester Stuple Fibre
Pofyesser Filoment Yem
Draw Texturized Yam
Volyester Chips

Finished goods

Polyester Staple Fibre 5236
Palyester Filamenl Yarn 23.99
15.76

Draw Texlarised Yam
Volyestor Chips , [ —

BRIy




Frdo Rass Syntheiies (hpdla) Lidled .
Futes (0 e consolldated fnsncisl stntements for the youyr ended 33 Murcls 26
U amotts in s, Crorex, tedesy vthencise stalved)

MNote Hs Presde recelvables
Asal Asal
Lo AlMereh2elp e MRRTER OIS
- Receivables oulsisnding Tor n period exceeding six snonths o the date ibey become due for payment.
- Unseeured, considered good 1308
- Unsecured, sonsidercd doubiful § 108
16,23
Less: Provisian townrds doubiful debis 308
13,15
- Other receivables, unseewred and considered good 15804
21,10 11,97
Note 19 Cash and danl balonees
Asnt Asat
31 Mareh 2016 31 Mintel 2018
Cash and eash equiviienss
Caslt on hand 09 (.28
Balnnees witl banksy;
- Current necounts 622 11.06
Fixed deposits with origine! maturily period of upto three months # . 12.44
115 2178
Diher an¥ Balences
Fixed deposits with bunks due 1o muture within 32 moenihs of reporting dote 4 68.57 1153
Balances with banks:
- Unpald dividends * 0.38
Murgin money accounts ** C.08
3199
'
8311 587

it Pledged whh banks for exed?! Hinits
¥ Earmuorked opainst the corresponding provision
** Pledged witl: banks for perfonmance guarentecs issued lo gevernment autharities on behall of e Company

i : ‘:\j\
i)

A




Nty b the conyoliduied foanc

Male 20: Rovenne front operntbsns

Sale of preducts
Finished goods
$ass: Bcist duty

Other operating revenue
Serap sales
VAT refund
Tierest from cosiomers
nteresi on insurance claim (refer note 1o, 29{5)
(nhers

Revenue frem pperations (net)

Hreahwp of revenue from sule of produgls ;

Salo of Tinished poods
Polycater Stapfe fibre
PFolyester Filament Yom
Deuw Jexturised Yom
Potyester Chips

Yower

Produgt Wasle

Mote 213 Otleer income

Inierest on [ixed deposils

Dividend incame from cunent invesinents

Profil on sak of coment fnvestients {net)

Guis on sale af lixed assets

Reversal of provision for diminution in the vatue of current
jnvastmenls

Miscellsneous income

Nate 22: Cosl of muferials consunmied

Itaw malerinds

Purified Terephthefic Acid
Mono Ethylene Glycol
Others

Less: wrile down of inventory, considered ns cxcoplionnl fem (refer noie 43(0))

it Rumns Synibetes (falng Lbmired

Fatatements for the yeas ended 31 Maveh 2016
LAN amaeenis in ks, Crores, undess afitersidse staivd)

For the year ended
A Mareh 016

2,2140.69

124
29.76
1.9
1045
505
7091

¥or the year ended

e A Mnpeh 2006
1,485.7%
47296
13407
1189
0.08

9.82

Var the year ended
e S MR 3006
4.83
6.60
2545

Far the year caded
31 Mareh 2016

134681
601.63

. SBET
a0

(4.49)
301932

Foy the yeae ended

Ny

Tor the year ended
] March 2415

£,641.67
555,13
15047
048
075
1340
2,961.80

Tror the yenr ended
31 March 2015

For the yonr ended

1,540.54
61170
55.86
2,2066.10
{1526}
"2,192.84




Vb Rusaa Synthetlos (Indin) Ldnilied
MNates fo the consollduted Nusnchaf sthlements for the year ended 31 Viarels 2016
(AN amodints (it RS, Crars, iittess eiernise siaked)

Nole 23 Chuages In invensartes of finished poods and warl-hn-projress

Inverlories nt éhe enil of 1he yeay

As ot
31 Murch 2010

As (IncrenseMeerease
31 Mareh 2015 during the yenr ended
31 Morch 2016

- Finished gomis 112,52 9104 {21.48)
« Work-in-progress 19,74 .08 (5.08)
- Wasig 3.59 .

ECE A
{nventories af (he Beginnlng of the yesy 3% Mareh 2015
-Finished goods 91.04 {3031}
~Wark b progress 14,08 (407
~Wane .44

105,56
White down o inventory, considered ay exceptional iten (refer note 43¢a)} {22.59)

{Juerease) / decrease during the year

Note 24: Employer henelits expense

(AZ.01y

For the yenr emded
31 Murch 2016

Salorics, wages and bonus 95.37
Contribiulion to provident and other funids (refes note 33) b
Workmen and stull wellfure expenscs 497

105.45

Nate 25: Other expenses

Por e yens ended

Corsumplian of steres il spares 2129
Power aid e 165.47
Rent and hire cherges (refer nele 163 676
Repulrs snd maintenance:
- plont s machinery 16,42
- butldings 1.5
- others 6.00
lagtirnnee .61
Loss: Recovery 0.48 i-l3
Raes pnd loxes 106
PPacking maleriuls consumed 55.14
¥rolght ond lorwsrding charges 103.24
L.css ; Revovery 2551
Brokerage ond commission on sales (elher than to sole selling ngents) 10,09
Cash diseounts vt ¢luins 10,60
I¥reciors' sillog lee 0.0%
Legal ond prolissionat charges 529
Auditors' remunersiion:
- lior audil {.dd
- lor 1ax audil .
- [ar ather services 0.27
- for reimbursement of out of pockel expenses 005
Danciions .04

Corpormtc soviul responsibility expenses eler notg 45}
{ravision lor dovbilul debis and advenees

Lows on disemd 7 disposal of ixed asscis

Increase in excise duty on stocks of linished goeds und wasie
Mistelliness cxpenss

Nole 261 Finunce cosis

“hiisg.

Foy the year ended
31 Mareh 2016

Interest 35.07
Bank and other charges 18,59
S1.40

For the year ended
31 Murel 2015

82.52
489
4.68

9249

For dhe yeny onded
31 Mareh 2015

353.05
163.25
5.66

14.94
30
6,19

0.82
b
50,67

67.90 1843
) 10.04

3.84

0.07

4.54

0.42
0.06
.28
.05
0.10
[PRE]
0.as

377
o ST
394,00

Yor the your ended
31 March 2015

28,30
15.08
43.38




vl Shain Syatseiles (Incin) Limbied

Nutes 10 e consolidried Sinnnelal statenonts for the your @den 38 Fareh 2046

Nele 27: Earaings / (losy) per eyuity share (E88)

Ml Profitf (lass) ns per Slatement of Profit snd Loss
Continuing aperations
Towul apemtions

Number of equity shures of Rs.10 each al the beglmning of ithe year
Number of equity Shaves of Rs. 10 cach oi the end of the year

Weighted sverage nimber of equity sharey of Rs. 10 cach at the end off

the yeur for eplenintion of busio and diluted 1S

Busic und dilated eomings / (loss) per share (in Rs.) (Per shure of s 10 each)
Contiauing opemtions
“Tolel operitivn

(AR amoaiads i B, Crores, @nless atfteriise siaied)

Tor the yens ended
35 Murch 2086

55,78
56.14

151,622,242
151,822,242

151,822,242

kX
)

31 Murch 2015

For tie year ended

RL
(20.69)

151,822,242
151,822,242

151,822,242

{.4n
{136)




Incle Rama Synthetics (India) Limited

Notes t6 the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Muareh 2016
(AH amonnts in Rs. crores, unless othierwise siated)

28. CI¥F value of imports

Raw materials
Packing material
Stores and spares

Capital goods

29. Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)

For the year

31 March 2016

Particulars

Travelling
Commission
Interest
Others

For the year

31 March 2016

ended

ended

1.59
2.34
3.00
138

~¥ortheyear

e¢nded

31 March 2015

653.60 1331.29
1.01 0.26

5.89 3.08

.. 20.58 223

“For the year

ended

31 Miarch 2015

224
3.16
3.03
0.76

30. Value of raw materials, stores and spares and packing materials consumed:

Particulars

Raw materials
Imported
Indigencous
Total

Stores and sparcs
Imported
Indigenous

Tatal

Packing materials
limported
Indigenous

Total

For the year

ended

31 March 2016

Percentage of total consumption (%)

For the year
ended
31 March 2015

For the year

31 March 2016

Value

ended

For the year

ended

31 March 2013

40 66 818.23 1,466.94
,,,,, G0 34 170518 741.16
100 100 2,02:3.41 2,208.10
15 12 3.96 3.85
85 88 23,33 2920
100 100 27.29 33.05
2 1 1.15 0.26
e 99 53.99 5043
________ 100 100 55.14 50.67

ay
&
"y
C’.él ' ,
Ty K
~Jeg peetls

St

Ly ( ._Q‘




1ado Rapa Syntheties (tudiz) Limited
Notes to the consolidated finaneial siatements for the yeay ended 3] March 2016
(Al amounts in Rs. crores, uiless otherwise stated)

31. Net dividend remitied in foreign exchange

Foi the year MT;n ihe yeay
ended ended

31 March 2016 31 Mareh 2015

Period to which dividend relates 1o 2014-15 2013-14
Number of non-resident shareholders (Nos.} 2 2
Number of eguity shares hedd on which dividend was 43,620,465 A3,620,465
due (Nos.)

Amount remitted USD 653,980 (Previous year UsD 4.36 4.36
720,761) (Rs. in crores)

32. Larnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)

T T ”"'”"'ml?fﬁf"ii{“émifééi'FW'MW"""FGFWS “““
ended ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015

F.O.B. value of exports 388.02 596.72
Dividend .60 0.52
Qale of current investments (Gross consideration) 28.98 0.92

33. Disclosure pursuant 1o Accounting Standard 15 on “Employee Benefits”

a) Defined contribution plans

;,\n amount of Rs. 4,52 crores (previous year Rs. 4.33 crores) for the year has been recognized as an
expense in respect of the Holding Company’s contributions towards Provident Fund and an amount of Rs.
0.58 crore (previous year Rs. 0.57 crores) for the year has been recognized as an Cxpense in respect of
Holding Company’s contributions towards Employee State Insurance, which are deposited with the
government authorities and has been included under employee hencfit expenses in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

b) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Holding Company on superannuation, death or

permanent disablemtent in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act or as per the Group’s
Scheme, whichever is more beneficial, :

The following table sets forth the status of the gratutty plan of the Group and the amounts recognised in
the consolidated Balance Sheet and consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss!




indo Jamn Syntheties {India} Limited
Noies (0 the consolidated Buancial staiements for the year coded 31 Mavch 2516
(Al amounts in Ks. crores, unless otherwise stafed)

Particulars For the year ended ¥or the year ended
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Changes in present value of obligation
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the 13.65 12.69
year
Interest cost 1.10 1.05
Current service cost 0.91 0.99
Past service cost - -
Benefits paid (1.34) {0.53)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation I ¢ £74) B, o 046)
Present value of obligation as at end of the year 13.12% 13.65
-Long term 12,11 12.65
- Short term 1.01 1,00
13.12 13.65

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and

Loss

Current service cost 0.91 0.99
Past service cost -

Interest cost on benefit obligation 110

Net actuarial {gain) / loss recognised in the year (1.20)

Lixpenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and 4.51

L.oss

Experience adjustments

Past service cost - - ~ -
Experience adjustinent
on plan assets

For the year For the year  For the year For the year For the
ended ended ended ended  year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Defined benefit
obligation 13.12 13.64 12.61 12.00 11.26
Plan assels . - - - -
Surplus / (deficit) (13.12) (13.64) (12.61) (12.00) (11.26)
Fxperience adjustment
on plan liabilities (0.38) 0.81 0.59 0.22 {0.29)

TN
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Indo Rama Synthetios (Tndia} Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2616
(Al amounits in Rs. croves, unless otherwise stated)

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Holding Company’s plans are
shown below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2016 March 2015
Discounting rate 8.20% 8.10%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Salary Escalation Rate (per anninm) 4% 5%
Withdrawal rates
Age- Upto 30 years 3% 3%
31-44 vears 2% 2%
Above 44 years 1%% [%
Mortality table JALM {2006-08) IALM (2006-08)

Discounting Rate: The discount rate is estimated based on the prevailing market yields of Indian
Government securitics as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation.

Salary Escalation Rate: The estimates of salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account
of inflation, promotion and other relevant factors.

¢) Other long term benefits;
An amount of Rs. 0.92 crores (previous year Rs. 1.79 crores) pertaing to expense {owards compensated
absences and included in “Employee benefits expenses”.

34. Segment information:

(a) Information about primary business segment
The primary reporting of the Group has been performed on the basis of business segments. The
Group is organised into two business segments — (a) Polyester (b) Renewable energy. Segments have

been identified and reported based on the natare of the products/services, the risks and returns, the
organisation structure and the internal financial reporting system.

Particulars Continuing Operations Discontinuing
_ oo Operations
Year ended Year ended

| 31.03.2016 | 31.03.2015 | 31.03.2016 | 31.03.2015

Revenue
Segmenl revenuce (net of excise)
- Segment - Polyster 2,464.75 2,708.90 - -
- Segment — Renewable Energy - - 33.61 32.51
2,464.75 2,708.90 33.61 32.51
Other operating revenue
- Segment - Polyster 70.90 52.48 - .
- Segment — Renewable Energy 0.01 0.08 290 2.80
70.91 52.56 2.9 2.80
Total Revenue from Operations
- Segment - Polyster 2,535.65 2,761 .38 -
- Scgment — Renewable Encrgy 0.01 0.08 35.31
2,535.00 2,761.46 3531

'.:) b
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All amounts in Rs. crores, unless otherwise staied)

Results
~ Segment - Polyster 15.04 528 . .
- Segment - Renewable Encrgy (0.21) 0.2 19.74 19.38
15.43 5.07 19.74 19.38
Unallocated income (other than interest income) 26.05 6.88 0.95 0.14
Profit before interest, taxation and exceptional 41.48 11.95 20.69 19.52
items
Finance cost {51.66) (43.38) {20.20) (20.02)
Interest income 4.83 2.93 0.02
Profit / (Loss) before taxation and exceptional items (5.35) (28.50) 0.49 (1.08)
Exceptional items
- Foreign exchange {luctuation (loss) / gain (23.62) 15.02
- Loss on account of write down of inventories (26.68) {20.75) - -
- Others (4.23) - - -
Net profit before tax (59.88) (34.23) 0.49 (1.08)
Tax expense / {credit) {115.66) (12.49) 0.13 (2.13)
Net Profit after tax 55.78 | (21.74) 6.36 1.05
Segment assels
- Segment - Polyster 1,708.03 1,590.81 . -
- Segment — Renewable Energy 5.63 7.63 196.48 203 .44
- Unallocated corporate assels 12.03 72.04 11.73 P11
1,725.69 1,670.48 208.21 217.55
Scgment liabilities _
- Segment - Polyster 871.07 629.36 - -
-~ Segment - Renewable Energy 0.02 0.02 0.88 0.25
- Unallocated corporate liabilities 340.78 564.77 134.90 145.23
- Shareholder’s fund 580,25 34838 - -
1,798.12 1,742.53 135.78 145,50
Capital expenditure
- Seginent - Polyster $5.08 15.01 - -
- Segment — Renewabte Energy - 0.1 - -
85.68 15.11
Depreciation and amortisation
- Segment - Polyster 77.76 117.16 - .
- Sepment ~ Renewable Energy 0.04 - 15,16 15.16
77.80 117.16 15.16 15.16
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(b) Information on sccondary/ geographical segment

The Group sells polyster products to various manufacturers within the country and alse exports to
other companies. Further, the Group Sells renewable energy to State Government of Maharashtra.
Considering the size and proportion of exports to local sales, the Group considers sales made within

the country and exports

Pavticulars

as two geographical segments. Information of geographical segment is based
on the geographical location of the customers,

Continuing Qperations

BDiscontinuing Operations

For the year ended

For the vear ended

31 Mareh 2016 | 31 Wiarch 2015 | 31 March 2016 | 31 March 2015
Segment Revenue o o
Damestic 2,138.40 2,145.43 36.51 35.31
Overseas 397.20 616.03
Total 2,535.66 2,761.46 36.51 358,31
Segment Receivables
Domestic 158.96 01.30 13.10 4,77
Overscas 3913 23.64 -
Total 198.09 115.00 13.10 4,71

Note: All assets of the Group are located in India except as mentioned above.
(¢) Accounting policies for segment

The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segments are as set out in this
schedule on significant accounting policies. In addition, the accounting policies in relation to segment
accounting are as follows:

(i) Sepment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of
fixed assets, capital work in progress, current and non-current assets and long term and
short term loans and advances except advance tax, MAT credit entitlement and
investments. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities in respect of a segment
and consist principally of creditors and acerued Habilities. Segment liabilities do not
include share capital, reserves, borrowings and cotresponding interest acerued, proposed
dividend, provision for tax and deferred tax lability.

(i) Segment revenue and expensces
Segment revenue and expenses are directly attributable to the segment and have been
allocated to various segments on the basis of specific identification. However, segment
revenue and expenses do not include interest and other income/expense in respect of non

sepmental activities.

35, Related party disclosures ( As per Accounting Standard -18)

,\s\é /&.‘nn
(i) Related parties where control exists: Nil "
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Indo Rinnas Synthetics {Indin) Lintited
Notes to the copsolidated linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

(All amounts in Rs. crores, unless otherwise siated)

(i1} Other related parties with whom Group had tra_n_sact_ions:-

(a) | Key management
personnel and their
relatives

Holding Company:

Mrs, Urmila Lohia, wife of CMD
Mr, Aloke Lohia Brother of CMD

Ms. Aruna Goenka, Sister of CMD
Mrs. Rimple Lohia, Wife of WTD

Mrs. Ritika Wumar, Danghter of CME

Mr. Mohan Lal Lohia, Chairman Emeritus
Mr. Om Prakash Lohia, Chairman cum Managing Director ({CMD’)
Mr. Vishal Lohia, Whole Time Director ("WT1)
Mr. Anant Kishore (Executive Director)

(b) | Enterpriscs over which

key management
personnel or their
relatives have
significant influence

Lohia Industries Pvt Ltd,
Indorama Retail Holdings Pvt Lid.

Indo Rama Petrochem Limited (IRPL), Thailand
T P T Petrochemicals PCL (TPT Petro), Thailand
P.T Indorama Petrochemicals, Indonesia

{c) | Enterprises having

the Group

significant influence on

Brookgrange Investments Limited

(iii} Transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 March 2016;

Particulars Key Management Eutci_‘prises over Enterprises _
Personnel . which key having Total
’ e “management significant
personnel or their  influence
relatives have
significant
influence
Purchases of raw
material
~ Indorama Petrochem
Limited 4717 A707
(410.83) (410.83)
- TPT Petrochemicals
Public Co, Ltd 25.16 25.16
. (329.25) (329.25)
- P T Indorama
1 Petrochemicals 39.84 39.84
{16.94) (16.94)
Managerial
remuperation ¥
- Mr. Q.. Lohia 2.82 2.82
(2.83) (2.83)
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(Al gmounts in Rs. crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Kc'y I\:’[a'nagemem Enl‘efﬁrises aver Enterprises
Personnel which key having Total
management significant
personnel or their  influence
relatives have
significant
infleence
- Mr, Vishal Lohia 2] 211
(2.08) (2.08)
~ Mr. Anant I<ishare 1.68 1.08
(1.00) (1.06)
q&‘f)»‘iﬁidend paid
- Brookerange Investments 4.33 4.33
Limited (4.33) (4.33)
| - Mr. O.P. Lohia 3.54 3.54
{3.54) (3.54)
- Mrs. Urmila Lohia 1.59 1.59
{1.59) (1.59)
- Others .68 0.68
e L073) (0.73).
(iv) Closing Balance of related parties
Particulars - Key Management ~Lnferprises over  Enterprises ~ Total
‘Personnel - which key - having
' management significant
" personnce] or . influence
their relatives
have significant
- S T P P72 i"ﬂue!]ce R
Trade Payables:
- Indorama Petrochem 52.73 52.73
Limited (61.15) (61.13)
- TPT Petrochemicals 4247 42.47
Public Co. Lad. (90.80) {90.80)
- P T Indorama - -
Petrochemicals (16.95) (16.95)

* excludes expenditure towards gratuity and compensated absences, since the same are based on actuarial

valuations for the Group as a whole.

Personal guarantee has been given by Mr. Om Prakash Lohia (CMD) and M, Vishal Lohia (WTD) in
respect of loan taken by the Holding Company amounting to Rs. 53.12 crores (previous year Rs.65.63

crores).

Note: previous year figures have been given in brackets,




Indo Rama Syntheties (India) Limited

Nutes (0 the consolidated financial stutewents for the year ended 31 Murch 2016
(Al amounts in Rs. croves, unless otlierwise stafed)

36. Long-term obligations in respect of operating lease

The Holding Company has taken office space on operating lease. The lease rentals charged during the
year in respect of cancellable and non cancellable operating leases and maximum obligations on fong
term non-cancellable operating lease payable as per the rentals stated in the agreement are as foliows:

T e TN ven - i*mihey(‘u
ended ended
31 March 2016 31 Murch 2015

Lease rental expense

Future minimum lease rentals for pon-cancellable operating lease:

Total futare minimum
lease rentals payable as

Particulars on 31 March 20616
Within one year 1.67
Later than one year and not later than five years 2.31

Later than five years -

'l‘(;'tai future minimum
tease rentals payable as
on 31 March 2015

1.67
398

Fowal e 86

37, Contingent linbilitics and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Contingent liabilities:

o  Claims against the Holding Company not acknowledged as debts.

Fxcise / customs / service tax matters in dispute/ under appeal
Income tax matters i dispuie/ under appeal

Sales tax matters in dispute/ under appeal

Claims by ex-employees, vendors, customers and civil cases

As at As at
31 Wiarch 2016 31 March 2015
92.26 62.83
11.88 71.88
12.84 11.04
0.95 (.84

o Customs duly claims {including penalties) against the Holding Company aggregating to Ks,
214.25 crores (previous year Rs. 214.25 crores) have not been considered contingent as faverable
orders have been received, in some of the cases, by the Holding Company from the CESTA.
The Helding Company believes, that its position is strong in this regard. The matter is pending
with the Honorable Supreme Court. In addition, during the previous year, the Hotding Company
has also received a show cause notice amounting to Rs 6,01 crores.

The Holding Company belicves that the above issue, when finally settled is not likely to have any
significant impact on the financial position of the Company.

Commitmaents:

a)  Bstimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account of Holding Company
and not provided for (et of advances) is Rs. 17.46 crores (previous year Rs. 2548 crores),
¥ f"’\ and A e
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Mofes to the consolidated financial siatements for the veur ended 31 March 2816
(Al amounts in Rs. crores, unless otherwise stated)

b) IRRL - Irevocable and unconditional corporate guarantee against loan faken by subsidiary

company, Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited from financial institution.

c) IRRPL - Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for (net of advances) amounts to Rs, 2.22 crores (previous year-Rs. 2.22 crores).

d) IRRRL - Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for (net of advances) amounts to Rs, 8.60 crores (previous year Rs. 8.60 crores).

¢) The Holding Company has commitments to export 191,549 MT (previous vear 285,985 MT) of

finished goods as per foreign irade policy pursuani (o import of
license scheme,

38. Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

(a)  Fereign carreney forward contraels ontstanding:

“duty free matenal under advance

Purpose

Hedging of expected future exports {Sell)

As at As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
USDh INR UsD INR
Millions crores Millions crores
110.21 730.27 126.40 789,93

(b)  Particnlars of unhedged forcign currency exposure:

Trade
payables

Advance
from
customers

Loans
{including
interest
payable)

Captial
Creditors

Particulars  Currency

ush
Furo
PY

AED

Uush

usb

Luro

UsD

Amouni
in foreign
currency
(millions)

24.95
0.01
107.13
5.00

0.35

22.80

6.19

1772

" As at 31 March 2016

Exchange
rate -
{in
absolute
rupees)
66.26
7542
0.59
18.04

66.26

66.26

75.42

66.26

Amount Amount
(in Rs. in foreign
crores) currency

{miltions)

165.32 51.31
0.11 0.02
0.32 79.52
9.13 4.81
2.34 0.70
151.06 3223
46.70 6.81
11.42 .

rate
(in
absolute
rupees)

62.505
67.21
0.52
17.02

62.505

62.505

67.21

As at 31 March 2015
Exchange

Amount
(in Rs,
crores)

320.73
0.15
4.14
8.19

4.36

201.43

45.77

39, Insurance ciaim receivables:

(a) The Holding Company had lodged claims with its insurance company for the loss of certain assets

i

Licy relating 10_g [ire incidence
o S,

-,




(b)

()

Fndo Hama Syothetics (India) Limited
Motes to the congobidated Hnancial sintensents for the year ended 31 Muareh 2016
(Al amornts in Rs. crores, unless vtlierwise stated)

at Butibori plant in 2007-08, Since, the matter has been under dispute with the insurance company,
as per the terms and conditions of the above policy, the Holding Company has, during the previous
years, initiated the arbitration process for a claim of Rs, 72,94 crores for ims of “business

inferruption and for.the. claim oi Rs, 6.43 ‘crores for loss of assels. While the said matier was

pcndmg conclusion by th(, Arbitral l"ftbuna! the Holding Company, on a conservative basis, carried
forward insurance recoverable (recorded in the financial year ended 31 March 2008) to the extent of
Rs. 33.53 crores {net of receipt/adjustment) as advances recoverable, without prejudice to its right
to claims aggregating Rs. 79.37 crores, On | August 2012, the Arbitral Tribunai decided the matter
in the favour of the Holding Company with an award of Rs. 3245 crores (net off
receipt/adjustment) and interest at 9% per annum from July 2008 till the date of payment, Pursuant
W he above award, the Holding Company had during the year 2012-13 recorded the interest
receivable amounting to Rs. 11.69 crores upto July 2012 (the date of order) and aligned the carrying
amount of insurance claim. The Insurance Company had filed an appeal in the Delhi High Court
against the same. On 20 January 2015, the Delhi High Court Single bench pronounced the order
wherein the Court has remanded the matier back to Arbitral Tribunal for computation of ¢laim on
“turnover basis”. Subsequently, the Holding Company had filed an appeal with the Delbi Hi[bh
Courl double bench and an interim stay has been awarded pwdmg, disposal. Currently, thc case is
pencimg wsth Delhi }}:gh Courl '

Duxm;:, ilu_ ycm enck,d 3] Mmch 20]6 the Ho]dmb Lompany has recognized interest income of Rs.
10.95 crore on award decided by the arbltml tribunal, for the loss of certain assets and loss suffered
due to business interruption under loss of profii policy relating to fire incidence at its plant in 2007-
08 under ‘other operating income’.

Consequent to an incident of fire during the year 2011-12, the Holding Company had spent Rs. 7.58
crores on refurbishment of the concerned plant and machinery, which had been recognized as a
receivable from the insurance company under other current assets. During the current year, the
claim was rejected by insurer on grounds of insufficient premium paid. The Company has filed the
wril petition on 6 May 2016 against the insurance company,

Further, the Holding Company strongly believes and is rcasonably certain that the above cases do
not have any significant impact on the {inancial position of the Holding Company and it will be
able to realize the above amounts in the notmal course and, therefore, all the claims have been
classifigd as cunent :

- 40, Based on the information available, there are certain vendors who have confirmed that they are

covered under the Micro, Small and Mcdium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, Disclosures as
required by section 22 of “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20006, arc
given below:

Shono.

Particulars

(ii)

©2015-16

2014-15

the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining

unpaid 1o any supplier as at the end of year

- principal amount *

- interest thereon

“the amount of interest paid in terms of section 16, along with the

amounts of the payment made 1o lhe suppliers beyond the
appointed day: :

-principal amount**

~interest therean

0.03

0.09
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(III} ”1(.*«{!“0Lllll()f!H!CIQ‘S{ due and pziyﬁblc for the year {)f d{:laylllm hhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhh
making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed 0.01

day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under this Act #

{iv) the amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid 4 0.02 0.01
(v} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, uniil such date when the interest dues above

are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of .
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of this

41

42

43

Act,

* Rs. 253 thousand {previous year Rs. 24 thousand)

** Rs. 1,421 thousand (previous year Rs. 893 thousand)
fi Ks. 58 thousand (previous year Rs. 15 thousand)

B Rs. 158 thowsand {previous year Rs, 99 thousand)

. {a) The Holding Company has internally assessed the operating marging and it's sel-off against
accumulated Unabsorbed Depreciation as per the income tax laws. In the absence of virtual certainty
and as a matter of prudence the Company has charged off MAT Credit entitlement amounting to Rs.
57.30 crores during the year, ‘

(b) Earlier, the Holding Company had not recorded deferred tax assets in relation to unabsorbed
depreciation as the same has been subject matler of litigation. Pursuant to the changes made by
Finance Act, 2015 and based on opinrion of legal counsel, the Company js reasenably certain that the
litigation do not have any significant impact on recoverability of Rs. 158.33 crore of unabsorbed
depreciation to the extent of future reversal of deferred tax linbilities,

The Holding Company had made an carly application, since the year 2010-11, of Accounting
Standard 30 “Financial Instruments- Recognition and Measurement”, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India for accounting for forward exchange contracts taken for highly
probable / forecast transactions, which are not covered by Accounting Standard 11. An amount of Rs.
5.09 crores has been recognized as income (previous year an expense of Rs. 4.69 crores) in the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 and included in exceptional items as an
adjustment on the said application of Accounting Standard 30,

.

Excepliona: items

The Holding Company has treated following as exceptional items:

(a) Inventory tosses amounting to Rs. 26,68 crore for the year ended March 31, 2016, which includes
Joss of Rs. 4.62 crore (previous year Rs. 20.75 crore) on account of write down of closing
inventories, calculated on month on month basis, incurred by the Company due ta crash in global
crude oil prices and consequently impacting raw material prices, i.e., of PTA and MEG, The loss
incurred has been primarily due to the timing difference in the prices at which material has been
purchased and sotd.

(b) Due te significant volatility in the foreign currency vis-d-vis loeal currency, the Company has
considered the loreign exchange fluctuation as an exceptional item in the Statement of Profit and
Loss,
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(¢} ‘Others’ includes differential excise duly (including interest thereon) amounting to Rs. 4.23 crore
paid in compliance with the judgment of the Supreme Court,

44, Discontinuing Operations

Pursuant to the approval accorded by Board of Directors by its resofution dated 10 February 2016, the
Group has entered inta an agreement (hereinafter referred as Share Purchase agreement) with Tata
Power Renewable Energy Limited (TPREL) to sell 100% shares of its wholly owned subsidiary Indo
Rama Renewables Jath Limited. Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited owns and operates 30 MW
Wind Farm at Jath, in Maharashira, The Group is in process of complying with the conditions
stipulated in the Share Purchase Agreement. The subsidiary is a part of ‘Renewable Energy’ segment
of the Group.

The resuits for the discontinuing operation were as under:

A)Betails of Profit / (Loss) from ordinary activities

5. No. - Particulars ] Forthe year ended
S 31 March 2006 | 31 March 2015
1 Income from operations
{a) Net sﬂ[es/n?come from operations 3161 1751
(Net of excise duty)
(b} Other operating income 2.90 2.80
Total income from operations (net) 36.51 3531
2 Expenses
{a) Employee benefits expense 0.07 0.31
(b} Other expenses ' 1.54 0.46
Total expenses before depreciation and 1.61 077
finance costs
3 Profit from operations before depreciation, (1-2) 34.90 34.54
other income and finance costs
4 Depreciation expense 15.16 15.16
5 T'otal expenses after depreciation, before (2+4) 16.77 15.93
finance costs
> - £y ey i oy
6 I r9ﬁf from opuAatmns bc_forc other income (1-5) 19.74 19.38
and finance costs
7 Other income 0.95 0.16
8 Profit from ordinary activities before (6+7) 20.69 19.54
finance costs
9 Finance costs 20.20 20.62
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Profit/ (Loss) from ordinary activities
Tax expense / (credit)

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year from
discontinuing operations

)

{10-11)

0.49

0.13

.36

o

(2.13)

1.G5

B) Asseis and Liabilities (as at the balance sheet date velating to the discontinuing business to

be disposed off)

&. No.

Particulars

Carrying amount of assets
Carrying amount of Habilities #

As at As at
31 March 2016 i 31 March 2015
208.21 217.54
151.69 161.38

# (includes Rs.15.90 crore (previous year Rs.15.88 crore) 1o be repaid to the helding Company,
which has been eliminated on consolidation being within the Group)

C)

Net Cash Flow

5. No.

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2016

31 Mareh 2015

Cash flows from operaiing activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

2533
3.59
(28.52)

41.16

(21.92)
(20.02)

45, CSR

expenditure

(1) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: Rs. Nil (previcus year Rs.

g,

36 crores).

(b) Amount spent during current year is as follows:

Sr. No. | Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
B 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
] Promotion of Education 0.1 0.17
2 HealthCaze 0.0] 0.01
Total 0.12 0.18
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40. The figures relating (o the previous year have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary (o
confirm to the current year's classification.

As per our repost attached to the balance sheet,

For B S R and Associates For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
Chariered Accountants Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited
Firm Regisiration No.: 128901W -
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Indo Rama Renewables Limited

Financial Statements
Statutory Audit for the year ended
31 Marc_ll 2016




B S K and Assoclates

Chartered Accountants

Telephone: + 91 124 2358 610

Building No.10, 8th Floor, Tower-i} Faxc: 1 1 124 2358 613

DLF Cybor City, Phase - li
Gurgaon - 122 002 (ingia)

Independent Auditors’ Repori
To the Members of {ndo Rama Renewables Limited
1, Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Indo Rama Renewables Limited (“the
Company”™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting polictes and
other explanatory information.

2. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these {inancial statements that give
a true and Tair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generalty accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014 . This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent; and design, impiementation and mamtenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the acouracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or Crror.

3. Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are [ree from material
misstaicment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances., An audit also includes evatuating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates




8 5 R and Associates

made by the Company’s Directors, as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the finaneial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our andit opinion on the financial statements.

4. Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and (air view in conformity with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2016, of its Toss and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

5. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Reporty Order, 2016 (‘the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 17, a slatement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order,
to the extent applicable.

(i}  Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b, in our apinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement, dealt with
by this report, are in agreement with the books of account;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014;

¢. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors, and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2016 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to owr separate Report in
“Annexure 1I'™;

g with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position,

ii. the Company did not have any long term contracts, including derivative contracts outstanding
as at 31 March 2016 for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and
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iii. the Company did not have any dues on account of Investor Education and Protection Fund.

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 18 May 2016

For B S R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm registration number: 128901W

W

Jiten Chopra
Pariner
Membership No.: 092894
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Aunnexure I referred to in paragraph 5 (i) of the Independent Audifors’ Report to the Members
of Indo Rama Renewables Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 Maxceh
2016,

(i) (=)

(b)

{c)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

According Lo the information and explanations piven to us, the Company has physicaily veritied
ity fixed assets during the year, In onr opinion, the process of physically verification is

reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature oiis assets. As mformed
10 us, na material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not own any immovable propertly. Accordingly, para 3(i)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not hold any
physical inventory as at 31 March 2016. Accordingly, para 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company, during the current
year, had not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Therefore, para 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security where
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are required to be complied with. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(iv) ol the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from public during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us , the Company has not commenced
its business operations, the provisions for maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company for the year.

{vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

(b)

of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ acerued in the books of account in respect
of undispuled statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income
1ax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any
other material statutory dues, to the extent applicable, have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities during the year by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty
of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, to the
extent applicable, were in arrears as at 31 March 2076 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of the records of
the Company examined by us, there are no dues of Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty of
Customs, Value Added Tax and Duty of Excise which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
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(viiD)

(ix)

(x)

(x1)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Place: Gurgaon

According io the informaiion and explanations given 1o us, thiere are no loans or borrowings
from financial institutions, government or banks and there are no dues to debenture holders
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
moneys by way of term loans, initial public offer or further public offer. Accordingly, paragraph
3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

According Lo the information and explanations given fo us, no fraud by the Company and on
the Company by its officers oy employees has been noticed or reported during ihe year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid or
provided any managerial remuneration. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) ol the Order is not
applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations piven to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and (he defails have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For B8 R and Associuates
Chaviered Accountants
[CAL Firm registration number: 128901W

(\ v
Jiten Chopra

Partner

Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 092894
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Annexure [l referred to in paragraph 5 (i)(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report to the
Members of Indo Rama Renewables Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls uader clause (i) of Sub-seetion 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act™) or the year ended 31 March 2016,

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reperting of Indo Rama
Renewables Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by (he
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on ‘Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate interna! financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its asscts, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on ‘Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting’ (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Aci, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal [inancial controts, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internai financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respeots.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over {inancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over finaneial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
o error.

We believe that the audit cvidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance vegarding the reliability of financial reparting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, A comparny's internal financial control over financial reporting inciudes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of reoords that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions ang dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions arce recorded as neccessary fo permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and direciors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
agsets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
1o the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
hecanse of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deferiorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating elfectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on *Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indta.

For B S R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
1CAL Firms registration number: 128901W

A\ iy’

Jiten Chopra
Place: Gurgaon Periner
Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 092854
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2.

Inde Bama Renewables Limited
Motes to the financia) statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2016
(AN amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

General information

Indo Rama Renewables Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’ or “IRRL’ is a 100%
subsidiary of Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited. IRRL was incorporated on 3 May 2012 and engaged
primarily in the business of gencration and supply of energy from renewable resources by itself or
through its subsidiaries.

Sipuificant accounting policics
2.1 Basis of prepavation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, on a going concern
basis, on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accouniing
Principles (GAAP) in India. Indian GAAP primarily comprises mandatory accounting standards as
specified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, and other accounting pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
India (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements
and the result of operations during the year. Differences between actual resuits and estimales are
recognised in the year in which the results are known or materialised. Examples of such estimates are
estimated useful life of assets, classification of assets/liabilities as current or non-current in certain
circumstances, provision for doubtful receivables ete. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Any revision 1o accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

2.3 Current/ non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified as current and non-current.

Assels

An asset is classificd as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal

operating cycle;

it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabidity
for at least 12 months after the reporting date,

o

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. itis expected Lo be settled in the Company’s normal operating ¢ycle;

b. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

¢. it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d. the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liabtlity for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.




fndo Rama Herewsbles Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(AN amonnts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Al other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Operating cycle

Operating eycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
or cash equivalents, The Company considers its operating cycle to be within a year.

2.4 Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated ai cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost of fixed assets includes all incidental
expenses and inferest costs on borrowings, attributable to the acquisition of quaiilying assets, upto the
date of commissioning of assets.

2.5 Investments

Investments that are intended to be held for more than a year from the date of acquisition are classified
as long term investments. Long-term investments are carried at cost less diminution, other than
temporary in value,

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value, which is computed category wise.
Moreover, {hat part of fong term investments which is expected 1o be realised within 12 months after the
reporting date is also presented under ‘current assets’ as ‘current portion of long term investments’
consonance with the current/non-current classification §cheme of Schedule-1I1.

2.6 Depreciation

Depreciaiion on fixed assets is provided using the straight fine method at the rates based on useful lives
of assels estimated by the management, which are equal to or lower than the lives preseribed under
Schedule 11 to the Lomp‘mlc& Act, 2013, The management’s estimates of the useful life of Plant and
Equipment (which comprises the significant portion of fixed assets) is 18 years.

The uselul life is arrived at, based on the internal technical evaluation of the management. As per this
evaluation, the useful life of assets does not require a change from the previous estimates,

2.7 Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the cash generating unit’s
recoverable amount is estimated as higher of its net selling price and value in use. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit cxceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairiment losscs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For the purpose of impairmen( testing, assets are grotped together into the smaliest group of assets
(Cash Generating Unit or CGU) that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUSs.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only 1o the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or
amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised

2.8  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calcntated by dividing the net profit or foss for the yeup.attsibufable \ﬁ‘f,“ (SGL’\
equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding diiring the yedy
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Neotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All amounis in Rupees, unless otherwise siaied)
i
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or Joss for the year atiributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of ail dilutive potential equily shares.

2.9  Taxation

Facome tax expense comprises current tax, deferred tax charge or eredit. Current tax provision is made
based on the tax Hability computed after considering tax allowances and exemptions under the Income
tax Act, 1961. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liability and assets
are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted on the balance sheet
date. .

Deferred tax assets arising from unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses are recognised only if
there is virtual certainty of realisation of such amounts. Other deferred tax assets are recognised only to
the extent there is reasonable certainty of realisation in future. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to reassess their realisability.
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Na.of Shoyes % olshares held
30,843,683 100

Moie 41 Reserves pid surplus

Deficit in the Statement ef Profic v Loss
Opening balance

1.0ss lor the yeor

Nel deficit ln the Stalement of Prolit and Loss

Nepe 8¢ Lonpsterm harrowings

Unsecured

From @ relited porty:
Inde i2aima Symiheties (India) Limited, the helding Company #

I Tl ngerest free boan taken Trom (he holding Compay wis Lo be converled, on st agreemen), fito equity, quasi equity or debentures or repayatsbe by 31 March 2087,

Note 61 Beferred tax linbilities (net)*
Delerred tax Nability on account ol
- Fined assels
Deferred tux naseis on nccowst of
- Current period losses! anabsorbed deprecialion
Net deferred (ax assed

Net deferved tax linhilities recognizcd

Mo, of Shares Yo.0fslnees Jield
39,843,083 |00
Asal Asat
31 March 216 31 March 2015
{12,675,431) (10,753,876)
(1,967,227) (1,921,353)
{14,642,654) {12,675,431)
Axat As al
31 March 2016 3 Mareh 2006
453,437,135
452,437,735
Asat Asal
L Mareh 2036 31 Mareh 2008
150,120 631,376
50,020 631,316
5,273,892 5,387,850
6,213,892 5,187,850
5523772 386,474

*1n view of canied forward tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation altowsnce and in the abgence ol cerainity of readisation, delered 1on assels are recoguised eily e the extent of delerred 1ox bty




Tudi Rasna Renewsbles Lirdled
MNotes io fimincial stnfemonts Joy (he year ended 31 Mareh 2016
(AH amanats fn Rupees, wunless oilierseise stntei)

MNote Tt Frade payables

Irade payables
Total owtstanding dues of micro enlerprises and smail enterprises #
iB8,086

Total oulsianding dues of creditors other thon micio eateiprises and simadl enerprises .. Ab%lab [
186,086

P here sre na amounts payable 10 micro and smolt enterprises under the Micro, Small uad Medium Poierprise Development Act, 2606, os al 31 March 2014 (Previous yoar-Nifk This s been Kdentified on the
basis of information avatuble with ithe Company segarding the sintus of the suppliers and hos been relied upon by the suditors.

Note #: Other carvent labifities

Cuorvent moturities of long-tevin borrewings (Unsecured)
Trom w refuted party:

Todts Ramo Synthetics (Indin) Limited, the helding Company # 435,698,430
Qther poyables:
Statutory ducs payable®
« Tax deducted nt saurce 3,210 26,827
435,703,640 20,827

# The interest fiee loan taken fromn the holding Company is o be converted, on mutuat egrecment, Into equity, quasi cquity or debenturss or repuyable by 31 March 2017,
# There nre no autstunding dues 1o 1o b paid ta investor Education grd Pratestion Fund

N, O
Ty A :()\)/
\\M()Am./

Mot e
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I Rama Renewnblex Limired

Mules b fnancial stofemaenis for the yons ended 35 Mareh 2016

Mote Mb Capitad wank i progress

ix penises divectly arnibuiable o the project;
-Solaries, wapes niwd bopus

-Legat and protessional charpes

Project consuliations chayes

“Trovelling expenses

~Rates and taxes

-Miscellaneaus expenses

Note 11,1 Nen-eurrent investmerts

‘Frade Investments (in wholly owned sabsidinyies)
Eruity shayes - Usipuatad

Fouity shares oF Rg. 10 caeh, flly paid up

Inde Romn Renewables Porbrodor Limited

Inde Rama Renewables Ramgarh Linised

Indo {ama Renewables Jath Limtied #

MNode £1.2 2 Correat invisimends

Trade investinents {In wholly awaoed subsidisries)
LEyuity shares - Unguored

Bauity shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully peid up

Indo Ruma Renewables Jath Limited #f (refor note 25)

# Charge creutedie be ereated by wiy of pledge of 76% of e paid up capital in Tavoar of the {ender in terms of lean sanctioted o a subsidiany company,

Note 12 1 Long-term loans and rdvanees (Unsecarced consklerd goad)

T'o pariles sther thun redaled

Capilal advances
Seeurity depoxils

Loans {e wholiy owned subsidiarics
Indo Rinpa Renewables Porbandar Limied
Indo Ranio fenewables Ramparly Limited
tndo Rama Renewables Jall Limited

Note E3: Cashoand bauk balnnces

Cagh and cash equivalenis
Cush on hand
Baluness with banks:

- Curre accounis

Note I4 : Short-Lerm logns wod advances (Unsecured considerd paod)

Prepaid expenses

Advances o employees .

Laans recoveraldle fram wholly owned subsidiaries
Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Dimiled
Indo Rama Renewables Rimpash Limited
Indo Rama Renewables bah Limbed

Advanges recoverabie from wholly pwned subshliaries
Indo Rara Renewables Porhandsr Limiied
Indo Roma Renewabies Romgorhy Limited
Indo Ramsa Renewables Jalbs Linvted

(AN ooty i Rupees, tndess otheriise stured)

[GEE RIS

50,000 50,000
50,000 50,000
- 60,300,000

Na:

{Aialal Marel 2016) (Ainl 3 Do 2015

60,200,001

Asad
31 Maveh 2016

As Rl
31 March 218

1,162,580 3,102,580
10,711,563 16,771,563
6.411,986 6,417,986
234,669 234,669
1,300 £,300
528,578 $28.478
20,063,785 24,0037

As at
31 Mureh 2016

As
31 Mareh 2015

500,000 500,000
500,000 500,000
- 603,000,006
1,000,000 604,640,004
603,000,000
603,000,000
Asat As at

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

31,000 31.000

20,000 20,008

51,000 51,000
24,539,267
23,260,069
158,795

266,505,

As at

31 Murch 2016

As al
31 March 205

44,656 77690
2,351,128 81,797
2,395,984 150,487

Asni As od

31 Mared 2616

31 March 2015

- 127

96,593 90,595
$H0.019.017%
1.049.136
$58.795. 755

153

- Zh

167.734 -
185,726,857 686,279




Iado Rames Renewnbler Liniled
Botes b finenekl staiements for the yoe ended 31 Mareli 2046
(A amtininis B Rugoes, siedesy affterwive yreled)

Note 13: Revepure frem aperatinng
Far tle yorr
ended
31 March 2016

Vor the yenr
ended
31 Mnych 2015

Gaher eperating revenue

Bxeess linbility written back ‘ 50,000 765,950
Revense from operations {ael) 50,000 769,950
Note 16: Tinance cosls
Yor {he yeny For the year
ended ended

31 inyeh 20010

i Mrreh 201

Dunk charges 32,488
32,488

Noie |72 Deprecistion and nmertlsotion exvense
Favr (he year
ended
31 Marcl: 2016

Fur the yenr
enided
31 March 2015

Depreeiation for the year (refer nute O £44,882 565,616
Loess: recovered from subsidinries . (307,024
i.ess: deprecivtion trunsierred to enpital work-in-progress - (231,200}
444,882 41,302
Noi¢ 18: Crher expeases
For the year Iar the yeor
ended anded

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

Legel and professlonat cherges 1,309.284 500,856
Rates ond toxey 23,034 18,608
Miscelleneous balances w/af)’ . 403,857
TRepairs and malnicnance:
- plant and machinery 56,519
- ofhers 12,526
Asulitars' remuneration (including seiviee tax thereon):
- for audij 57,250 114,000
- for reimbursemsnt o out of poekel expenses 14,410 10,720
{oess on discard / dlsposal of fised assels . 1,430,610
Miscelloncous expenses 125805 12,942

1,530,853 2,040,808
Note 191 Earnings per equity shisre (EI'S)

For the year ended For the year ended

A1 Meyeh 2056

31 March 2015

Nat loss os per Stntenient of Profit and Loss {1,967,223)
Mumber of equily shares of Re,14 each at the beginning 39,843,683
Number of cquily shares of Rs, 10 cach at the <id 39,843,683
Weighled avernge aumber of equity shares of Rs. 10 coch ot the end of the 39,843,683

yeuriperiod [or caleuloitan of basic and diluted EPS

Dasic and diluted loss per share (I Bs,) (Per share of Rs 10 cach) {045}

4
Q.
Ty
oy
#
]

g
W
T

,,:ww\

4 Agen
550,

(1,921,555)

36,984,831
39,843,683

39,162,258

(0.05)




Indo Ranma Repewables Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Marveh 2016
(Al amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stuled)

20. Segment reporting
In the opinion of the management, there is only one reporlable segment, i.e. Wind energy, as envisaged
by Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting”. Accordingly, no disclosure for segment reporting has
been made in the financial siatements,

21, Related party disclosures

(i} Related parties where control exists:

Hol dmg, wm; any indo Rama Syni etics (Inc iay Limited

Wholly owned subsidiaries Indorama Renewables Porbandar Limited
Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited
| Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited

(i) Transactions with related pasties.
Particularg Holding Whally owned Total
company subsidiarics

Invesiment made in the equify shares
Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited - -
{35,164,590) (35,164,590)

Lxpenses repaid by the subsidiaries
during the year

Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited -
(3,527,897) (3,527,897

Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited 64,937 64,937
(-} {-)
Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited 64,943 64,943
(-) ()
nﬁquily shares issued during the year (-) )
(28,588,520) (28,588,520)

Repayment of loans received from
Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited 6,610,913 6,610,913
{-} ()
Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited 14,519,650 14,519,650
(- -)
indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited F7,739,305 17,739,305
(1,111,037 (1,111,037

"Charééé allocated to subsidiaries
Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited 337 337
{222,460) (222,460)

: 337 337
‘.3‘;. 36,192) (156,192)

Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited -




Fedo Fama Renewables Limited

Motes 1o the fnancial statementy for the year ended 31 March 2016

(AN amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

I"Ioldingw Wholly owned Total
company  subsidiaries
Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited 32,684 32,684
(35,27,897) (35,27,897)
Expenses paid on behalf of subsidiavies
Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited 64,600 64,600
{92,953) {92,953)
Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited 04,600 64,606
(117,952} (117,952)
Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited 135,050 135,050
) {-)
(iii) Balances ontstanding as at the end of the year
Particulars Holding Wholly owned Total
COmpany subsidiaries
Loans outstanding at ihe end of the year
Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited 10,019,617 10,019,617
: (24,539,267y  (24,539,267)
indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited 16,649,156 16,649,156
(23,260,069) (23,260,069
Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited 158,795,755 158,795,755
(158,795,755)  (158,795,735)
Advances outstanding at the end of the
year
Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited - -
(315,413) (315,413)
Indo Rama Rencwables Ramgarh Limited - -
(274,144) (274,144)
Indo Rama Renewabies Jath Limited 167,734 167,734
(-) )
Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited 435,698,430 435,698,430
(453,437,735) (453,437,735)




ndo Hama Henewabloy Dimited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2016
(Al amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

22. Contingent liabilitics and commifmenis (to the exient not provided for)

23

24

25

.

26.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which may impact its financial position,

Commitimenis:
Irrevocable and unconditional corporate guarantee against loan taken by subsidiary company, Indo
Rama Renewables Jath Limited from financial tnstitution,

The Company shares its infrastructure and employees with the wholly owned subsidiaries (Indo Rama
Renewables Jath Limited, Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited and Indo Rama Renewsables
Porabandar Limited) for carrying out their operations and allocates common costs on account of
employee costs, travel costs, legal and secretarial services, miscellancous expenses ete, to the wholly
owned subsidiary companies on a suitable basis as mutually agreed between the two companies,

During the current year, costs amounting to Rs. 33,358 (previous year Rs. 3,906,549) have been charged
by the Company to its wholly owned subsidiaries on account of the above,

The Company does not have any long term contracts, including any derivative contracts, with any
ntaterial foreseeable losses.

Pursuant to the approval accorded by Board of Directors by its resolution dated 10 February 2016, the
Company has entered into an agreemen( with Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited to sell 100%
shares of its subsidiary Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited. Indo Rama Renewables Jath Limited
operates 30 MW Wind Farm at Jath, in Maharashira. The Company is in the process of complying with
the conditions stipulated in the agreement and expect to close the process by 30 June 2016.

The figures relating to the previcus year have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to
confirm to the current year’s classification.

As per our report attached to the balance sheet.

For B 8 R and Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis Indo Rama Renewables Limited

ICAL Firm Registration No.: 128901W
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Titen Chopra Rajendra Kumar Gupta Vikas Sehgal
Parmer Divector Director
Membership No.: 0 G244y DIN: 07529751 DIN :07529393

ol -

Madhur Singh
Company Secretary
Membership No : ACS 37302

Place: Gurgaon Place: Gurgaon
Date: 18 May 2016 Date; 18 May 2016
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B S R and Assoclates

Chartersd Accountanis

Telaphone: + 91 124 2358 610

. - S + 9
Building No.10, 8th Floor, Tower B Fax: O 124 2368 613

DLF Cyber City, Phase - |1
Gurgaon - 122 007 (Indial

Independent Auditors” Report
To the Members of Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited
1. Report on the Financial Statements

We have andited the accompanying linancial statenents of Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet s a1 31 March 2016, the Statement ol Proli and
Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year Mhen ended, and a summary of sipnificant seconnfing
policies and other explimatory nformation,

2. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the matters stated v Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial stalements that give
A true and fair view of the Tinancial position, financial performarce and cash Hows ol the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Seetion 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companics (Aceounts) Rules,
2014, his responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accomnting records it accordance with
the provisions of the Act forsa feguarding ihe assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
lrauds and other irrepularities; sciection awd apptication of appropriate aceotnting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonabie and prident; and dasign, implementation and maintenange
of adequate internal financial controls, (hat were operating effectively for cnsuring the aceuracy and
completeness ol the accounting vecords, relevant o the preparation and presentation of the financial
stalements that pive o true and fair view and are free from material niisstatement, whether due to fraud
Or erres.

3. Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financia) statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required lo be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
i the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
asscssment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the Financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting pelicies nsed and the reasonableness of the accounting estimat

K\SV/




B SR and Associates

made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 4 basis for
our audit opinion on the financial statements.

4, {pinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aloresaid nancial statements give the information required by the Actin the manner so required and
give a true and (i view in conlormity with the accounting privciples generaily accepted i Iindia, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2016, ol its Yoss and it casl Mows for the year ended
on thal date,

5. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms ol subsscction (11) ol scetion 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure I, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order,
io the extent applicable. '

(i) Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

2.  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement, dealt with
by this report, are in agreement with the books of account;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014; :

o on the basis of the wrillen representations received from the directors and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the direelors is disqualified as on 31 March 2016 [rom being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

£ with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating cffectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reporl in
“Annexure 117

. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending fitigation which would impact its financial position;

ii. the Company did sot have any long term confracts, including derivative contracts outstanding
as at 31 March 2016 Tor which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

Y




35 R and Associates

i the Company did not have any dues an accounit of Investor Bdueation and Protection Fund,
Y

For B S R and Associates
Chariered Accountanis
1CAT Firm registration number; 128901 W

f 4
i ,[V“ !
AR,

Jiten Chopra
Place: Gurgaon Pariner
Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 092864




B 5 R and Associates

Aunnexure I referred to in paragraph 5 (i) of the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016,

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

{vi}

According to the information and explanations given to us, fixed assets comprising capital work
in progress consists of dircetly atiributable pre-operative expenses only. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(1) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not hold any
physical inventory as at 31 March 2016. Accordingly, para 3{ii) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company, during the previous
year, had not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companics Act, 2013. Therefore, para 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security where
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are required to be complied with. Accordingly,
pagagraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from public during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us , the Company has not commenced
its business operations, the provisions for maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of
section 148 of the Companics Act, 2013 arc not applicable to the Company for the year.

(vii) () According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our cxamination

(b)

of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Inconte
tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any
other material statutory dues, to the extent applicable, have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities during the year by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty
of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added tax, Cess and other material statutory ducs, to the
extent applicable, were in arrears as at 31 March 2016 for a period of mere than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of the records of
the Company examined by us, there are no dues of Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty of
Customs, Value Added Tax and Duty of Ixcise which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.




B S R and Assoclales

(viii)

(i%)

(x)

(x1)

(xi)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xv1)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans or borrowings
from (inancial institutions, government or banks and there are no dues (o debenture holders
during the year.

According 1o the informagion and explanations given to us, the Company las not raised any
moneys by way of term loans, initial public offer or further public offer. Accordingly, paragraph
3(ix) of the Order is not apphcable,

According (o the information and explanations given Lo us, no fraud by the Company and on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid or
provided any managerial remuneration. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not
applicable,

According o the information and explanations giver to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, all tansactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with direcloss or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be

registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

For B 8 R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fiem registration number: [28901W

N

Jiten Chopra

Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 092894
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Aunexure I veferred to in paragraph § (ii)() of the Independent Auditors” Report to ihe
Members of Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of Sub-scction 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)or the year ended 31 March 2016.

We have audited the internal financia! conirols over financial yeporting of Indo Rama
Renewables Ramgarh Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2016 in conjunction with our
audit of the linancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on ‘Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting’ issued by the Institste of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilitics include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal [inancial controis that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of ifs assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable {inancial
information, as required under the Act.

Aunditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on “Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting’ (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, {0 the extent applicable 1o ap audit of internal financial controls, both
appiicable 1o an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controis over fiancial reporling was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures sefected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of (he risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due Lo fraud
or error,

We belicve that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a
hasis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporling,
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Meaning of Ynternal Financiai Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles. A company's internal financial coptrol over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance fhat transactions are recorded as necessary fo permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Recause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materia
misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
fo the risk that the internal financial cantrol over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or (hai the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria estabiished by the Company considering the essential components of imternal control
stated in the Guidance Note on ‘Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For 3SR and Assdcia tes
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 128901 W

Jiten Chopra
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 092894
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Halance Sheet ns al i Marel 2016

(A wanananids o Ritpees, widess othieevise statod)

. Eyuity and Habilitics

(1) Sharcholders' funds

{#) Share capital

)y Reserves and surplus
(23 Nowecurvent linhilities

() Long-term bamowings

{3) Current linbilitiey
(a} Trade paynbles )
Tolut outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterpises
Tatal culstanding dues of creditors other than
micra enterprises and small ehtemprises
(L) Other corrent labilities

TOTAL

13, Assets
(1) Mon-eurrent nssets

(&) Capita] work-in-propress
() Long-teri loans and advancos

{2) Current nssels

{n) Cash und bank balances
TOTAL

Significant aeconnling policics

Note No. Asal As nt
33 March 2016 31 Mareh 2015
3 500,000 500,000
4 (B80,149} . (Roa,715)
(396,14% (Hu,715)
5 23,260,070
6
52,250 45,008
7 16,554,406 279,144
16,706,650 324,144
8 8,087,033 8,087,033
L 8,164,600 15,168,600
§6,255,033 23,255,633
10 54,874 23,866
16310, TR1499
2

The accompunying notes (1 1o 19) form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report atlached

For 5 I and Assoclates

Chartered Accownionts

1CAT Firm registration number: 128900 W
ok
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~ d .A‘J‘ :
Jiten ( ;’\mnn'}/
Partner

Membership No.: O 9 269 Lf

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 18 May 2016

fror and on behnlf of the Bosrd of Directors of
tndo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited

,-w;f)‘"
Rajendra Kumar Gupta  Vikas Sehgal
Dirvecior Director
DIN: 71520751 I3IN:07529393

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 18 Mny 2016

Place: Gurpaon
Late: 18 May 2016




Expunses

Cher expenses
Total Expenses

Eoss before tax
Tax expense
«Current tax

Deferred tax

Loss after tix

Poddo Flsiia Resewables Ramgarh Bisdted
Stifement of Profid and Lass for the year eaded 33 March 2016
(AN amoniss in Rupees, woless otferwise stated)

Note Nn.n For the year
enied

31 March 2016

For (he year
ended

31 March 2015

Basic and diluted earnings pey equity share {in Rs.) {Face value

15,30 cach}

Bignilicant nccounting poelicles

il e 21434
91,434

(91,434) (150,233

e | (180,233)

12 (1.8 3.00)

2

The accompanying notes {1 1o 193 form an integral part of the Tinaneial statements,

As pes our report nilached

For B S R and Associates

Chertered Accountants

oAl r\'-(f:‘l:.lrul|nn wmonber a0

Uelen Chiprsg
Partner

Mombership No.: 0 9 yRY Q Lf

Place: Gurgaon
Lxale: 18 May 2010

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Indo Rams Renewables Rampgarh Limited

+ -
Rajendra Kaiiinr Guptn  Vikas Schgal

Director Direcior
DIN: 075297510 DIN:075219393
Place; CGurgaon Piace: Gurgaon

Diie: 18 May 2016 Dale: 18 May 2016




A,

Cash Now Prom operating activitics
Lass belare lnxation

Upernting losy belore working cxpiind chunges
Changes in

Increase in trude paynbles

(increase) / deerease in olther cursent liabilities

Cash generated from opemtions
Tncome twx paid

Met cash flow from opernting activities (A)

Cagh Tlows nyed in investing netivitios
[decreuse in caplial advance -
Met easl used bninvosting netivitios (13)

Casls fows from finaneing netivities

Repayment of borrowings:
Mot eash frem Fisanclng netivities (C)

Nef Incrense I eash and eash equivalents (A+134-C)
Cash and cash squivaients at beginning of (he year

Cash and eash eqoivaients uf end of fhie yoar

fndo Ranm Renewables Haempnrh Limbied

Cush Qow statement for (he year ended 31 Murch 2016

(AL nmounis i s, unless siherwise stnled)

Componenis of cagh and cash equivalents {refer node 1)

Cash iy hand

With scheduled banks:
In current acecunis

Totnl

Noles:

For U

{1

yenr ended

Mureh 2016

¥or the
yenr ended

SAE Mpren 2015

{01,430 (156,233)
TTELSY (150,331)
2,250
(273,894) 125,846
58,018 (24, 131)
(Bs8A7Hy A
7,000,000
7,000,600
(6,610,914}
31,008 (24,387)
23,866 48,253

9,483 19,966
45,391 3,500
o814

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under (56 ‘indireel methed' as set ont in Accounting Standard - 3 'Cash Flow Statements', s specified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies Amendiment Rules, 2014,

"Fhe secompanying notes (| 1o 19) form an integral part of the linancial statements.

As per ol report attnched

For 13 S R and Associntes
Chartered Accountanls
ICAT Finm reglslmtion number; 128901 W

e

N kn Chipp 3
Partner

Membership No.: @ q’},. ‘?,'J':? ‘«/

Finee; Gurpaon
Date: 18 May 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directers of
Inde Rama Renewables Ramgark Limifed

Ru}mdlu Kiitwr Gupta
Director
DN Q7520751

Place: Gurgaott
Dater 18 May 2016

A&Qﬁ{&

Vikng Sedtggal
Plrecior
DINT529393

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 1§ May 2016
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Indo Rama Renewables Ramparh Limited
Notes to the financia) siatements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2010
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

General information

Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’) was incorporated
on 25 May 2012 and is engaged primarily in the business of generation and supply of energy from wind
furbines.

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Indo Rama Renewables Limited. Indo Rama Synthetics
(Fadia) Limited is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparaiion

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on a going concern
basis, on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) in India. Indian GAAP primarily comprises mandalory accounting standards as
specified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, and other accounting pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2.2 Usc of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principies in
India (GAADP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements
and the result of operations during the year. Differences between actual results and estimates are
recognised in the year in which the resuits are known or materialised. Examples of such estimates are
estimated useful life of assets, classification of assels/liabilities as current or non-current in certain
circumstances, provision for doubtful receivables ete. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

2.3 Curreni/ non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified as current and non-current.

Assety

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. it is expected 1o be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;

b. it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

c. itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d. it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current. '

Liahilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

il is expected to be settled in the Company’s normat operating cycle;

it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

it is due to be settled within 12 mounths after the reporting date; or

the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at feast 12
maonths after the reporting date.

oo oo
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Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial
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Indo Hama Henewables Hamgarh Linited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Maveh 2016
(Al amounis in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

All other Hiabilities are classified as non-current,
Operating cycle

Operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
or cash equivalents. The Company considers its operating cycle to be within a year,

2.4 Fixed assels

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accomulated depreciation. Cost of fixed assefs includes all incidental
expenses and interest eosts on borrowings, attributable to the acquisition of qualifying assets, upto the
date of commissioning ol assets.

2.5 Karnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profii or loss for the period aitributable
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares ontstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating dijuted carnfngs per share, the net profit or loss for the year attribulable to
equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adpusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.6 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax, deferred tax charge or credit. Current tax provision is made
based on the tax liability computed after considering lax allowances and exemptions under the Income
tax Act, 1961, The deferred tax charge or eredit and the corresponding deferred tax liability and assets
are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively cnacted on the balance sheet
date.

Deferred tax assets arising from unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses are recognised only if
there is virtual certainty of realisation of such amounts. Other deferred tax assets are recognised only to
the extent there is reasonable certainty of realisation in future. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach
balance sheet date to reassess their realisability.

2.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are atributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assels are
capitalized as part of the cost of such assets 1o the extent that they relate to the period till such assets are
ready to be put to use. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial pericd of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
P by
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fide Ruma Reoaewables Bamgarh Limived
Nates 10 Ninpncial stsiements for the year caded 31 harely 2006
(AN amsaanes i Rupees, unliess otfignvise stated}

Note 3: Share eapital

Asat As at
3t Maveh 2010 31 Mareh 2015
Autherised
50,00 previous year 50,000) equily shares of Rs. 1} each 500,000 500,000
Issuil, subseribed and Nully paid-ups
SG,000 {provieus year 50,000) equity shares of K& 10 each ity
puid-up _ 500,000 500,000

o

Foot notes 1

1. During the current yoor and in the previous year, there hive been no movement in the sumber of oulstanding shaves.

2 ‘T'he Company has only one class of equity shares, having & par value of Rs, 16 per share, Each shareholder is eligible 10 one vote per share held. The dividend
proposed, i ony, by the Boazd of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Aunual General Mecting, excepl io ease of interim dividend The
repayment of cquity share capial in the evenl of lquidstion and buy back of shares are possible subject to prevalent repulations Tn the event of guidation,
normally the equity sharchelders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company afier distribution of all prefereatial amounts, in proportion fo theiy
shareholding.

3. Shares held by holding company and sharcholding of more than 5% shares by cach of the shareholders nre as under -

Asal 31 March 2006 As al 31 March 2015
Ecquity Shares of Rs, 10 ench fully paid up No.of Shares % of shares No, of Shares % of shares held
hekd
(Indo Rama Renewabies Limited, inchuding 6 shares held through nominee 50,000 100 50,000 100
sharcholders. [the ultimate holding company is Indo rama Synthetics (Indin)
Linited, which does not hold any shares divectly] '
Nate ds Reserves and sorplus

Asat As al
Mareh 2016 :

Deficit in the Statement of Prafit and §oss

Opening badanee (804,715) {654,482)
Loss for the year (91,4343 {150,233)
Nel defivit in the Statesient of Profil and Loss (896,14%) (804,115)

(896, 149) (B4,715)

Note § : Long-teym Borrawings
As at As ot
31 Mareh 2016 31 March 2035

Unsecured:

Luiny

- From a related party:

Indo Rama Renewables Limited, the holding Company #

st 23,260,5??‘-(3:-7

# The interest free toan taken from the holding Company was 1o be convented, on mudual agreement, mio squily, guasi equity or debentures or repayable by 31
March 2007




fado fma Resewsihies Rumgarh Limited
Muotes to financial staienients for the year ended 31 Mareh 2016
{Af oy T Rupees, unless atfrenwlse stuted)

Wute 63 Frade pnyabies
Ak ut As il
A M 2008

Frade piryvateys

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

‘Tolal osstimding ducs of creditors olher than micto enterprises and smaifl enterprises

.

There are 10 amounts payable 10 micro and small enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medimm Enterprise Development Act, 2006, a5 at 31 March 2010
{(previous year Ry NIl This bas beea dentified on (he basis of information nvailable with fite Comipany tegarding the status of the suppliers and has boen relivd
upots by thie auditors.

Noie 7 : Other curvend findilities

As at Agat
o Wareh 2016 31 March 2035
Cuorvent muturities of lang-term borrowingy (Unsecuyed)
From a refated parly:
inde Rama Renewables Limited, the holding Company (4) 16,049,156
Hher payables
Statulery dues payable®
CTox deducied al sousee 3,250 5,000
ndo Rama Renewables Limiled, the holding company
-Caphal creditors . 198,298
LHhers -
10654406 270,144

# The inlerest free loan tken from the hokling Company is 1o be cenvested, on mutuil agreement, inte cquily, quasi equity or debentures or repiyubic by 31
March 2017,
* There are no autstanding dues te 1o be paid to Investor Edueation and Protection Furd

Note § 1 Capital worleineprogress

As at Asal
31 vigreh 2H6 30 Miareh 2005
Expenses directly attributable to the project:
-Satarics, wages and bonus 1,611,034 1,611,034
-Legal and professional charpes 154,990 154,996
<Travelling expenses 117,336 117,336
-Rates and taxes 5,784,332 5,784,332
-Miscellaneous expenses 419,335 419,333
B 8,087,033 8,087,033
Note ¢ Long-term loans and advances (Unsceured, consideyed good)
As nt Asal
L March 2016 33 Mureh 2055
Capitil advineus 8 168,600 15,168,000
g s }‘i,l(x!i,ﬂ(xii(ﬁ
Nate ) Cnshoand bank balances
Asg ut Asad

Cash and cash enuivalents

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

Cash on band 9,483 19,966
Balances with banks:
-Current pecounis 45391 3,900
TTTTTTTUsANT T IRRNG

LG s S
o8 gy
\/.: ~ e

e
.




Bade Rama Henowablos Ramgark Limised
Notes @ fanncinl siatements for (e yenr ended 2 Mareh 2016
(Al anioums in Rupees, wiiless orlterwise siafed)

Muote 111 Other expenses

Lepal and professionnl charges

Aunditors' remunceration {including service tax thereon):
- for audit

- for reimbursement of oul of pocket expenses

Faent and hire charges

Rales nnd nxes

MiseeHansous expenses

Nate 12: Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Het Joss as per the Statement of Profit ond Loss

Nuinber of equity shares of Rs.10 each st the begliming
Mumber of equity shares of Rs.10 sach ai the end

Weighted average number of equily shares of Rs.10 each at the
end of the year for calculntion of basic and dituted BPS

Basic and ditwed loss per share {in Rs.) (Per share of Rs 10 ench)

oy the year
ended

33 Mareli 2016

3,400

57,250
14,410

10,483
5,891

e

For the yetr
erdel

.31 Mareh 2015

TaEEY

CST,000
12,100
55,000
15,675
7,894
RLINEY

For the yesr
endetd

31 March 2016

For the yewr
ened
31 Mareh 2015

(91,434)

50,000
50,000

59,000

{1.5%)

(150,2333

50,006
50,000

50,060

{3,00)




Endo Hama Renewables Ranigarb Limited
Wotes {o the financial siaicments for the year ended 31 March 2616
(Al amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

13. Segment reporting

In the opinion of the management, there is enly one reportable segment, 1.e. Wind energy, as envisaged
by Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting”, Accordingly, no disclosure for segment reporting has

been made in the financial statements,
4. Related party disclosures

Related partics where control exists:

Ultimate holding company
Holding company

1 &1.1_1gi‘(_)“_I{alnang;111hel‘ics (India) Limited

| Indo Rama Renewables Limited (‘IRRL")

Transactions with the Holding company:
Particuiars

For the year ended

31 March 2016

|For the year ended |

31 March 2015

Transactions

Expenses repaid during the year
Indo Rama Rencwables Limited

Cxpenses paid on behalf subsidiaries:
Indo Rama Renewables Limited

Expenses incurred by IRRL on behalf of the
Company(allocable to capifal worle-in-

progress):
-salaries, wages and bonus
~Others

Miscellaneous expenses

Repayment of loan

Balances outstanding at the end of the year
Indo Rama Rencewables Limited

Towards borrowings

Towards capital creditors

Towards others

64,943 -
64,606 117,952
27,920
120378
- 148,298
337 1894
337 7,894
6,610,914
As at As al

31 March 2016

16,649,156

31 March 2015

23,260,070
148,298
125,846 |




Indo Rama Renewables Ramparh Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20616
(All amounis in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

15, Commitments (1o the extent not pravided for)

a)  LEstimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided [or
(net of advances) amounts to Rs. 85,955,400 (previous year Rs. 85,955,400).

b) The Company does not have any pending lHtigations which may impact its financial 50811i015,
pany YI & ]

16, The Company does not have any separate infrastructure or employees for carrying out its operations and
uses the infrastructure and facilities of the holding Company. The holding Company ajlocates common
costs on account ol employee costs, travel costs, legal and secretaria) services, miscellaneous expenscs
ele. to the Company on a suitable basis as mutually agreed between the two companies. During the
current year, costs amounting to Rs. 337 (previous year Rs, 156,192) has been charged by the holding
company 1o the Company on account of the above.

I7. The Company is in the process of setting up a wind power project in Rajasthan under the sell~
development route. The Comipany is currently collecting and analysing the wind data from the wind
masts set up at two locations on the site as part of the implementation process along with other
developmental activities which are much needed to set up a greenfield wind power plant. The aforesaid
process would take upto two to three years post which the Company shall set up the wind turbines
which is most suitable for the site,

8. The Company does not have any long term contracts, including any derivative contracts, with any
material foreseeable losses.

19. The figures relating to the previous year have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary (o
conform to the current year’s classification.

As per our report attached to the balance sheet

For BS R and Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Indo Rama Renewables Ramgarh Limited

ICAT Firm Registration No.: 128901W
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Tiben Chopra _ Rajendra Kumar Gupia Vikas Sehgal
Portner Director Direcior
Membership No, : p9209Y DIN: 07529751 DIN: 07520303
Place: Gurgaon Place: Gurgaon Place: Gurgaon

Date: 18 May 2016 Date: [8 May 2016 Date: 18 May 2016
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Chartered Accountants

Telephona; + 91 124 2368 610

Building No.10, 8th Floor, Tewer-8 Fa: £ 91 124 2358 613

DLF Cyber City, Phase - ||
Gurgaon - 122 002 (india)

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Indo IRama Renewables Porbandar Limited
I Report on the Financial Siatements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Indo Rama Renewables Perbandar Limited
(“the Company™}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting,
policies and other explanatory information.

2. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
atrue and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 This responsibility also inciudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Caompany and tor preventing and detecting
[rauds and other inegolarities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the aceuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant o the preparation and presenfation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are frce from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error,

3. Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audil report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made

thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act, Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the [ancial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant (o the
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedurcs that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates

Y




R 5 R and Associates

made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
staternenls,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit apinion on the financial statements.

4. Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesald financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformily with the accounting principles generally accepted in ndia, of
the state of alfairs of the Company as at 31 March 2016, of its loss and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

5. Report on Other Legal and Repgulatory Requirements

(i As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (fthe Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 17, a statement on the matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order,
to the extent applicable.

(iiy  Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of our
knowledge and befiefl were necessary [or the purpose of our audit;

b, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement, dealt with
by this report, are in agreement with the books of account;

d. in our opinicn, the aforesaid financial statemerts comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014

e, on the basis of the written representations received from the direclors and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2016 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. with respeet to the adequacy of the internal financial control over {inancial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate Report in
“Annexure 117

g, with respect to the other matters to be included in the Anditors” Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explarations piven to us:

i. the Company does nol have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position;
i, the Company did not have any long tevm contracts, including derivative contracts outstanding

as al 31 March 2016 for which there were any material foresceable losses; and

o
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iii. the Company did not have any dues on account of Investor Education and Protection Fund.

For B S R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
1CAT Firm registration number: 128901W

( \ W e
AN

Jiten Chopra
Place: Gurgaon Parmer
Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 092894
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Amnexure T referrved to in paragraph 53 () of the Independent Auvditors’ Report o (he Members
of Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited on the {inancial statements for the year ended
31 Mareh 2036,

()

(i}

(i)

(iv)

(v}

Vi)

According to the imformation and explanations given to us, fixed assets comprising capital work
in progress comsists of directly attributable pre-operative expenses only. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(iy of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not hold any
physical inventory as at 31 March 2016. Accordingly, para 3(it) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company, during the previous
: &
year, had not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, 1o companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Therefore, para 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

»

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no loans, investiments, guarantees, and security where
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are required to be complied with, Accordingly,
paragraph 3(iv) of the Qrder is not applicable.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from public during the year,

According 1o the information and explanations given to us , the Company has not commenced
its business operations, the provisions for maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company for the year.

(vii} (a} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

(b)

of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ acerued in the books ol account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income
tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any
other material statutory dues, 1o the extent applicable, have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities during the year by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given (o us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty
of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added tax, Cess and other material statutory dues, to the
extent applicable, were in arrcars as at 31 March 2016 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given fo us, and on the basis of the records of
the Company examined by us, there are no dues of Income-tax, Sales-fax, Service tax, Duty of
Customs, Value Added Tax and Puty of Excise which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
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(viin)

(ix)

(x)

(%)

(i)

(xiii)

(xiv})

(xv)

{xvi)

According 1o the information and explanations given 1o us, there are no loans or bosrowings
from finaneial institutions, government or banks and there are no dues to debenture holders
during (he year,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
nmoneys by way of term loans, initial public offey or further public offer. Accordingly, paregraph
3(ix) of the Order is not applicable,

According (o the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and on
the Company by its otficers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has net paid or
provided any managerial remuneration. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Ovder is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Stalements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According 1o information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons conneeted with him. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xvY of the Order is not applicable.

According 1o information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
regisiered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For B S R and Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 128901W

\ @\X&\

Jiten Chopra

Place; Gurgaon Pariner
Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 092894
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Aunncxure I} referred to in paragraph 5 (i) of ¢he independent Auditors” Report to the
Members of Indo Ruma Renewables Porbandar Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls vader elause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act)or (he year ended 31 March 20i6.

We have audited the internal financial controls over hnancial reporting of Indo Rama
Renewables Porbanday Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2016 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on ‘Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporiing’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 1o company’s policies, the
safeguarding, of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accourting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act,

Anditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibilily is 1o express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
MNote on ‘Audit of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting” {the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, o the extent applicable to an audit of intcrnal financial conirols, both
applicabie to an audit of Interna} Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal fHimancial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and (esting and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
oF erfor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit epinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




B 5 R and Associates

Meaning of Internal Financiai Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financtal control over financial reporting is a process designed (o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accardance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of vecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions ol the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that {ransactions are recorded as necessary 10 permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authonisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or fimely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Finaneial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent Himitations of internal financial conlrols over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstaiements due to error or Tfraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any
avaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
1o the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or (hal the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering ithe cssential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on “Audit of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B S K and Associates
Chariered Accountants
1CAI Firm registration number: 128901W
Jiten Chopra

Place: Gurgaon Pariner
Date: 18 May 2016 Membership No.: 192894




I Eqguity and labBities

(1) Sharcholbders' funds

{n} Share capiat

(b) Reserves and surplus
(2) Non-current linbilities

{(n) Long-term borrowings

(3) Current tiahilities

() Trade payables

fade Rama Benewables Porhandar Limited
Balanee Sheel as af 31 Mareh 2016
(Al wnoients in Rupees, unless otherwise staled)

Note No.

- Tota) outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and

small enterprises

- Tota) cutstanding ducs of ereditors other thas micro

enlerprises and sinal} caterprises

{1») Other current liabilities

TOTAL

H, Assels
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Capital work-in-progress
(1) Long-term foans and advances

(1)} Current asseds
(8} Cash and bank batanees

TOTAL

Significant sceounting policies

2

The accompanying notes (1 to 19} form an integral parl of the financial statements,

As per our report aftached
For B8 R amd Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAT Firm registration mumber: 128%01W

Jiden CAC’f‘VO[

Parmer

Membership No.: § ?2,‘69 o

[*lace: Gurgaon
Date: 18 May 2016

M Mareh 2016

As at As i
31 Marceh 2015

500,000 500,000
(634,260) (543,386)
(134,260) (43,386)
24,539,268
52,250 45,000
0,024,867 32043
10,077,117 365,413
9,942,951 24,861,295
2,280,404 2,280,404
1,744,376 22,244 370
4,024,774 24,524,714
5,918,077 336,521
9,941,851 24,861,295

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limiled

JEm—

™
LS

Rajendra Kumar Gupia

Director
DIN: 0752975]

Place: Gurgaen
Date: 18 May 20106

- X@QA{(\“&

I S

Vikas Sehgal
Director
[JIN: 07529393

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 18 May 2016




Fnddo Bams Renewables Porbandnr Libmi{ed

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 1) March 2046

Expenses

Other expenses
Total Expenacs

Foss before tax

Tax expense

~Current tax
~Deferred inx

Laoss after tax

Baosic and dilufed carnings per cquity share (in Rs.)

{Face value 18,16 each]

Significant accounting policies

(ANl wmonnts in Rupees, whless otherwise singed)

MNote No,

2

The accompanying notes (116 19) form an integral part of the fimancial statements,

As per our report attached

For B S R and Asseciates

Chartered Accountants

{CAL Firm repistration number; 128901W

/ )§ |
Trben Chopra

Pariner

Membership No.: 0@ 264 Y

Place: Gurgaon
Pate: 18 May 2016

For the year
ended
31 March 2016

For the year
ended
3t Mareh 2015

90,880 125,324
90,880 115,324

T (96,880) (126,324

U088 125324y

(1.82) (2.51)

Far and on behalf of he Board of Directors of
Inde Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited

T
Rajendra Kumar Gupta
Director

DIN: 07529731

Place: Gurgacn

Date: 18 May 2016

~sn

Vikas Sehgal
Director
PDIN;07529393

Place: Gurgaon

Date: 18 May 2016




trde Rama Repewnhies Porbamlar Limited
Casty Flow stwtement For (e year ended 31 Mavel 2036
{AH oty in Ripees, unless otherwise siared)

oy the Far the
year entded yoar endad
31 Minrch 2016 31 Mareh 2015
A, Cash flow from opevating sclivities
[oss before taxation {90,880 (125,324}
Operating loss before workang cagiltsl chinges (50,880) (125,324}
{hanges i
Incrense in frade paynbles 1,250 .
(Decrease) / Inerease in other current labilities {315,163) 160,847
Cash generaled from operations (398,793) (24,477)
Income tax paid . .
Met cash flow frem operating activitics (A) (398,703) (24,471
15, Cash Bows used in investing activities
Pyecrease in capital advance 20,500,000
Net cash used in investing activities (13} 20,500,000
C. Cash fows from financing actividies
Repayment of borrowings (14,519,651)
Met cnsle from {lnaneing actividies (0} {14,519,651)
Met changes in cash and cash cquivalents (A+1B+0) 5,581,554 {24,497)
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of the year 336,521 360,998
Cash snd cash equivalents al end of the yeayr 5,918,077 336,521
Compenends of cash and eash equivalents (refer note 10}
Cash in hand 9,392 19,876
With scheduled banks:
In current accounls 5,908 685 316,645
Tedal 5,018,077 336,521
Nales:

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'indirect method’ as set out in Accounting, Standard - 3 'Cash IFlow Statemenis', as speeified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies Amendment Rules, 2014

The accompanying notes (1 to 193 form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report allached
For B 8 R and Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accouniants Indo Ramn Renewables Porbamdar Limited
1CAT Firm repis@Xtion number; 12896G1W

Trien C}- ﬂf’ vi} Rajendra Kumar Gupta Vilag Sehgal
Partner ’ Pirector Lireclor
Membership Mo.: 09‘2 %Q L/ T3 07529751 DIN:07529393
Place: Gurgaon Place: Gurgaon Place: Gurgaon

Date: 18 May 2016 Date: 18 May 2010 [ate: 18 May 2016




fndo Rama Reoewables Porbandar Limdted
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Maveh 2016
(AN amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise staled)

1. General information

Tndo Rama Renewabies Porbandar Limited {hereinafier referred to as ‘the Company’) was incorporated
on 23 May 2012 and is engaged primarily in the business of generation and supply of energy from wind
turbines.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Indo Rama Renewables Limited, Indo Rama Synthetics
(India) Limited is the ultimate helding company of the Company.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.} Basis of preparation

These financial stafements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on a going concern
basis, on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) in India. Indian GAAP primarily comprises mandatory accounting standards as
specified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounsts)
Rules, 2014, and other accounting pronouncements of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

2.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
India (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and the discfosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements
and the result of operations during the year. Differences between actual results and estimates are
recognised in the year in which the results are known or materialised. Examples of such estimates are
estimated useful life of assets, classification of assets/liabilities as current or non-current in certain
circumstances, provision for doubtful receivables etc. Actual yesults could differ from those estimates.
Any revision 1o accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

2.3 Cuorrent/ non-~current classification
All assels and liabilities are classified as current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;

b, itis held primarily for the purpese of being traded;

¢, itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d. it s cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being uxchangcd or used to setile a liability for
at least 12 months afier the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.

Al other assets are classified as non-current,

Liabilities

A liabiiily is classificd as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a. it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b. it is held primarity Tor the purpose of being traded;

¢, itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

d. the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of thc Ilablhly for at least 12
months after the reporting date. N

Current liabilitics include cutrent portion of non-current financial liaf



frde Rama Renewables Porbanday Lbmited
Motes to the financial statements {or the year ended 31 Mareh 2016
(Al conounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Al other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Cperating cycle
Operating cycle is the time belween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or
cash eguivalents. The Company considers its operating cycle {o be within a year.

2.4 Fixed assels

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost of fixed assets includes all incidental
expenses and interest cosls on borrowings, attributable to the acquisition of qualifying assets, upto the
date of commissioning of assets,

2.5  Faranings per share

Basic carnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or oss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable o
equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of al} dilutive potential equily shares.

2.6 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax, deferred tax charge or credit. Current tax provision is made
based on the tax liability computed after considering tax allowances and exemptions under the [ncome tax
Act, 1961. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax lability and assets are
recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted on the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets arising from unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses are recognised only if
there is virtual certainty of realisation of such amounts. Other deferred lax assets are recognised only o
the extent there is reasonable certainty of realisation in future. Deferred fax assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to reassess their realisabifity,

277 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are atiributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized
as part of the cost of such assets to the extent that they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be
put to use. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.




Indo Rama Henewables Porbaadar Limited
Notes to financial statements Jor die yoar einded 31 Marceh 20616
Al amouits i Ripees, nnlesy ofherwise stoted)

Note 3: Share capital
As al
3 March 2016

As al
33\1 arclt 2815 .

Authorised

S(,000 (previous year 50,000) cquity shares of 8,10 each 500,000 500,000

Issued, subseribed and fully paideup

30,000 (previous year 50,000) equity shares of Rs.10 cach fully paid-up 500,000 500,001
S00000 500,600

Foot notes
1 During the current year and i the previous year, there have been no nwoverment in (he number of outstanding shares,

2. The Company has only one class ol equity shares, having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each sharebolder is eligible (o one vote per share
held. The dividend proposed, i any, by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting,
exeept in case of interim dividend. The repaynient of equity sharc capital in the event of liquidation and buy back of shares are possible subject
to prevalent regulations. In the event of liquidation, normally the equily sharehotders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company

after distribution of ali preferential smounts, in proportion o their sharcholding,

3. Shares held by holding company and shareholding of more than 5% shares by each of the sharcholders are as under -

Ag at 31 Mareh 2016

As at 31 March 2015

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up No, of Shares % of shares No, of Shares

Yo of shares

held hicld
(Inde Rama Renewables Limited, including & shares held through 50,000 160 50,000 130
nomince shareholders.)
[the ultimate holding company is Indo Rera Synthetics (India)
timiled, which does not hold any shares dircetly]
Note 4: Reserves and surplus
Ay at As al

31 Mareh 2016

1 M'.lrr:

Deticit in e Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance (543,386) (418,062)
Loss for the year {90,880} (125.324)
Net deficit in the Statement of Profit and Toss (QE{GG)" {541
Note 5@ Long-term borrowings
As at As al

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Unsecured; )
Loans

- From a rejated party:
Indo Rama Renewables Limited, the holding Company #

24,539,268

24,539.268

# The interest free loan taken from the helding Company was 1o be converted, on mutual
repayable by 31 March 2017,




Indo Rama Renewshfes Porbandar Linited
Moies (o financisl stntements for ihe year ended 371 March 26106
(Al amoenis in Rupees, unless otherwise siated)

Neie 6 : Trade payabies
Asal As ot
L33 Macch 2016 31 Mareh 2415

Trade payables
Total omtstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Tota! outstanding dues of ereditors other (haw micro enterprises and smull

. 52,250 45,000
cliterpises ’

52,250 45,000

There are no amounts payable to micro and small enterprises inder the Micro, Small snd Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, as al 31
Mareh 2016 {provious your RaNity This has boon identificd on the basis of formation available with ihe Company reparding e siatus of the
suppliers and has been refied upon by the auditors.

Nete 7 : Other current liabilities
Ay at As al
3EMarch 2016 31 Mareh 2015

Current maturities of lang-term borrowings (Unsecured)

IFrom a related parly:

Indo Rama Renewables Limited, the holding Company () 10,019,617
Other payable :

Statutory ducs payable

~Tax deducied at source 5,250 5,000

Indo Rama Renewables Limited, the holding company

~Capital cieditors . 214,560

-(Chers - 1{13, 847
10,024,867 320,413

# The inferest free loan taken fkom the holding Company is o be converted, on mutual agreement, into equity, quasi eguity or debemtures or
repayalife by 31 March 2017,

Note § : Capital worl-in-progress
As al As ad
31 March 20146 31 Mareh 2018

Expenses directly atiributable to the project:

~ Salaries, wages and bonus 1,611,034 1,611,034
- Legal and professional charpes 29,966 29,966
- Travelling expenses 123,639 123,639
- Raies and loxes 97,500 97,500
- Miscellangous expenses 418,265 418,265

2,280,404 2,280,404

Note 8 ¢ Long-term loans and advances { Unseeured, considered good}
As at As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2005

Capital advances 1.744.370 22,244,570

1,744,370 22,244,370




indo Fama Renewables Porbandar Linited

MNefes fa financisd sintemends for the year ¢nded 31 Mareh 1016

(AN mmonnts 1 Rupees, uiless otherwise stated}

Note T Cash and bank balances

Cash and eash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks:

- Current accounts

Nete 11: Other expenses

Auditors' remuneration (including service tax thercon):
- for audit

- for reimbursement of oul of pocket expenscs

Rent and hire charges

Rates and taxes

Misccllaneous expenses

Note 12: Earnings pey equity sharve (EPS)

Net losgs as per the Statement of Profit and Loss

Number ol equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the
Leginning
Number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the end

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs.10
each at the end of the year for ealeulation of basic and
diluted EPS

Basie and diluled Joss per share (in Rs.) (Per share of Rs 10 each)

As at

SEMareh 2016

As at
A1 Mareh 2015

9,392 19876
5,008,685 316,645
5,018,077 336,521

TFor the year
eirded

31 March 2016

For the year
ciided
31 Maveh 2018

57,250 7,000
14,410 12,102
. 30,000
10,484 15,765
8,736 10,457
90,880 e 125324

Trenr 1he yeur
ended
31 March 2016

Tror the year
ended
31 Mareh 2045

(90,880)
50,000
50,000

50,000

(1.82})

{125,324)
50,000
30,000

50,000

(2.51)
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Pransaetions with the Holding company:

Transactions

Facto Boma Renewables Porbandar Limited
Motes to the financial statements {or the year ended 37 Mareh 2616
(Al amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Segment reporting
In the opinion of the managemeni, there is only one reportable segment, i.e., Wind energy, as
envisaged by Accounting Standard 17 “Scgnient Reporting”. Accordingly, no disclosure for segment
reporting has been made in the financial statements.

Related party disclosures

Related parties where contirol exists:

ama Syntheties (Indiaj Limited ]

compaiy: Ingo!

(e Holding nited
1 Indo Rama Renewables Limited (IRRL)

_Holing company:

Particulary For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2015

Expenses repaid during the year
Indo Rama Renewables Limited 64,937 -

Expenses paid on behalf snbsidiaries:
Indo Rama Renewables Limited 64,600 02,953

Expenses incurred by IRRYL on behalf of the
Company(allocable to capital work-in-progress):

-Salaries, wages and bonus - 27,920
~Others . 186,646

214,566

Miscellancous expenses BT T894
BT 894

Repayment of loan 14,519,651
As al As at
31 March 2016 31 March 2015
Balances outstanding at the end of the year:
Indo Rama Renewables Limited { Borrowings) 10,019,617 24,539,268
Indo Rama Renewables Limited ( Capital Creditors) . 214,566
Indo Rama Renewables Limited ( Others) - 100,847

1
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16.

17,

18.

Indo Rama Renewables Porhandar Limited
Metes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
(All amonnts in Rupees, wunlesy otherwise stated)

Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

a} Dstinmted amount of contracts remaining o be executed on capital account and not provided for
(net of advances) amounts 1o Rs. 22,275,370 (previous year Rs. 22,275,370},

b) The Company does not have any pending litigations which may impact its financial position.

The Company does notl have any separate infrastructure or employees for carrying out its operalions
and uses the infrastructure and facifities of the holding Company. The holding Company allocates
common  custs on account of employee costs, fravel costs, legal and scorctarial services,
miscellaneous expenses ete, o the Company on an appropriate basis as mutually agreed between the
two companies. During the current vear, costs amounting to Rs. 337 (previous year Rs, 222,460) has
been charged by the bolding company to the Company on account of the above.

The Company is in the process of selling up a wind power project in Gujarat under the self-
development route. The Company is currently collecting and analysing the wind data from wind
masts set up at two locations on the site as part of the implementation process along with other
developmental activities which are needed to set up a greenfield wind power plant. The aforesaid
process is likely to take uplo two 1o three years post which the Company Shall set up the wind
turbines which is most suitable for the site.

The Company does not have any fong term contracts, including any derivative contracts, with any
material foreseecable losses.

The figures relating to the previous year have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary (o
conform to the current year’s classification.

As per our report sitached
For B8 R and Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAT Firm registration number: [28901W

p
Jiten Chopra
Pariner

Membership No. : 092-4GY

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 18 May 2016

For and on behall of the Board of Direciors of

Indo Rama Renewables Porbandar Limited

R

Rajendra Kamar Gupta
Direcior
DIN: 07529751

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 18 May 2016

Vikas Sehgal
Dyirecior
DIN: 07529393

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 18 May 2016
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